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CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS

Throughout this document, unless otherwise specdiethe context so requires:

"CBOE Holdings," "we," "us," "our" or "the Compansefers to CBOE Holdings, Inc. and its subsidia

"CBOE" refers to (1) prior to the completiontb® restructuring transaction, Chicago Board OtiBrchange, Incorporated, a
Delaware non-stock corporation, and (2) after thmpmletion of the restructuring transaction, Chic&gpard Options Exchange,
Incorporated, a Delaware stock corporation. CBO&b® a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings, lon June 18, 2010.

"C2" refers to C2 Options Exchange, Incorporatedholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings, |
"CFE" refers to CBOE Futures Exchange, LLC, allyhowned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings, |

"CBSX" refers to CBOE Stock Exchange, LLC, ailigcof CBOE that is 49.96% owned by CBOE. CBSXally owned
National Stock Exchange, Inc. ("NSX"), a stock exohpe and se-regulatory organization, until it sold NSX to arthparty on
February 18, 2015. CBSX and NSX ceased operatiorgoil 30, 2014 and May 30, 2014, respectively.328is not a
consolidated subsidiary of the Company.

"CFTC" refers to the U.S. Commodity Futures Tradlmmmissior
"Consent Order" refers to the consent order that EBfd C2 entered into with the SEC on June 11, .

"Delaware Action" refers to the lawsuit, whickasventitled CME Group Inc. et al. v. Chicago Bo@mtions Exchange,
Incorporated et al. (Civil Action No. 2369-VCN) afikd in the Delaware Court on August 23, 2006wimch the CBOE and its
directors were sued in the Delaware Court by thar8of Trade of the City of Chicago, Inc. ("CBOTQBOT Holdings, Inc. and
two members of the CBOT who purported to repreaasiéss of individuals who claimed that they werehad the right to
become, members of the CBOE.

"FASB" refers to the Financial Accounting Standa3dard
"FINRA" refers to the Financial Industry Regulatdwthority.
"GAAP" refers to Generally Accepted Accounting Pifihes in the United State

"Member" or "Members" refers to, prior to themgaletion of the restructuring transaction, any persr organization (or any
designee of any organization) that held a membgeiistthe CBOE.

"Our exchanges" refers to CBOE, C2 and (

The "restructuring transaction” refers to tt@gaction on June 18, 2010, in which CBOE convdrted a Delaware non-stock
corporation owned by its Members to a Delawarekstmeporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBB&dings.

"SEC" refers to the U.S. Securities and Exchanger@isaion

"Settlement Agreement" means the StipulatioBettlement, as amended, approved by the Court af¢&ry of the State of
Delaware in the Delaware Action.

"SPX" refers to our S&P 500 Index exchargeged options produc
"VIX" refers to the CBOE Volatility Index methodolg
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwémdking statements within the meaning of the Pev@écurities Litigation Reform A
of 1995 that involve a number of risks and uncaeties. You can identify these statements by forwaoding words such as "may," "might,"
"should," "expect," "plan,” "anticipate,” "belieVegestimate," "predict," "potential" or "continueghd the negative of these terms and other
comparable terminology. All statements that reftmat expectations, assumptions or projections ath@ututure other than statements of
historical fact are forward-looking statements]uing statements in the "Business" and "Managem@&iscussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.” These forwaoking statements, which are subject to known amichown risks, uncertainties and
assumptions about us, may include projections ofwure financial performance based on our grosttategies and anticipated trends in our
business. These statements are only predictiorsllmasour current expectations and projections tfobure events. There are important
factors that could cause our actual results, lefattivity, performance or achievements to diffeaterially from that expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements. In particular, whwuld consider the risks and uncertainties desdrnimder "Risk Factors" in this Annual
Report.

While we believe we have identified material ristkgse risks and uncertainties are not exhaudtleecover, we operate in a very
competitive and rapidly changing environment. N&sks and uncertainties emerge from time to time, iaiis not possible to predict all risks
and uncertainties, nor can we assess the impatitfaictors on our business or the extent to which factor, or combination of factors, may
cause actual results to differ materially from #hesntained in any forward-looking statements.

Some factors that could cause actual results ferdifclude:

» the loss of our right to exclusively list and tragtain index options and futures prodt

e increasing price competition in our indus

« compliance with legal and regulatory obligatiomgluding our obligations under the Consent O
» decreases in trading volumes or a shift in the ofigroducts traded on our exchani

» legislative or regulatory chang

* increasing competition by foreign and domestictergt

» our dependence on third party service provi

» our ability to operate our business without &tolg the intellectual property rights of othersldhe costs associated with
protecting our intellectual property rights;

» our ability to accommodate trading volume and taatisn traffic, including significant increasestiwaut failure or degradation
performance of our systems;

e our ability to protect our systems and commutidcanetworks from security risks, including cylkstacks
» the accuracy of our estimates and expecta

e economic, political and market conditio

e our ability to maintain access fee reven

e our ability to meet our compliance obligatioms;luding managing potential conflicts between mgulatory responsibilities and
our for-profit status;

e our ability to attract and retain skilled managetrard other personn
e our ability to manage our growth effectively; i
« the ability of our compliance and risk managemeathuds to effectively monitor and manage our r

For a detailed discussion of these and other fa¢hat might affect our performance, see ParemlIfLA. of this Report. We caution you
not to place undue reliance on the forward-looldtajements, which speak only as of the date ofitirig.
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PART |
Iltem 1. Business
Overview

CBOE Holdings, Inc. is the holding company for Gigjo Board Options Exchange, Incorporated, CBOErEatixchange, LLC, C2
Options Exchange, Incorporated and other subsadiari

The Company's principal business is operating ntautkat offer for trading options on various mariketexes (index options), mostly on
an exclusive basis, and futures contracts, asagedin non-exclusive "multiply-listed" options, swahoptions on the stocks of individual
corporations (equity options) and options on othathange-traded products (ETP options), such asege-traded funds (ETF options) and
exchange-traded notes (ETN options). The Compaeyabgs three stand-alone exchanges, but reponteshkts of its operations in one
reporting segment.

CBOE is our primary options market and offers tngdi listed options through a single system thtggrates electronic trading and
traditional open outcry trading on our trading fidm Chicago. This integration of electronic tragliand traditional open outcry trading into a
single exchange is known as our Hybrid trading rhadEE, our all-electronic futures exchange, offeeasling of futures on the VIX Index and
other products. C2 is our all-electronic excharige &lso offers trading for listed options, and ropgrate with a different market model and
fee structure than CBOE. All of our exchanges ojgena our proprietary technology platform knowrnC&0OE Command.

Since 1974, the first full year of trading on CBQt& have grown from 5.6 million contracts on onetenge to 1.3 billion contracts on
three exchanges in 2014 , our most recent fisaal ye

Over the past five years, our overall volume hasdased, especially with respect to our index ogtiend futures contracts. The follow
chart illustrates annual contract volume acrosdglifierent categories of products traded at the @amy for the periods indicated:

Annual Contract Volume

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Equities 488,580,90 433,777,20 494,289,30 516,136,93 572,688,13
Indexes 406,454,86 372,647,44 304,339,90 320,389,99 269,989,51
Exchange-traded products 379,742,16 341,023,20 311,792,12 368,364,05 276,362,70
Total Options Volume 1,274,777,93 1,147,447,85 1,110,421,33 1,204,890,98 1,119,040,34
Futures 50,615,43 40,193,44 23,892,93 12,041,10 4,402,37:
Total Contract Volume 1,325,393,36 1,187,641,30 1,134,314,26 1,216,932,08 1,123,442,72

Our operating revenues are primarily driven by seaion fee revenues, which are generated on titeacts traded on our exchanges.

Our principal executive offices are located at &aith LaSalle Street, Chicago, lllinois 60605, andtelephone number is (312) 786-
5600.

Our web site isvww.choe.comInformation contained on or linked through ourweite is not incorporated by reference into thisméal
Report on Form 10-K.

History

CBOE was founded in 1973 as a non-stock corporatiamed by its Members. CBOE was the first organizedketplace for the trading
of standardized, exchange-traded options on egatityrities. In 2004, CFE began operations as agsiexchange. CBOE Holdings was
incorporated in the State of Delaware on Augus2086. In June 2010, CBOE demutualized (see "Resiting Transaction") and CBOE,
CFE and C2 became wholly-owned subsidiaries of CBIDElings. In October 2010, C2, the Company's l@itteonic options exchange,
initiated operations.
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Restructuring Transaction

On June 18, 2010, CBOE converted from a non-stogkaration owned by its Members into a stock caoaion that is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CBOE Holdings. In the restructuringnisaction, each CBOE regular membership (an "Exgh&eat") owned by a CBOE
Member on June 18, 2010 converted into 80,000 str€lass A common stock of CBOE Holdings. Seatens received a total of
74,400,000 shares of Class A common stock of CBOHIHgs in the restructuring transaction. In adudliticertain persons who satisfied the
qualification requirements set forth in the SetéetnAgreement in the Delaware Action received altot 16,333,380 shares of Class B
common stock of CBOE Holdings on June 18, 2010strant to the Settlement Agreement, qualifying mambéthe plaintiff class received a
cash payment of $300.0 million.

The initial public offering of 13,455,000 sharesunfrestricted common stock, including 2,085,774ehaf unrestricted common stock
sold by selling stockholders, for a price of $290@0 share, was completed on June 18, 2010. Ne¢eds to the Company after deducting
underwriter's fees and commissions and other ektpenses were $301.2 million. Costs directly @iased with the Company's initial public
offering were recorded as a reduction of the gppeseeds received in arriving at the amount reabidedditional paid-in capital.

Upon consummation of the initial public offeringetshares of Class A and Class B common stockamsteeted into unrestricted
common stock and sold in the initial public offeriautomatically converted into 44,323,803 shareSlass A-1 common stock and 44,323,80:
shares of Class A-2 common stock. The Company adiaduender offers in November 2010 and purchageiil7,895 shares of ClasslAanc
Class A-2 common stock. On December 15, 2010 ane 18, 2011, respectively, each remaining shadasfs A-1 and Class A-2 common
stock issued and outstanding converted into oneegfaunrestricted common stock. As a result, d3exfember 31, 2011, no shares of Class /
1 or Class A-2 common stock were outstanding.

Industry

Our primary business of offering exchange-tradeiibap and futures contracts on financial instruraésipart of the large and growing
global derivatives industry. Derivatives are finahcontracts whose value is derived from an uryilegl asset or reference value. While
derivatives exist on a wide range of underlyingetsand references, we currently focus on offedieigvatives products on individual stocks,
stock indexes, exchange-traded funds, exchaémagied notes, interest rates, and various benclimeal&ted to trading and investment strateg
The global derivatives industry includes both exajes and a large over-tkeunter market. The most common types of derivatare option
futures and swap contracts. These products allowaous types of risk to be isolated and transfir

Options and Futures

Options represent a contract giving the buyer ithtet,rbut not the obligation, to buy or sell a sfied quantity of an underlying security
or index at a specific price for a specific peraddime. Options provide investors a means for lregigspeculation and income generation,
while at the same time providing leverage with exspo the underlying asset. Most options tradet & securities exchanges and over-the-
counter are on individual equities, market indexed ETPs.

Futures are standardized, transferable, exchaadedrcontracts that are settled by the delivethefunderlying asset or in cash by
reference to the underlying asset or referencespeaified price and on a specified future datéutes on CFE are settled in cash. Options on
futures may also be listed for trading on futuneshanges.

Trading

In the listed options market, there are currenfifians contracts covering approximately 3,600 ulyiteg stocks, indexes and ETPs,
among other products. The presence of dedicataitlify providers, including market-makers, is a Kegture of the options market. Market-
makers collectively provide continuous bids aneifffor all listed options series. Over the pastde, trading in the options market has
migrated from being primarily conducted face-toefaor "open outcry,” to being primarily electronis a result, many liquidity providers now
operate remotely, away from the physical tradiogifs, and the majority of options trading voluméasdled and executed electronically.

Trends
Increased Interest in Our Proprietary Products

Our proprietary products are those in which we heapeoperty right or for which we have an excludigense, and contribute almost all
of our transaction fee revenues for index option @l of our transaction fee revenues for fututésted options on equities and ETPs curre
may be listed on all options exchanges, while trgdin our proprietary products is limited to ouckanges. Thus, our proprietary products are
able to support a higher revenue per contract mmaltiply-listed products.
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Over the past five years, average daily volume (VAOn our index options has increased from 1.0Tiam contracts to 1.61 million
contracts, and ADV in our futures has increaserhfild thousand contracts to 201 thousand contrBletsincrease in index options and future:s
trading significantly outpaced the growth in thdustry and multiply-listed products in this timeyfne. These increases are primarily due to
increased interest in trading our VIX options antlifes and SPX options. See "SPX Options" and "ifityaTrading.”

Price Competition

Exchanges set fees to attract multiply-listed oygtibusiness to their exchanges, which has redheaevenue per contract that we
generate from these options. Fees utilized inchath transaction fees assessed to access ligaidityncentive programs to attract order flow.
Order flow, particularly customer order flow, itprimary driver of multiply-listed options exchangolumes. In the past several years, the
competition for this business has increased sicanitly, due in part to the limited number of firrkapwn as consolidators, who make routing
decisions based on pricing and their ability teinalize order flow. Some exchanges have structineid options businesses in partnership
with established market participants and order fiomaviders. Others offer specific payments for offttaw, in addition to any economic
incentives received from market-makers and othgigigants.

In addition, the number of options exchanges habldol over the past ten years, from six exchangésedlve, in large part due to
existing exchange holding companies opening newmanges that offer different markets and pricing el®@n existing technology. As the
business continues to expand, and offer greategingathan the equity trading business, we expettdhr competitors, or new entrants into
exchange business, may open additional new opéirecisanges.

Competitive Strengths

We have established ourselves as a global leadenaanvator in the options industry. We believeave well positioned to further
enhance our leadership position through severatkeypetitive strengths:

* Innovative ProductsWe have worked closely and collaboratively with kedparticipants to introduce new products andisesv
to meet the evolving needs of the derivatives itrguand plan to continue these efforts. Produashave developed including
index options, options and futures on the VIX Indéx other volatility indexes, Long-Term Equity Aiation Securities
("LEAPS"), short duration options, including WeeklyFLexible EXchange Options ("FLEX options") ardions strategy
benchmark indexes.

» Strategic RelationshipsWe have entered into licensing agreements withxdipaleviders under which we have rights to create
volatility indexes and offer options and futuresdhucts on their indexes. See "Strategic Relatigsshi

» Leading Brand, Reputation and Market Positio As the operator of the original and largest Wj8ions exchange, based on
both contract volume and notional value and onth@fargest options exchanges in the world, we laaeading brand and
reputation.

Growth Strategy

We believe that the listed options and futures stigy especially with respect to volatility tradjrtas significant growth potential,
including through new participants and products. &¥pect to further expand our business and increaseevenues and profitability by
pursuing the following growth strategies:

» Pursue International OpportunitiesWe intend to continue our efforts to expand theafssur products internationally. At the
core of that effort is extending trading hours ur exclusive products. In 2014, we completed theresion of trading hours for
VIX futures to nearly 24 hours per day, and plaextend the trading hours for SPX and VIX opticadging a session each
weekday that begins at 2:00 a.m. CT, to align withopening of the London markets, and ends at&m5CT. We have also
expanded, and intend to continue expanding, oucathnal offerings internationally, including thigtuthe European Risk
Management Conference, which has been held thresstiand the Asian Risk Management Conferences el for the first
time in 2015. We also offer a CFE communicationis imuLondon where Trading Permit Holders ("TPHs&dh send and receive
data and access CFE's trading system.

» Develop Innovative Proprietary Product We intend to license and create proprietary limté&lial property to develop propriete
products that meet the needs of the derivativassing, both through strategic relationships andrimally developed products. In
2014, we introduced options and futures on the CEBB&rt-Term Volatility Index and futures on the CBGBOT 10-year U.S.
Treasury Note Volatility Index. We also announcledttwe had entered into an agreement with MSC| lmeder which options ¢
certain MSCI indexes will be solely listed for thagl on CBOE in the U.S.

5
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Products

Offer Compelling Economic ModeMWe have designed our fee schedule to provide bsriefmarket participants that concentrate
their overall trading activity on CBOE, which weliege encourages market participants to increasie flusiness with us. In our
proprietary products, we offer discounts and inivestto certain participants based on relative ma@wand the use of selected
strategies. In multiply-listed products, we offecéntive programs to attract customer order floletp our market participants
manage both the fixed and transaction-based costsding on CBOE. We regularly review the fee stifles for all of our
exchanges to provide an industry-leading econofffiézing.

Continue to Enhance Our Trading SystemsWe recognize that the opportunity to particigatéhe growth of the derivatives
market will be driven in great part by the tradfngctionality and systems capabilities that an exde offers to market
participants. We intend to use our strondouse development capabilities and continued invesst to further harden and deve
the functionality and capacity of our trading sysse

Increase the Number of Users of Our ProducWe seek to increase the number of users who tradproducts. Specifically, we
have targeted new institutional investors, inclgdiensions and endowments, to inform about howattetour products,
especially our proprietary products. We intenddotmue offering education sessions and publishatérals through the Options
Institute. We also educate potential investorsuhoour domestic and European Risk Management @ardes and through
participation in industry events. We plan to counérthese activities and look for other opportuaitie grow the user base for our
products.

Attract Overthe-Counter Market Participants. We seek to attract participants from the overgbenter market, including
through our customizable FLEX options products imdugh offering products similar to those tradedrethe-counter, but with
listed market protections and benefits, such asprarency, fungibility and centralized clearing.

In addition, through a set of arrangements with SERCO LLC ("S&P"), we permit S&P to license the Qmany's proprietary
indexes and index methodologies for certain purptsaecurities firms and other exchanges. The @osnpnd S&P have agreed
that S&P may license one or more clearing agenoietear over-the-counter, or OTC, options basetherS&P 500 Index that
meet certain criteria, and that S&P will compensetéor any transaction cleared under such a leebased on the notional value
of the transaction.

Pursue Select Strategic Opportunitie We evaluate strategic opportunities that we keligill enhance stockholder value. We
specifically look for strategic opportunities begoour current businesses that will capitalize onamre competencies and
diversify our sources of revenue.

Our exchanges provide a marketplace for the tradirgptions and futures contracts that meet cdtestablished in the rules of the
respective exchange. The options contracts ligiettdding include options on indexes, equities Bmés. In addition, we provide a
marketplace for trading futures contracts througtEC

Types of products

Index Options. We offer trading in options on several differembadbased market indexes, including the VIX Index, @ppietary
index that we developed and that has become ayidebgnized measure of equity market volatilitheTindex options we list
include some of the most widely recognized measoiréise U.S. equities market, as discussed below.

Equity Options. We offer trading in options on the stocks of apgmately 3,100 corporations. The stocks underlyng
individual equity options are listed on equity @xchanges.

Options on ETPs. We offer trading in options on over 500 ETFs &Td\s based on various domestic and foreign markkbies,
as well as on volatility, commodities, currenciesl fixed income instruments.

Futures. We provide a marketplace for trading ten futurexducts through CFE. CFE has focused on the tgaafifutures using
the CBOE-created VIX methodology, but also provittading in S&P 500 Variance futures.

Increased Flexibility

Over the past few years, we have expanded ourindfgrand experienced increases in our existingrioffs, that allow for customers to
trade options on a number of different time horgaalowing them to pinpoint their preferred timing addition to standard option terms, we
also offer options with weekly, end of month and ef quarter expirations, and provide LEAPS thidvalthe user to establish positions that
can be maintained for a period of up to fifteenrge®ur Weeklys product in particular has seendrgpdbwth, especially in SPX. We believe
that the flexibility provided by these offeringdoals us to meet the differing needs of our custenagid increase trading volume.
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Proprietary Products

The Company has developed several of its own i indexes and index methodologies. These irchathtility indexes based on
various broad-based market indexes (such as the5B&Pthe DJIA, the NASDAQ 100 and the Russell 3006latility indexes based on ETFs
and individual stocks, the CBOE S&P 500 Implied i@tation Index and a series of options strategycbherarks, including BuyWrite, PutWri
and Collar indexes based on the S&P 500 and BugWhitexes based on other broad-based market indexaddition to any transaction fee
revenue generated on products created based anitlikexes, we have licensed others to use sonmesé indexes to create products and hav
entered into agreements whereby we have grantettéos the rights to sub-license certain indexés. Company generates revenue from bott
the calculation and dissemination of index valuss from the licensing of our proprietary indexes.

These proprietary products are built both throughio-house research and development staff andtoategic relationships and license
agreements with index providers. The following @iscussion of our strategic relationships andtaafdil detail on our most frequently traded
products, SPX and VIX options and futures.

Strategic Relationships

The Company has long-term business relationshifis seiveral providers of market indexes. We licahs& indexes as the basis for
indexes, index options and other products. In smistances, these licenses provide us with the sx@uight to list certain products based on
these indexes. Of particular note are the following

* S&P 500 and S&P 100 Indexe We have the exclusive right to offer options caats on the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 100
Index as a result of a licensing arrangement w ®PCO LLC, which was extended in March 2013. {lmense with S&P
OPCO LLC is through December 31, 2033, with an&sigk license to trade options on the S&P 500 Indeough December 3
2032. We are also authorized to use the S&P 508xiadd S&P 100 for the creation of CBOE volatilitgexes, such as the VIX
Index, and tradable products on those volatilijeixes.

« Dow Jones Industrial Average ("DJIA"). We have the exclusive right during standard @8ibhg hours to offer options
contracts on the DJIA and certain other Dow Jondexes through December 31, 2017 as a resultiog@sing arrangement with
S&P Dow Jones Indices, LLC. We are also authortpagse these indexes to create CBOE volatility xedeand trade options,
futures and other products on these indexes.

* Russell Indexes We are able to offer options contracts on thesBlI2000 and certain other Russell indexes thrdrgjiruary
28, 2015 as a result of a licensing arrangemett Aidnk Russell Co. We are also authorized to er@atx, a volatility index
based on the Russell 2000, and offer options, égtand other products for trading on this index.

«  NASDAQ 100. We have a non-exclusive right to offer optionatcacts on the NASDAQ 100 Index through Decembd52ds a
result of a licensing arrangement with NASDAQ OMXo@p, Inc. Under this license, we are authorizecréate VXN, a
volatility index on the NASDAQ 100, and offer optigy, futures or other products on this index.

e MSCI. In December 2014, we announced that we had ehtei@a license agreement with MSCI Inc., undeicWlCBOE has
the exclusive right in the U.S. to offer optionsgix of MSCI's indexes, including the MSCI EAFE énxdand the MSCI Emerging
Markets Index.

SPX Options

The S&P 500 Index is an index comprised of 500dazgp U.S. listed companies. It is one of the mostmonly followed indexes, and
is considered a bellwether for the U. S. econofflye options we offer on the S&P 500 Index are esigkito CBOE and contribute
substantially to our volumes and transaction fd&scause of its status as a bell-weather, SPXadett in a number of different trading
strategies by customers with different goals, iditlg pension funds hedging their equity exposuréuinying put options, asset managers
seeking enhanced returns by selling covered cétbiopand hedge funds using risk-managed stratégiespture so-called “risk premia”
embedded in option prices.

We are also seeing a significant increase in tmelmu of customers who are trading SPX Weeklys,afioir fastest growing products.
As a percentage of total SPX contracts traded, Bfe¥klys has increased from 2.2% in 2010 to 30.720t4. We believe that these traders
are using this product to fine tune the timing eflging strategies and maximize the risk premiustriategies that involve the sale of options,
such as covered call writing.
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Volatility Trading

CBOE pioneered the volatility trading space, withintroduction of the CBOE Volatility Index (th&1X Index") in 1993. We introduce
futures on the VIX Index in 2004 and options in @00'he VIX Index is based on real-time prices jpfians on the S&P 500 Index and is
designed to reflect investors' consensus view toffu30-day expected stock market volatility. 8ime started offering these products, we
have seen trading from a number of different custosegments utilizing a number of different tradétigategies, including hedging extreme
stock market declines, also known as “tail risktigimg, and risk-managed strategies that seek tm@athe relative price changes of expected
volatility at different times in the future.

While the trading volumes in options and futuregtm VIX Index have rapidly increased over the fiastyears, trading volumes in
these products are especially sensitive to mariatility, with increases in volume generally oagng along with spikes in volatility. While v
believe that there will be continued intrinsic gtbvin our volatility products, significant changeshe levels of market volatility may
significantly impact volumes in these products.

In addition to the VIX Index, we offer other prodsibased on the VIX methodology, including futunesCBOE Russell 2000 Volatility
Index and the CBOE/CBOT 10-year U.S. Treasury Néatkatility Index. CFE also lists futures on realizeariance using RIVETS®
methodology. While volumes in our non-VIX opticgisd futures volatility products are not materialify we continue to explore opportunities
to expand our volatility product offerings, withspect to both new indexes and new asset classes.

Options Exchanges' Market Participants

As discussed in more detail below, our options arges are designed to provide reliable, ordedyjdi and efficient marketplaces for
the trading of options by market participants. ©Options exchanges operate quote-driven auctionetsmtkat involve a number of different
market participants.

Trading Permit Holders

Purchasing a monthly trading permit for the respeatxchange conveys "Trading Permit Holder" statushat exchange to the permit
holder.

A Trading Permit Holder ("TPH") on one of our optioexchanges is allowed to enter orders and quutethe trading system for that
exchange. Trading Permit Holder entities can exetratles for their own accounts, for clearing factounts, for the accounts of other permit
holders or for the accounts of customers.

Applicants for Trading Permit Holder Status

Applicants for Trading Permit Holder status mustéadequate financial resources and credit to asshenresponsibilities and privilec
of a Trading Permit Holder. All Trading Permit Held must abide by the rules and regulations oéfidicable exchange, the provisions of
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Yatit the rules and regulations issued by the SEC.

Participant Roles

A trading permit entitles the holder to conductibass on the exchange, including in one of theigpant roles described below.

» Market-Maker. A market-maker engages in trading our produdteefor its own account or for the account ofdviger firm,
but does not act as an agent representing ordecsistomers. Market-makers have quoting obligatiorikeir appointed product
classes. They are granted margin relief and mug aaelationship with a clearing firm that willldand guarantee their
positions. The majority of trading permits in use@BOE and C2 are used for market making. Theraddéional classes of
market-maker, namely Lead Market-Maker ("LMM") petsrand Designated Primary Market-Maker ("DPM")mpés that also
provide incentives for market-makers to provide petitive quotes, and are also called liquidity pdevs. In addition, TPHs
routing orders to CBOE may designate a PreferretkélaMaker ("PMM"). The PMM is afforded a particien right on specific
orders provided that it meets certain other requéingts with respect to the relevant options clasisgaoting obligations.

e Floor Broker. An individual who represents orders on the CB@iding floor as an agent is known as a floor brokéyor
brokers generally do not trade for their own act¢palthough they may represent their firms' pragrg account, and do not
receive any margin relief.
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» Electronic Access Permits ("EAP") An Electronic Access Permit is a trading permsiégdiby TPHs that need a separate access
permit for a specific business function and isrtiest general type of access permit. EAPs may listezgd for one of the
following: clearing TPHs; TPHs approved to trandagsiness with the public; proprietary TPHs; andeoiservice firms.

CFE Market Participants

Parties are required to apply and be approved &Te&ding Privilege Holders and obtain a CFE trgdiermit in order to have trading
privileges on CFE. Trading Privilege Holders on G&E allowed to enter orders into CFE's tradingesysand can execute trades for their owr
accounts or for the accounts of customers.

Under its rules, CFE has the authority to estabtiginket-maker programs and appoint one or more DRM#1s or market-makers.
However, CFE does not have a DPM, LMM or market-engicogram in VIX futures.

Market Model
Algorithms

The matching algorithms used on our exchangesharmeans by which trades are executed and allottatedrket participants. Our
technology and the rules of our exchanges provada fvariety of different algorithms for matchingylers and sellers. We have the ability to
apply different matching algorithms to differenbgducts in order to meet the needs of particulakatasegments. The setting of the matching
algorithm affects the share of each trade that kkeh@articipant receives and is central to theaofymity and profit potential of market-makers
and other liquidity providers.

» CBOE utilizes varying matching algorithms acrisdisted options classes, with different combim@s of customer priority,
participation rights and pro-rata, modified proarat price-time depending on the product.

» C2's matching algorithm is pro-rata for ETP op$ classes. For equity options classes, the Céhingtalgorithm was a price-
time matching algorithm with customer priority aD&M participation rights in 2014, but became priaia 2015.

Options orders can be routed to other marketplaieesontracted brokers for execution if a bettaptiiyed price exists elsewhere. See
"Regulatory Responsibilities - Options Intermarkeikage Plan." Details on our technological cagtibsd, as well as key systems offerings
available to customers, are described in "Technotog

Pricing

Each of our exchanges establishes a fee schedii|eathong other things, sets the transaction febuging or selling options or futures
contracts on the exchange and access fees forsamgéise exchange. In our proprietary productsassess these fees on all participants, with
the amount of the fee based on the market partitgpeole and the origin of the underlying orderd @ubject to discounts based on relative
volume or trading strategies. In multiply-listecbgducts, CBOE utilizes a pricing model in which saation fees are charged to most
professionals, including market-makers, but arecharged for most customer orders. Additionally GEBoffers incentive programs to attract
customer order flow, including certain paymentsdader flow and our volume incentive program, oP\Avhich pays credits to permit holders
for executing certain types and levels of qualifyoustomer business at the exchange.

CFE utilizes a pricing model in which transactiees vary depending on the type of market partitiparwhose behalf a trade is made
and on whether the trade is executed through Clading system, or is a block trade or exchangeoafract for a related position transaction.
CFE also offers a Day Trade Fee Program that pesvidbates on trades that qualify for the program.

Each of the exchanges also currently charges foféeading permits that allow access to our exdgesn CBOE has a sliding scale for all
Market-Maker Trading Permits held by affiliated d@irag Permit Holders and TPH Organizations thatused for appointments in any options
classes other than SPX.

Competition

CBOE is the largest options exchange in the U.Sedh@n both total contract volume and notional @aficontracts traded. The market
share for all options traded on U.S. exchanges theepast five years for CBOE and C2, combined raaged from 26.4% to 29.9% annually.
For 2014 , our market share was 29.9% .

In our proprietary products, we compete againstrieg exchanges and swap execution facilities fifiett similar products and other
financial institutions that write over-the-countkarivatives. We also compete against certain mitigted options products, include SPY, that



offer some of the features of our proprietary pidu
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The multiply-listed options industry is extremelynepetitive and the competition has intensified. &{pect this trend to continue. We
compete with a number of entities on several dffiéfronts, including the price, quality and speédur trade execution, the functionality and
ease of use of our trading platform, the rangeunfpsoducts and services, our technological infoweand adaption and our reputation. There
are ten other U.S. options exchanges that arerouagy direct competitors, including ISE, NASDAQ OMOM, NASDAQ OMX PHLX,
NYSE Amex and NYSE Arct

The options exchanges frequently introduce newn@imodels in order to attract additional tradethiir exchanges. These pricing
models include traditional pricing, maker-takerd anwvnership benefits. See "Trends - Price Competiti

Our competitive challenge is to persuade broketedg#o route options orders to our exchanges réatfaa to our competitors and to
convince liquidity providers to concentrate themriet-making activity on our exchanges. This idipalarly true with respect to options on
equities and ETPs. We compete through a varietyaihods, including:

e Offering a fee schedule that both attracts ordmw thnd provides incentives to liquidity providk

e Providing advanced technology that offers brivaxttionality, low latency, fast execution, easeusé, scalability, reliability and
security;

« Offering participants access to a broad array ofipcts and services, including proprietary prod

- Offering market participants an efficient, traagent and liquid marketplace for trading optiosmg traditional open outcry and
our electronic platform, CBOE Command;

e Offering customers a deep, liquid market with opyities for price improvemet
« Facilitating payment for order flow through the adistration of marketing fee

»  Offering market participants potential partidipa rights for order flow that they direct or caus be directed to our exchanges;
and

« Providing brokers and their customers with a cotepdeurce of information on options as well as esitee options educatic

Technology
CBOE Command

CBOE Command, our iheuse developed Java application with an infrasirecdesigned for high performance and low latesapports
trading on all of our exchanges and supports tgadaarly 24 hours, 5 days a week on CFE. Our tdoggsupports the trading process from
the entering of quotes and orders, to matchingeath submitting them to OCC for clearing. Théntextogy supports different products,
different market models and multiple matching aidyons, as well as a fully integrated complex ordeok and several auction mechanisms. A
mentioned above, CBOE is a hybrid exchange, whlef CFE are fully electronic. In the Hybrid fotm@BOE Command provides features
of screen-based and floor-based trading.

The platform supports both a quote-driven optioaskat model where liquidity providers have quotoidigations and an order-driven
market model for our futures exchange. CBOE andan@gket-makers, DPMs and LMMs typically stream heaidrof millions of quotes into
CBOE Command each day. To facilitate liquidity pders, CBOE Command offers a number of intern&l cientrols, including Quote Lock
and Quote Risk Monitor.

CBOE Command allows for a quick introduction offéliEént types of derivative and securities produatduding options, futures, optio
on futures and stock products. In addition, outesysfacilitates different trading models through tise of alternative configurations, allowing
us to provide both hybrid and fully electronic matrknodels. CBOE also offers CFLEX, our hybrid matf for trading FLEX options built on
the CBOE Command platform.

Hybrid Trading Model

All CBOE products trade with an electronic and opeitcry component where both are integrated totfanas a single market. Our
Hybrid trading model is supported by state-of-thietechnology, including the CBOE Command traditegfprm. For our a.m.-settled SPX
options, certain of the electronic trading featuaes differently configured to better suit the reetlcustomers in those products.

In general, CBOE market-makers stream their owividdal quotes into the CBOE trading engine ananifthe floor, engage in open
outcry transactions in their trading crowd. Our Hgllirading model allows CBOE to offer the besboth electronic and open outcry trading
models.
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Market Data

Market data is sent to the Options Price Reportinthority ("OPRA"), our TPHs, CBOE Financial Netwasind CBOE Streaming
Markets ("CSM"), described below. Our exchangesgae valuable information regarding the priceswfproducts and the trading activity
our exchanges. For options, market data relatimgite and size of market quotations and the mimtsize of trades is collected and
consolidated by OPRA. OPRA disseminates the inftiondor a fee to vendors who redistribute the dathrokers, investors and other pers
or entities that use our markets or that monitaregal market conditions. After costs are dedudteslfees collected are distributed among
OPRA's exchange participants based on their cleesiadactions pursuant to the OPRA Plan. As of ez 2014 , our market data was
displayed on approximately 144,000 terminals wortlhvSee "Regulatory Environment and Compliancefddaher information on OPRA.

Our subsidiary, Market Data Express, LLC ("MDX")Iséistorical options data and real-time data indalues. It also provides market
data through CSM, a proprietary streaming data.fee@014, we enhanced CSM's offerings to includeket depth.

Disaster Recovery

We operate and maintain geographically diversestisaecovery facilities that essentially replicdite systems available in our primary
data center for CBOE and CFE. We expect that thastier recovery facilities can be up and runnirg short period and work with our market
participants to ensure that the marketplace cajuikly reopened. We continue to work to improvéhbihie availability of our systems and
disaster recovery facilities, including through slation testing.

Clearing System

The OCC acts as the issuer, counterparty and gtaaufan all options contracts traded on our optiershanges and other U.S. options
exchanges. Upon execution of an options traderavestnit to the OCC a record of all trading actifiy clearing and settlement purposes. The
OCC fulfills these same functions for futures protduraded on CFE.

Regulatory Environment and Compliance
The following discussion covers the more significareas of regulation of us by the SEC and the CFTC
Recent Developments

Laws and regulations regarding our business aggiémtly modified or changed, including in respottsadverse financial conditions, to
address perceived problems, new products, conpetii at the request of market participants. Thieviong is a summary of certain recent
regulatory developments that may impact our busines

Regulation System Compliance and Integrity ("Reg BCand Working Group Initiatives

On December 5, 2014, the SEC adopted a new regul®iegulation Systems Compliance and Integritge@f SCI”) under the Securities
Exchange Act. Reg SCI will require “SCI Entitiesyhich includes selfegulatory organizations like CBOE and C2, to compith security an
capacity requirements with respect to their systantsaccompanying compliance procedures. The reégubaill replace and codify the curre
Automation Review Policy. Prior to the November 2@bmpliance date, CBOE and C2 will be requireditopng other things, establish
written policies and procedures reasonably desigmessure that their systems have adequate ityegrénsure a resilient market in the event
of a disruption. This includes, for example, eaxthange ensuring that it has adequate disastevepctacilities that are geographically
diverse from the exchange’s systems and that fatlthe ability to resume trading within speciftedeframes when critical and non-critical
SCI systems are rendered inoperable. It also regjtimely and substantial notification to be mamthe SEC in the event an exchange
experiences any system interruption or interferefibe SEC has also established various workingpgafi exchanges to focus on improving
market resiliency, including regarding regulatoafts, trade nullification and additional market tgations. As adopted, Reg SCI and the othel
SEC mandated working group initiatives are very plax, and, as such, compliance with rules may recgignificant resources.
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Consolidated Audit Trail ("CAT")

In 2012, the SEC directed the self-regulatory oizgtions, or SROs, through a new regulation, tarstia plan to create, implement and
maintain a consolidated audit trail ("CAT"), whialould serve as a comprehensive audit trail of artleait will allow regulators to efficiently
and accurately track all activity in Regulation NM&curities in the U.S. market. The regulation i among other things, that, upon
implementation of a plan, data be reported to @rakrepository the following day by each exchaagd broker dealer. We are working with
the other SROs to develop the plan to implememirsaidated audit trail, which is required to detachnological and compliance aspects of
the plan and the costs to implement the plan, anotimgy details. The SROs have submitted a planfubtiter revisions to the plan are
anticipated. Once the plan is finalized and effegtthere will be a phased implementation overety@ars. The exchanges and their particif
are likely to incur significant costs related te implementation of the consolidated audit traguieements.

CFTC Core Principles

Dodd-Frank amended the core principles with whiebkighated contract markets ("DCMs") like CFE mushply under the Commodity
Exchange Act. In 2012, the CFTC adopted a numbaewf regulations applicable to DCMs in order to lianpent the amended core principles.
These regulations related to, among other thingsptiance with rules, prevention of market disrapfifinancial integrity of transactions,
disciplinary procedures, system safeguards anddiaaresources. As a result, CFE implemented abeurof new rules, policies and
procedures in relation to these new requirements.

One aspect with respect to the amended core plescgpplicable to DCMs that remains pending reladesnended Core Principle 9.
Core Principle 9 requires each DCM to provide a petitive, open and efficient market and mechanisrmekecuting transactions that protects
the price discovery process of trading in the DChEstralized market. CFTC regulations to implent@ate Principle 9 remain pending and
may address the extent to which a DCM may permitibtrades and exchanges of derivatives for relptesitions in its products to occur
through the DCM outside of the DCBItentralized market. CFE cannot predict or estrttad extent to which these regulations may affédE
or its operations.

Risk Controls

In 2013, the CFTC issued a concept release thghs@ublic comment regarding a series of existing jpotential pre-trade risk controls;
post trade reports and other post-trade measwystens safeguards related to the design, testimhsapervision of automated trading systems;
and additional protections designed to promote aatkeorderly markets. The concept release wasdetkto serve as a platform for catalogt
existing industry practices, determining their edfiy and implementation to date and evaluatingnées for additional measures, if any. The
concept release did not include any proposed ngulatons but could lead to the proposal by the CI6T additional regulations in this regard
that could impact CFE or its operations.

Agency Rulemaking Areas

In addition to the above identified areas, the $Ia€ been directed under Dodd-Frank to implemenymaw rules, both alone and in
conjunction with the CFTC. These areas includefpliotmargining and security-based swap clearingj @xecution.

The SEC has proposed rules, including options &s and banning flash orders, that it has not agted. While we do not expect the
SEC to take action with respect to options fee caimnning flash orders, as these proposals aeedaone or both of the proposals were
adopted, they could cause significant changes tonawket that may reduce our revenue per contractduce the volume of trading on our
exchanges.

Compliance
Securities Industry-CBOE and C2

Federal securities laws have established a tweetisystem for the regulation of securities exchargel market participants. The first
tier consists of the SEC, which has primary resitility for enforcing federal securities laws. Thecond tier consists of self-regulatory
organization ("SROs"), which are ngovernmental entities that must register with amdragulated by the SEC. CBOE and C2 are SROs,
registered under Section 6 of the Exchange Act"asitional securities exchange" and are subjeotérsight by the SEC. CBSX, which cea
offering stocks for trading on April 30, 2014, istran SRO and was a stock trading facility of CB@Ethe SRO for CBSX, CBOE is
responsible for the regulation of the CBSX markatpland the following discussion of CBOE's resgulitsés includes the responsibility to
provide regulation for CBSX and CBOE's other faig#. In addition, National Stock Exchange, In®N$X") is a stock exchange that is a self-
regulatory organization and was wholly owned by GBfitil it was sold to a third party on February, 2815. NSX
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ceased operating its exchange on May 30, 2014. C&8(ported NSX in fulfilling its selfegulatory responsibilities during the time that®¢€
owned NSX.

SROs are an essential component of the regulattignse of the Exchange Act for providing fair andesty markets and protecting
investors. To be registered as a national secsigtiehange, an exchange must successfully undargppdication and review process with the
SEC prior to beginning operations. Among othergbirthe SEC must determine that the SRO has thtydbicomply with the Exchange Act
and to enforce compliance by its members and perassociated with its members with the provisidritb® Exchange Act, the rules and
regulations thereunder and the rules of the exahang

In general, an SRO is responsible for regulatiagriembers, known as TPHs at CBOE and C2, throwghdbption and enforcement of
rules governing the business conduct of its memférs rules of the exchange must also assuredpiesentation of its members in the
selection of its directors and administration eféffairs and, among other things, provide that@mmore directors be representative of issuer:
or investors and not be associated with a membtreoéxchange or with a broker or dealer. Additilyn¢he rules of the exchange must be
adequate to ensure fair dealing and to protecsiove and may not impose any burden on competitddmecessary or appropriate in
furtherance of the purposes of the Securities Bxgaa\ct.

As registered national securities exchanges, Viytad facets of our CBOE and C2 operations argject to the SEC's oversight, as
prescribed by the Exchange Act. The Exchange Adttha rules thereunder impose on us many regulatwdyoperational responsibilities,
including the day-to-day responsibilities for markad broker-dealer oversight. Furthermore, as SRBOE and C2 are potentially subject to
regulatory or legal action by the SEC or otherregéed parties. The SEC also has broad enforcgmogrdrs to censure, fine, issue cease-and-
desist orders, prohibit us from engaging in someufbusinesses, suspend or revoke our desigradiarregistered securities exchange or to
remove or censure any of our officers or directen® violate applicable laws or regulations.

As part of its regulatory oversight, the SEC condyeriodic reviews and inspections of exchanges,GBOE and C2 have been subject
to such routine reviews and inspections. To thergxduch reviews and inspections result in regnjaio other changes, we may be required tc
modify the manner in which we conduct our businedsch may adversely affect our business. We cbtiedain fees derived from our
regulatory function and fines in connection wittr disciplinary proceedings. Under the rules of eafcbur options exchanges, as required by
the SEC, any revenue derived from the regulatogg nd fines cannot be used for non-regulatoryqaesp

CBOE and C2 are also subject to the record keagqugirements of Section 17 of the Exchange Actuifing the requirement pursuant
to Section 17(b) of the Exchange Act to make centecords available to the SEC for examination.

Section 19 of the Exchange Act also provides thatwist submit to the SEC proposed changes to a@BOE's or C2's rules, including
revisions of their certificates of incorporationdanylaws. The SEC will typically publish the propbfor public comment, following which the
SEC may approve or disapprove the proposal, aiind appropriate. The SEC's action is designedstare that the CBOE's and C2's Rules
and procedures are consistent with the Exchangardthe rules and regulations under the ExchamgeCGertain categories of rule changes,
like fee changes, can be effective on filing, the SEC retains the ability to suspend or rejedh $iliags within a prescribed period of time.

Consent Order

On June 11, 2013, CBOE and C2 entered into a Coyeer with the SEC, under which CBOE and C2 veemsured, ordered to cease
and desist from violating certain sections of teewities Exchange Act, paid a fine of $6 milliardeagreed to complete certain undertakings.
These undertakings included conducting a revieaunfregulatory programs, enterprise risk managemedtousiness influences on regulat
reviewing business practices to ensure complianttethe rules of the exchanges and implementinigitrg programs for employees. We have
certified to the completion of these undertakingse Consent Order also requires on-going certiboatby the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Regulatory Officer for five yedmlowing the completion of certain of the unddditeys.

CBOE Holdings

Certain aspects of CBOE Holdings are also subieSEC oversight, including certain ownership antingprestrictions on its
stockholders. The focus of the SEC's regulatioBBOE Holdings is to assure fair representationrafdling Permit Holders in the selection of
CBOE and C2 directors, public participation in fevernance of CBOE and C2 and that CBOE and C3atisfy their regulatory
responsibilities under the Exchange Act. Furtheamtitre SEC requires that CBOE Holdings give duanetp the preservation of the
independence of the self-regulatory function of GB&hd C2 and to CBOE Holdings' obligations to ineesand the general public. The SEC
also requires that CBOE Holdings not take any astitvat would interfere with the effectuation of/aecisions by the board of directors of
CBOE or C2 relating to their regulatory functionslee structure of the market that it regulatethat would interfere with the ability of the
exchanges to carry out
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their responsibilities under the Exchange Act. i® éxtent that CBOE Holdings' business activitie®ive or relate to CBOE and C2, the
officers and directors of CBOE Holdings may be deérno be officers and directors of the exchangepuoposes of and subject to oversight
under the federal securities laws. Accordingly, 8iC may exercise direct supervision and discipfiathority over certain CBOE Holdings'
activities and those activities may be subjectBE€ & pproval and, in some cases, public notice anthtent.

Futures Industry-CFE

The operations of CFE are subject to regulatiotheyCFTC under the Commodity Exchange Act. The Coditp Exchange Act
generally requires that futures trading in the BhiStates be conducted on a commodity exchanggndesd as a contract market by the CFTC
under the Act. The Commodity Exchange Act and CFad@lilations establish criteria for an exchangeetadésignated as a contract market on
which futures and futures options contracts mayréeed. Designation as a contract market for @iy of a specified futures contract is non:
exclusive. This means that the CFTC may desigrddéianal exchanges as contract markets for tratiergsame or similar contracts.

CFE is a designated contract market that is subpeitte oversight of the CFTC and to a variety mj@ing regulatory and reporting
responsibilities under the Commodity Exchange Asta designated contract market, CFE is requireabioply with the applicable core
principles and regulations under the Commodity Exgfe Act. CFE has surveillance and compliance tipesand procedures to monitor and
enforce compliance by Trading Privilege Holderdw@tf-E rules. If CFE fails to comply with applicaltdevs, rules or regulations, CFE may be
subject to censure, fines, cease-and-desist olegpension of its business, removal of personnatheer sanctions, including revocation of
CFE’s designation as a contract market.

The National Futures Association ("NFA") performamyg regulatory functions for CFE pursuant to a Reiguy Services Agreement w
CFE. CFE retains overall responsibility for theukagion of its marketplace. CFE also remains resjia for bringing disciplinary actions
against Trading Privilege Holders, including thdigbto issue fines in the case of serious rulelaiions. In the case of financially distressed
Trading Privilege Holders, CFE may take various y@ecy actions to protect customers, other Tra&irmglege Holders and CFE. CFE is @
a party to cooperative and regulatory informatibargng agreements with other SROs and is a menilibe dntermarket Surveillance Group,
described below.

Regulatory Responsibilities

Our options exchanges are responsible for assefs@ngpmpliance of their Trading Permit Holdershathie respective exchange's rules
and the applicable rules of the SEC. The main #ietd/that the exchanges are required to providegasure compliance with these rules
include:

« surveillance designed to detect violations of ergjeetrading rule

» surveillance designed to detect possible manipraind violations of other SEC rul

» the further investigation of matters deemed to teblematic

» the investigation of complaints about possible kitdations brought by customers, members or c8ROs; an

» the examination of CBOE and C2 Trading Permilddos for compliance with rules such as those eeléb net capital, books and
records, market access and other matters relatbe fbrading Permit Holders' exchange businesgifumc

As further described below, each options exchasgésib responsible for reviewing its Trading Petddtders' activities related to the
conduct of business directly with public customerssales practice.

In order to ensure market integrity, we regulaté amonitor our Trading Permit Holders' trading aiti&s by using both our employees
and third parties under regulatory services agre¢ésn&ee "Regulatory Agreements” below. Providiifigiciive regulation is important for
attracting and retaining the confidence and paxditton of market-makers, broker-dealers and irtgtital and retail investors.

We expend considerable time, financial resourceseffiort to ensure that the exchanges' rules agulatons conform to regulatory best
practices within the securities exchange industgyaithin the regulatory regime overseen by the SB( primary regulator. In order to
support our efforts and those of our market pandiots to comply with applicable law and our optiershange rules, we developed a
regulatory program to monitor market activity orr options exchanges and across U.S. options market.
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As part of the self-regulatory process, formal iileary matters are reviewed by our Business Coh@ommittee, which includes both
market participants and public representatives. EBC2 and CFE are participants in the Intermarkev&llance Group ("1ISG"). ISG is an
international information-sharing cooperative gaoest by a written agreement that provides for a gelmnsive surveillance sharing
arrangement. In addition to the agreement for cemifiial information sharing, the ISG provides arfeavork for the coordination of regulatory
efforts among exchanges trading securities, comiyndualiures and related products to address poténtexmarket manipulations and trading
abuses.

We collect certain fees derived from our regulatiomyction and fines in connection with our disaiglty proceedings. Under the rules of
each of our options exchanges, as required by & Sny revenue derived from the regulatory feesfames cannot be used for noggulatory
purposes.

Regulatory Agreements

CBOE and C2 have entered into agreements, somegnir® Section 17(d) of the Exchange Act, undeckvthird parties have agreec
perform regulatory services to our markets. Asused below, in certain instances, the third paaiyyassumed the regulatory responsibility
under Rule 17d-2, while in others, CBOE retainsrégulatory responsibility for the activities.

Regulatory Services Agreement with FINRA

On December 19, 2014, CBOE and C2 entered intgaement with the Financial Industry Regulatory ity ("FINRA") under
which FINRA agreed to start providing regulatoryvéges to CBOE and C2 on January 1, 2015. Undeagineement, FINRA will perform the
majority of the regulatory services for CBOE and CBOE and C2 remain responsible for the regulaticiheir marketplaces, and retain the
authority for bringing disciplinary actions agaitiséir Trading Permit Holders.

Rule 17d-2 Agreements

Section 17(d) of the Exchange Act and the relatechBnge Act rules permit SROs to allocate certegulatory responsibilities to avoid
duplicative oversight and regulation. Under ExcteAgt Rule 17d-1, the SEC designates one SRO thebBesignated Examining Authority
("DEA") for each broker-dealer that is a membemaire than one SRO. The DEA is responsible for ¢éigeilatory oversight of the financial
responsibility aspects of that broker-dealer. Wethe DEA for many of our members.

Exchange Act Rule 17d-2 permits SROs to enteragit@ements, commonly called Rule 17d-2 agreemehish are approved by the
SEC and concern the enforcement of rules applidatddl of those SROs and relating to members t1$5@s have in common. We have
entered into Rule 17d-2 agreements under which RIldéRallocated responsibility for enforcing certdé@deral securities laws and CBOE and
C2 rules that are common with FINRA rules, ruldatesl to options sales practices with respect t©@EBNnd C2 Trading Permit Holders and
insider trading rules. We have entered into othdeR 7d-2 agreements that allocate responsibdigreich SRO for ensuring that their allocatec
common members comply with rules governing expigrgrcise declarations, options position limits &Emde options position reporting and
position adjustments. Finally, we have entered inRule 17d-2 agreement that allocates certairoresipilities under Regulation NMS to a
market participant's DEA.

ORSA Plan

The SEC approved a national market system plan didneeOptions Regulatory Surveillance AuthorityrP{&ORSA Plan") with the
purpose of permitting the U.S. securities optiaxshanges to act jointly in the administration, @tiem and maintenance of a regulatory sy:
for the surveillance, investigation and detectibthe unlawful use of undisclosed, material infotima in trading in one or more of their
markets. Through the sharing of the costs of thegelatory activities and the sharing of the retpriainformation generated under the ORSA
Plan, the ORSA Plan is intended to enhance thetefémess and efficiency with which the exchangegitate their respective markets and the
national market system for options and to avoididapon of certain regulatory efforts. The ORSAlipp committee had delegated the
operation of the surveillance and investigativelitgoccontemplated by the ORSA Plan to CBOE. Thetanges also entered into a Regulatory
Services Agreement with CBOE, as service provigersuant to which CBOE performed certain regulatorg surveillance functions under
ORSA Plan and used its automated insider tradingesilance system to perform these functions orelfedf the exchanges. Effective January
1, 2015, the ORSA policy committee delegated theraon of the ORSA Plan facility to FINRA, and RN became the service provider
under the Regulatory Services Agreement.
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National Market System ("NMS") Plans
OPRA Plan, CTA Plan and NASDAQ Unlisted Trading Riieges Plan

Like all U.S. options exchanges, CBOE and C2 armbs exchanges in OPRA, a limited liability compahkie OPRA limited liability
company agreement sets forth a system for repooftigns information that is administered by thenmher exchanges through OPRA,
consisting of representatives of the member exab&m@PRA is the designated securities informatroegssor for market information that is
generated through the trading of exchange-listedréees options in the U.S., and it disseminates$ain core trading information, such as last
sale reports and quotations. We also participatedrConsolidated Tape Association, or CTA, thegatidated Quotation Plan, or CQ Plan,
and the NASDAQ Unlisted Trading Privileges Planjakhperform analogous services for the U.S. equitiarket. NYSE Technologies,
formerly the Securities Industry Automation Corgiara, acts as the "processor" for OPRA, CTA andGiePlan. NASDAQ acts as the
processor for the NASDAQ Unlisted Trading Plan.

Options Intermarket Linkage Plan

We are a party to the Options Order Protectionlaouked/Crossed Market Plan, known as the Optioteximarket Linkage Plan, which
is designed to facilitate the routing of ordersamstn exchanges in furtherance of a national maskstem. The principal purposes of the plan
are to promote price protection and to assurelittters may execute investors' orders at the badtenhprice, the "National Best Bid and
Offer" ("NBBQ"). The plan requires price protectiohan exchange's best displayed bid or offer wherbid or offer is at the NBBO. Under
the plan, direct exchange-to-exchange access thriougkerdealers is used to transmit intermarket sweep ssiarilar to sweep orders that
available in the stock market under Regulation NMBdisplayed bids and offers and bids and offerwiaes that are inferior to an exchange's
best bid or offer do not receive protection undiés plan.

Options Listing Procedures Plan and Symbology Plan

We are a party to the Options Listing Proceduras Rihich sets forth the procedures that the optéhanges must follow to list new
options. We are also a party to the National Mafigettem Plan for the selection and reservatioraofisties symbols.

Intellectual Property

We own or have rights to a number of intellectualpgerty assets, including trademarks, service maidsain names, trade names,
copyrights, trade secrets and patents. While thjenityaof our intellectual property is protectedder U.S. law, we have many intellectual
property assets protected by laws in Europe, Asibather parts of the world. We license some iatéllal property assets to other entities. We
attempt to protect our intellectual property righthile respecting the legitimate intellectual pedy rights of others.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014 , we employed 520 indiaisluOf these employees, 208 were involved in systgevelopment or operations,
124 were involved in direct support of trading @igms. The remaining 188 employees provide busideselopment, product development,
education, financial, regulation, human resourleggl, planning and research, administrative andagarial support.

We have eight building engineers that are coveyea tollective bargaining agreement, which expimeday 31, 2015, with the
International Union of Operating Engineers Loca® 38FL-CIO. Management believes that we have stretagionships with our employees
and we have never experienced a work stoppage.
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Executive Officers of CBOE Holdings

Set forth below is information regarding our ex@aibfficers and certain other key employees:

Name Age Position

Edward T. Tilly 51 Chief Executive Officer

Edward L. Provost 62 President and Chief Operating Officer

Alan J. Dean 6C Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officedal reasurer
Joanne Moffic-Silver 62 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Gatpd&ecretary
Gerald T. O'Connell 63 Executive Vice President and Chief Information €dfi

David S. Reynolds 61 Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Edward T. Tilly. Mr. Tilly is our Chief Executive Officer. He hagrved in that capacity since May 2013. Prior tooo@ng CEO, Mr.
Tilly served as President and Chief Operating @ffitom November 2011, and Executive Vice Chairfiam August 2006 until November
2011. He was a member of CBOE from 1989 until 2@0@l served as Member Vice Chairman from 2004 titrcwly 2006. Mr. Tilly serves
on the board of directors of the OCC. He holds/A&. Begree in Economics from Northwestern University

Edward L. ProvostMr. Provost became our President and Chief Opey&ifficer in May 2013. Prior to that, Mr. Provostrged as
Executive Vice President and Chief Business Devabt Officer. He served as the head of our Busibes®lopment Division since 2000 ¢
has been employed at the Company since 1975. His hdB.B.A. in Finance from Loyola University of i€ago and an M.B.A. from the
University of Chicago Graduate School of Business.

Alan J. Dean. Mr. Dean is our Executive Vice President, Chiefarcial Officer and Treasurer. He has servedan ¢hpacity since 19¢
and has been employed at the Company in the fiabaa since 1979. Mr. Dean serves on the boaddexftors of The Institute for
Transfusion Medicine. He is a certified public ametant, and he holds a B.S. degree in Accountiog Western lllinois University and an
M.B.A. from Northwestern University's Kellogg Graate School of Management.

Joanne Moffic-Silver. Ms. Moffic-Silver is our Executive Vice Preside@eneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary. Shedmasd in
that capacity since 1997 and has been employed aianey at the Company since 1980. She is cilyraimember of the executive
committee of the board of advisors of Northwesténiversity School of Law and a member of the Chadigtwork. Ms. Moffic-Silver
received her B.A. degree from the University of @¥dissin-Madison (Phi Beta Kappa). Ms. Moffic-Silwveceived her J.D. degree with honors
from Northwestern University School of Law.

Gerald T. O'Connell. Mr. O'Connell is our Executive Vice President &tdef Information Officer. He has served in thapacity since
1993 and has been employed at the Company sinee BH@gholds a B.S. degree in Mathematics from Lawiersity and a J.D. degree from
John Marshall Law School.

David S. Reynolds.Mr. Reynolds is our Vice President and Chief Agaating Officer. He has served in that capacity sifay 2009.
Prior to that, Mr. Reynolds was with Hudson HigtdaBroup, Inc., where he served in various rolekitting vice president, controller and
chief accounting officer. From February 2005 tofeelby 2007, Mr. Reynolds was vice president, cdigrand chief accounting officer of
Bally Total Fitness Corporation. Prior to that,dpent twenty-two years in various financial role€amdisco, Inc., rising to senior vice
president and controller. Mr. Reynolds began his@aat Ernst & Young. Mr. Reynolds is a certiffathlic accountant and a certified cash
manager. He is a graduate of Lehigh University wher obtained an M.B.A. and a B.S. in Finance.

Available Information

Our website is www.cboe.com. The Company files ahrmquarterly and current reports, proxy statemantsother information with the
SEC under the Exchange Act. The Company makesadgjlfree of charge, on its website its annuabntepn Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendsn@rthose reports filed or furnished pursuargéction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange
Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after sepbrts are electronically filed with, or furnishied the SEC. The Company's reports filed w
or furnished to, the SEC are also available orSfB€'s website at www.sec.gov.

In addition, we have posted on our website thetelafor our (i) Audit Committee, (ii) Compensati@ommittee, and (iii) Nominating
and Governance Committee, as well as our Code siBas Conduct and Ethics and Corporate Goverr@uitkelines. We will provide a coj
of these documents without charge to stockholdeos written request to Investor
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Relations, CBOE Holdings Inc., 400 South LaSalle&t Chicago, lllinois 60605. Our website and infation included in or linked to our
website are not part of this Form 10-K.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks and uncertainties described below arsettioat we believe are material at this time. This&s and uncertainties, however, are
not the only risks and uncertainties that we féaiitional risks and uncertainties not currentiyolum to us or that we currently deem to be
immaterial may also significantly impact us. Anytbése risks and uncertainties may materially atvesely affect our business, financial
condition or results of operations, liquidity arakh flows.

Risks Relating to Our Business
Loss of our right to exclusively list certain indepptions and futures could have a material adveeféect on our financial performance

We hold exclusive licenses to list securities indpkons on the S&P 500 Index, the S&P 100 Index e DJIA, granted to us by the
owners of such indexes and have developed ouriptapr VIX methodology. In 2014 , approximately 8% of our transaction fees were
generated by our futures and index options, thevavelming majority of which were generated by oxclasively-licensed products and
products based on the VIX methodology. The bulthidf revenue is attributable to our S&P 500 Indptians and VIX Index options and
futures. As a result, our operating revenues aperident in part on the exclusive licenses we hmidifese products and our ability to maintain
our exclusive VIX methodology.

There is a risk, with respect to each of our curestlusive licenses, that the owner of the indey mot renew the license with us on an
exclusive basis or at all. In the first event, wewd be subject to multiple listing in the tradiofjwhat is now an exclusive index product, wt
could result in a loss of market share and nedgatiwgpact our profitability. In the second eveng would lose the right to list the index prod
entirely. The loss or limited use of any of ourlesive index licenses, especially for the S&P 58delx, for any reason could have a material
adverse effect on our business and profitabilige Business—Products—Strategic Relationshipsa fiiscussion of these licenses and their
expiration dates.

In addition to the risks related to our exclusiemhses, if we are unable to retain our proprietafyts in the VIX methodology, our
volatility products could be subject to multiplsting or loss of the ability to offer these produfdr trading, which could have a material
adverse effect on us.

In addition, the European Parliament has adopgidl&ion that requires European exchanges to geowon-discriminatory access to
benchmarks, like index options, and is consideaoihggr legislation that may impact the ability ofr&pean banks to trade our products. While
similar legislation has not been proposed in théddnStates, if it were passed, it could caus@usse our property rights in our internally
developed and licensed index products. The adaptidgproposed European legislation may limit oulitsttib expand our activities in Europe
while retaining our property rights, and may redtieevolume on our exchanges from internationalausrs.

Furthermore, our competitors may succeed in pragidi market for the trading of indésased or volatility products that are economic
similar to those that we offer. It is also possithlat a third party may offer trading in indbased products that are the same as those thie
subject of one of our exclusive licenses, but juresdiction in which the index owner cannot reguir license or in a manner otherwise not
covered by our exclusive license.

The value of our exclusive licenses to list se@sgitndex options also depends on the continudiyati index owners to require licens
for the trading of options based on their indexXdthough we and the index owners have prevaildégal actions challenging our rights to
exclusively license indexes, we may be subjectgall or other action taken in the future that migigede our ability to exclusively license
indexes.

We agreed with S&P that it may license one or nobearing agencies to clear OTC options based oS&f 500 Index that meet certain
criteria, and that S&P will compensate us for aayps$action cleared under such a license baseceamtional value of the transaction.
Although we expect these transactions to genemnaterinental revenue, the clearing of options orSikE 500 Index that are traded OTC could
lead to the migration to the OTC market of somddsathat today would be entered into on our exabsrand there can be no assurance that
the revenue gained will replace the revenue losttdwany migration.

Our business may be adversely affected by price petition.

The business of operating options exchanges iscteized by intense price competition, especiaiti respect to transaction fees. The
pricing model for trade execution for options hharged in response to competitive market condittamsour competitors have adjusted



transaction fees and fee structures accordingtjtidiing by opening new exchanges, which
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allow them to offer multiple pricing models thatcappeal to different segments of market partidipahhese changes have resulted in
significant pricing pressures on us, especiallyransaction fees for multiply-listed products. Aseault of these pricing pressures, our averag
rate per multiply-listed options contract has dasesl from $0.143 in 2012 to $0.092 in 2014. likisly that this pressure will continue and
even intensify as our competitors continue to seékcrease their share of trading by further réuyitheir transaction fees or by offering other
financial incentives to order providers and ligtyddroviders to induce them to direct orders tdrthearkets.

In addition, one or more competitors may engageggressive pricing strategies and significantlyrease or completely eliminate their
profit margin for a period of time in order to cag a greater share of trading volume. Some gud®riding firms on our exchanges have ta
ownership positions in options exchanges that ceenéh us and such exchanges have given those idded economic incentives to direct
orders to them.

Like nearly all of the other options exchanges, @ptions exchanges charge an options regulatorgrf@RF to Trading Permit Holders
based on the total number of customer contractsaieby that Trading Permit Holder, regardlessieféxchange on which the trade is
executed. Along with fines and other regulatomsfehe ORF revenues may only be used to supporegulatory functions. We may face
competitive pressures to further reduce or notiase the ORFs on our exchanges, and if we areaittabiaintain or, if necessary, increase
ORFs, our results of operation may be adversebcsdtl.

We could lose a substantial percentage of our sifarading if we are unable to price transactiona competitive manner. Also, our
profits could decline if competitive pressures ot to reduce fees. If any of these events oocumperating results and profitability could be
adversely affected.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and mag ubject to censures, fines and other legal pratiegs if we fail to comply with legal
and regulatory obligations.

CBOE and C2 are registered national securitiesangbs and SROs, and, as such, are subject to doengree regulation by the SEC.
CFE is a DCM registered with the CFTC and is sutiigcomprehensive regulation by the CFTC. Seeititss -- Compliance - Securities
Industry -- CBOE and C2" for information regardiogr ongoing regulatory responsibilities for CBSX.

In addition to the requirements related to opegatinr markets imposed by the SEC and the CFTC |seehave certain responsibilities
for regulating the TPHs that trade on our exchang#sle we have entered into agreements under WhiBIRA and other SROs with respect
to our options exchanges, and NFA with respecutdfutures exchange, provide certain regulatoryises, we retain responsibility for the
regulation of our Trading Permit Holders. See "Bass -- Regulatory Responsibilities."

Our ability to comply with applicable laws and rsiis largely dependent on the establishment andtarance of appropriate systems
procedures, our ability to attract and retain digalipersonnel, the ability of FINRA and NFA to fim under the regulatory services
agreements and our oversight of the work done BRI and NFA. The SEC and CFTC have broad powessitit, investigate and enforce
compliance and to punish honcompliance by SROHIS, respectively, pursuant to applicable lawggwand regulations.

If the SEC were to find one of our programs of eodément or compliance to be deficient, CBOE or 6@ be the subject of SEC
investigations and enforcement proceedings thatmesyit in substantial sanctions, including revimrabf an exchange's registration as a
national securities exchange. Any such investigatiar proceedings, whether successful or unsuaedesstild result in substantial costs, the
diversion of resources, including management tane, potential harm to our reputation, which cowd@éna material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations or financial camalitin addition, CBOE or C2 may be required to ifodr restructure their regulatory
functions in response to any changes in the regyl@nvironment, or they may be required to relythird parties to perform regulatory and
oversight functions, each of which may requireaistur substantial expenses and may harm ouragpntif our regulatory services are
deemed inadequate.

Although CBOE Holdings itself is not an SRO, CBOBItHngs is subject to regulation by the SEC of\atiéis that involve the
exchanges. Specifically, the SEC will exercise sigdt over the governance of CBOE Holdings andeitationship with CBOE and C2. See
"Regulatory Environment and Compliance—Regulatoegponsibilities."

If we are unable to execute the undertakings in t@ensent Order, it may have a significant adversgiact on our busines:

On June 11, 2013, CBOE and C2 entered into thee&i@rder with the SEC under which CBOE and C2 weresured, ordered to ce
and desist from violating certain sections of tlee8ities Exchange Act, paid a fine of $6 milliamdeagreed to complete certain undertakings.
These undertakings included conducting a revieaunfregulatory programs,
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enterprise risk management and business influemtesgulation; reviewing business practices to ensampliance with the rules of the
exchanges; and implementing training programs figoleyees. The Consent Order also requires on-gmntifications by CBOE and C2's
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Regulatory Offider five years.

We may be subject to additional investigationsrocpedings by the SEC if the SEC were to find #atid not fulfill our obligations
under the Consent Order. Any investigations or @edings, whether successful or unsuccessful, gesldt in substantial costs, the diversion
of resources, including management time, and pialeémdrm to our reputation, which could have a matadverse effect on our business
results of operations or financial condition.

A significant portion of our operating revenues generated by our transactic-based business. If the amount of trading volume our
exchanges decreases, or the product mix shiftsotwdr revenue products, our revenues from transactiees will decrease.

In 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , approximately 70.9% 4%Rand 69.7% of our operating revenues, respegfiware generated by our
transaction-based business. This business is deptod our ability to attract and maintain ordemf] both in absolute terms and relative to
other market centers. Our total trading volumedddecline if our market participants reduce theding activity for any reason, such as:

» areduction in trading by custome

» heightened capital requiremel

* regulatory or legislative actior

» reduced access to capital required to fund tradatiyities, o
» significant market disruptior

Over the past few years, a number of legislatit®as have been taken, both domestically and iat@nally, that may cause our
customers, including market makers, to be subgetttdreased capital requirements and additionalptiamce burdens. These actions, incluc
Basel Ill, Dodd-Frank and the Collins Amendmenbdd-Frank, may cause customers to reduce the nuofitades they make on our
exchanges.

In addition, the transaction fees generated aferdifit based on type of product and other factoctyding the type of customer and
certain volume discounts. See "Management's Digmussid Analysis -- Operating Revenuesverage revenue per contract.” If the amoul
our trading volume decreases, or the mix tradeftissioi our lower revenue per contract products,reuenues from transaction fees will
decrease. We can offer no assurance that we weuddble to reduce our costs to match the amoumyo$ach decrease.

Legislative or regulatory changes affecting thetbsl options market could have a material adverskeefon our business

Changes in regulation by the SEC, CFTC or otheeguwent action, including SEC approval of rulenfilé by other SROs or entities,
including OCC, could materially affect our markdtsrecent years, the securities and futures imaisshave been subject to significant
regulatory changes as a result of increasing govent and public scrutiny in response to the glelsahomic crisis.

In 2010, Congress passed the Dodd-Frank Act aret tebislation. While many of its requirements haeen implemented or are in the
process of being implemented, some of the provisiobodd-Frank that impact our markets requirdtamdal action by the SEC or the CFTC.
Depending on how the SEC and CFTC interpret andement these laws, exchanges like ours could besuio increased competition and
additional costs. We could also see reduced tragyngur customers due to margin or other requirégmplaced on them.

Under the Collins Amendment to the Dodd-Frank Atarting in 2015, U.S. banks are required to usevaapproach in order to compute
their risk weighted assets, which include exchatngded options and futures. This is expected teease the capital requirements for U.S. t
holding companies, and bank subsidiaries involvetthé trading and clearing of derivatives. Thesedased capital requirements may reduce
trading in options and futures due to bank-afdchbroker-dealers reducing their own trading, cadhgir customers more to trade or reducing
the type or number of customers.

In 2012, the SEC directed the self-regulatory oizitions to submit a plan to create, implementmaghtain a consolidated audit trail,
which would serve as a comprehensive audit tradlrdérs that will allow regulators to efficientlpé accurately track all activity in Regulation
NMS securities in the U.S. market. In additionrioreased regulatory obligations, implementatioa obnsolidated audit trail could result
significant additional expenditures, including toplement any new technology to meet any plan'sirepents. The SEC has also adopted
Regulation Systems Compliance and Integrity ("R€4"Sand established working groups of exchangdsedas on improving market
resiliency. Meeting the requirements of Reg
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SCI or other regulations or mandates generatetidsetworking groups could result in significantitiddal expenses, including for technolc
and compliance.

It is also possible that there will be additiorediklative and regulatory changes or efforts inehhéironment in which we operate our
businesses, although we cannot predict the nafuhese changes or their impact on our businegsatime. Actions on any of the specific
regulatory issues currently under review in the.du8l other proposals could have a material impactur business. For a discussion of the
regulatory environment in which we operate and psagl regulatory changes, see "Business—Regulatoriydament and Compliance."

In addition, Congress, the SEC and other regulaatiorities could impose legislative or regulatoiniganges that could adversely impact
the ability of our market participants to use owarkets, or participate in the options or futuregustry at all. Any such changes could result in
the loss of a significant number of market par@cis or a reduction in trading activity on our neask any of which could have a material
adverse effect on our business. Changes or prompbsedjes in regulation may also result in additionats of compliance and modification of
market participants' trading activity on our exohas

Intense competition could materially adversely affeur market share and financial performanc

We compete with a number of entities on severdédiht fronts, including the cost, quality and spe&our trade execution, functional
and ease of use of our trading platform, rangeuofpooducts and services, our technological inriomadnd adaptation and our reputation. We
compete with futures exchanges and swap execuiglities that offer comparable products and witl dver-the-counter market with respect
to our proprietary products. With respect to outtiply-listed products, our principal competitoneeahe ten other U.S. options exchanges. Se
the risk factor "Our business may be adverselycédfEby price competition.”

Most of the equity options and options on ETP&tsind traded on our exchanges are also listettaaheld on other U.S. options
exchanges. Changes we have implemented in respmosepetitive pressures may not be successfubiimtaining or expanding our market
share in those products in the future. Likewise,fature responses to these or other competitiveldpments may not be successful in
maintaining or expanding our market share.

Some of our competitors and potential competit@rgehgreater financial, marketing, technologicatspanel and other resources than we
do. These factors may enable them to develop similenore innovative products, to offer lower trackion fees or better execution to their
customers or to execute their business strategies quickly or efficiently than we can.

Furthermore, our competitors may:

» respond more quickly to competitive presst

» develop products that compete with our productsrempreferred by our custome
» develop and expand their technology and serviceriofis more efficienth

» provide better, more uséiendly and more reliable technolo

» take greater advantage of acquisitions, allianodsother opportunitie

* market, promote and sell their products and sesvicere effectively

» leverage existing relationships with customers atidnce partners more effectively or exploit braraes to market and sell tt
services; and

» exploit regulatory disparities between tradiigmegulated exchanges and alternative markedisidimg over-the-counter markets,
that benefit from a reduced regulatory burden amgbt-cost business model.

The derivatives industry has witnessed both thealation of exchange holding companies and tbatr in the number of exchanges,
with a doubling of the number of options exchangesr the past decade. Consolidation or alliancesngnour competitors may achieve cost
reductions or other increases in efficiency, whitdy allow them to offer better prices or servidemntwe do. The increase to the number of
competitors that we face may result in fragmentatibthe market and a reduced market share foexchanges.

If our products, markets, services and technolagynat competitive, our financial condition and g results would be materially
harmed. A decline in our transaction fees or asyg laf customers would lower our revenues, whichldvadversely affect our profitability. For
a discussion of the competitive environment in Wahie operate, see "Business—Competition."

We depend on third party service providers for eémtservices that are important to our business. Berruption or cessation of such
service by any third party could have a materiahagse effect on our busines
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We depend on a number of service providers, innmdlearing organizations such as the OCC andeétsiner clearing firms; securities
information processors such as the Consolidate@ Pagociation and OPRA, regulatory service provdarch as FINRA and NFA; the hos
our data center; and various vendors of commuioieatand networking products and services. Moreifspeaty:

e OCC is the sole provider of clearing on all af exchanges. If it were unable to perform cleasagiices, or its clearing members
were unable or unwilling to clear through OCC, sartions could likely not occur on our markets.

e« OPRA, UTP Securities Information Processor andXbesolidated Tape Association consolidate marKetimation to provide mark
and regulatory information. If one or both of themere unable to provide this information for a simsd period of time, we may be
unable to offer trading on our options markets.

» FINRA and NFA provide regulatory services for aptions and futures exchanges, respectively,ayiilmost cases, we retain
regulatory responsibilities for such services.INRA or NFA stopped providing services, or providaddequate services, we may be
subject to action by the SEC or CFTC, or may hawédtions placed upon our markets.

*  We are heavily dependent on technology for oarkets, including our data center, which is housed third party, and certain
communications and networking products and servi€disis technology is unavailable, and cannotdgg@aced in a short time period,
we may be unable to operate our markets.

We cannot provide assurance that any of thesegeoivill be able to continue to provide theseisewvin an efficient manner or that
they will be able to adequately expand their sewvito meet our needs. An interruption or malfumctioor the cessation of an important ser
by a third party could cause us to halt tradingdme or all of our products or our services, or enak unable to conduct other aspects of our
business. In addition, our inability to make altgive arrangements in a timely manner, or at allla have a material adverse impact on our
business, financial condition and operating results

We may not be able to protect our intellectual peoty rights.

We rely on patent, trade secret, copyright ancetrzatk laws, the law of the doctrine of misapprdpiaand contractual protections to
protect our proprietary technology, proprietaryerand futures products, index methodologies ahdrgiroprietary rights. In addition, we r¢
on the intellectual property rights of our licensar connection with our listing of exclusivelydigsed index and futures products. We and oul
licensors may not be able to prevent third pafti@® copying, or otherwise obtaining and using, iotellectual property without authorizatic
listing our proprietary or exclusively-licensed @éxdproducts without licenses or otherwise infrimgon our rights. We and our licensors may
have to rely on litigation to enforce our intellgak property rights, determine the validity andmeof the proprietary rights of others or defend
against claims of infringement or invalidity. Wedaour licensors may not be successful in this iikganch litigation, whether successful or
unsuccessful, could result in substantial costsstaliversion of our resources or a reduction inreuenues, any of which could materially
adversely affect our business.

Any infringement by us on patent rights of otherswld result in litigation and could have a materialdverse effect on our operatior

Our competitors, as well as others, have obtaioethay obtain, patents that are related to oumelclyy or the types of products and
services we offer or plan to offer. We may not i@ of all patents containing claims that may posisk of infringement by our products,
services or technologies. In addition, some papptications in the United States are confidentidll a patent is issued, and therefore we
cannot evaluate the extent to which our productksanvices may be covered or asserted to be coirepahding patent applications. Thus, we
cannot be sure that our products and services timfnimge on the rights of others or that otheil mot make claims of infringement against
us. Claims of infringement are not uncommon iniadustry. If one or more of our products, servioesechnologies were determined to
infringe a patent held by another party, we maydogiired to pay damages, stop using, developimgarketing those products, services or
technologies, obtain a license from the holdethefpatents or redesign those products, servicesbnologies to avoid infringing the patent.
If we were required to stop using, developing orkating certain products, our business, resultgpafrations and financial condition could be
materially harmed. Moreover, if we were unable ltain required licenses, we may not be able tosigdeour products, services or
technologies to avoid infringement, which could enally adversely affect our business, resultspsrations or financial condition.

Computer and communications systems failures anga&eity constraints could harm our reputation and pbusiness.

We operate, monitor and maintain our computer systend networks, including the systems that comZBOE Command, the
platform for trading on our exchanges. If we arahla to operate, monitor or maintain these systamisnetworks, or program them so that
they operate correctly and maintain the integrfttheir data, it could have a material
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adverse effect on our ability to conduct our businé\lthough we have a complete back-up of CBOEGIH, the back-up systems or disaster
recovery plans may prove to be inadequate in tkatesf a systems failure or cyber-security bre&@aspite the enhancements made to our
disaster recovery facilities, there can be no guees that we will be able to open an efficiermtngéparent and liquid marketplace, if we can
open at all.

In addition, we have extended the trading hour€BE for VIX futures, and expect to extend the tngdiours in 2015 for certain
products on CBOE. With extended trading hours, aseto operate our systems longer and have fewetrading hours to address any
potential concerns with the systems on which we rel

Our systems may fail, in whole or in part, or m@gxate slowly, causing one or more of the following
e unanticipated disruption in service to our partécits
» failures or delays during peak trading times oretnof unusual market volatili
» slower response times and delays in trade execatidrprocessin
» incomplete or inaccurate accounting, recordingrocessing of trades, a

» distribution of inaccurate or untimely market dedgarticipants who rely on this data in their tradactivity.

Any of these events may cause:
e aloss in transaction or other fees due to theilinato provide services for a tim

» requests by market participants or others trateimburse them for financial loss, either witthie constraints of the limited
liability provisions of our exchanges' rules oreixcess of those amounts,

« trading to diminish on our exchanges due to dis&atiion with the platform, ai

« one or more of our regulators to investigate oetekforcement action against

As a consequence of any of these events, our lassifieancial condition and results of operationsld suffer materially.

In addition to other measures, we test our systernsnfirm whether they will be able to handle aeipiated present and future peak
trading volume or times of unusual market volatilllowever, we cannot assure you that our estintdtagure trading volume will be accur:
or that our systems will always be able to accomat®adctual trading volume without failure or degttéah of performance.

We anticipate that we will need to continue to maigmificant investments in hardware, software aeicommunications infrastructure
to accommodate the increases in traffic. If we caimcrease the capacity and capabilities of ostesys to accommodate an increasing vol
of transactions and to execute our business strabeg ability to maintain or expand our businessesld be adversely affected.

The computer systems and communication networksmupdniich we rely may be vulnerable to security risksd other disruptions.

The secure and reliable operation of our compuyt&tesns, our communications networks and the systémsr service providers and
market participants, is a critical element of ope@tions. These systems and communications nefvnoaly be vulnerable to unauthorized
access, including the improper access of persom#htifiable information, malware and other setyuproblems, as well as to acts of terrori
natural disasters and other events that are beywndontrol. If our security measures are inadezjoaif there are interruptions or malfuncti
in our systems or communications networks, ourrmass, financial condition and operating resultdabe materially impacted. We may be
required to expend significant resources in theneg€any real or threatened breaches in securigystem failures, including to protect agains
threatened breaches and to alleviate harm caused agtual breach, and may suffer harm to our ajout and litigation. Measures we
implement for security and otherwise to providetfar confidentiality, integrity and reliability @fur systems may prove to be inadequate in
preventing system failures or delays in our systemmommunications networks, which could lower ingdvolume and have an adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and operatasyilts.

General economic conditions and other factors beglaur control could significantly reduce demand fawur products and services and
harm our business.

The volume of options and futures transactionstaadlemand for our products and services are Hiraffected by economic, political
and market conditions in the United States andaisee in the world that are beyond our controlludng:
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» broad trends in business and final

» concerns over inflation and wavering institutionaketail confidence leve

» changes in government fiscal and monetary polic/fareign currency exchange ra
» the availability of short-term and lorigrm funding and capit:

» the availability of alternative investment oppoiities;

« changes in the level of trading activity in undertyinstruments

» changes and volatility in the prices of securi

» the level and volatility of interest rat

» unforeseen market closures or other disruptionisanting; an

* concerns about terrorism and v

General economic conditions affect options andragurading in a variety of ways, from the avali#pbf capital to investor confidence.
The economic climate in recent years has been ctegized by challenging business, economic andigaliconditions throughout the world.
Adverse changes in the economy may have a negatpect on our revenues by causing a decline irirtgadolume. Significant declines in
trading volumes or demand for market data may lsavaterial adverse effect on our business, findnoiadition and operating results.

We may not be able to maintain operating revenuesigrated by making trading permits available in é&emnge for a fee.

The right to trade on our exchanges is made avaithbough trading permits for which the user payee. These fees account for a
significant portion of our operating revenues 6%.in 2014. CBOE charges the highest relative trading peratés in the options industry. \
may face pressure from our customers to lower trees or may see larger firms electing to use fexemits to access our exchanges. If the
demand for trading permits to our exchanges isttess historic levels or if we are unable to mam{zermit rates, our ability to generate
operating revenues through the granting of perfoittrading access would be negatively impactedcwbould adversely affect our
profitability.

Potential conflicts of interest between our *-profit status and our regulatory responsibilitieaay adversely affect our business.

As a for-profit business with regulatory responigibei, we are responsible for disciplining TPHs ¥olating our rules, including by
imposing fines and sanctions. This may create #icbaf interest between our business interests @ur regulatory responsibilities. Any failt
by us to fulfill our regulatory obligations coul@ysificantly harm our reputation, increase regutatecrutiny or cause the SEC or CFTC to take
action against us, all of which could adverselgeifiour business, results of operations or findaciadition.

Our compliance methods might not be effective andynresult in outcomes that could adversely affeat éinancial condition and operating
results.

As the parent company for SROs, we are responfblmaintaining exchanges that comply with secesitind futures laws, and SEC .
CFTC regulations and the rules of the respectiehamnges. Our ability to comply with applicable laavsl rules is largely dependent on our
policies and procedures designed to meet those l@mp responsibilities, as well as our abilityateract and retain qualified personnel
throughout the company. Our policies and procedurédentify, monitor and manage compliance riskg/mot be fully effective. Management
of legal and regulatory risk requires policies gnocedures to properly monitor, record and verifgrge number of transactions and events.
We cannot provide assurance that our policies anceplures will always be effective or that we liivays be successful in monitoring or
evaluating the compliance risks to which we arenay be exposed, or that our compliance and intendit functions would be able to ident
any such ineffectiveness. If these policies anagaares are not effective, we may be subject toetaoy or other penalties by our regulators.

If we fail to attract or retain highly skilled mangement and other employees, our business may benledt

Our future success depends in large part on ouagament team, which possesses extensive knowledig@anagerial skill with respe
to the critical aspects of our business. The faitorretain members of our management team cowlersely affect our ability to manage our
business effectively and execute our businessegtyat

Our business is also dependent on highly skillegleyees, especially those who provide specializedices to our clients and oversee
our technology functions. Many of these employemsetextensive knowledge and experience in highly
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technical and complex areas of the options tratglidgstry. Because of the complexity and risks a@ssed with our business and the special
knowledge required to conduct this business effelitj and because the growth in our industry hesegised demand for qualified personnel,
many of our employees could find employment at ofinms if they chose to do so, particularly if gl to continue to provide competitive
levels of compensation. If we fail to retain ourremt employees, it would be difficult and costyidentify, recruit and train replacements
needed to continue to conduct and expand our &ssihe particular, failure to retain and attracaliied systems personnel could result in
systems errors. Consequently, our reputation mayabmed, we may incur additional costs and ourifatofity could decline.

We may not effectively manage our growth, which tmaterially harm our business.

Over the past five years, we have demutualizedclaed a second options exchange, experiencedisarilf increased volume on our
futures exchange and extended trading hours ofutwres exchange, and plan to extend trading hious®X and VIX options. We expect that
our business will continue to grow, which may placgignificant strain on our management, persorsystems and resources. We must
continually improve our operational, financial aredulatory systems and managerial controls andegres, and may need to continue to
expand, train and manage our workforce. We mustrakintain close coordination among our technoleggounting, finance, marketing,
sales, regulatory and compliance functions. We achassure you that we will manage our growth eiffety. If we fail to do so, our business
could be materially harmed.

Our continued growth will require increased invesitinby us in technology, facilities, personnel, éindncial and management systems
and controls. It also will require expansion of poocedures for monitoring and assuring our compkawith applicable regulations, and we
will need to integrate, train and manage a grovengployee base. The expansion of our existing bese® any expansion into new businesse
and the resulting growth of our employee base indiease our need for internal audit and monitopragesses, which may be more extensive
and broader in scope than those we have historicaduired. We may not be successful in identifygngmplementing all of the processes that
are necessary. Further, unless our growth resulis increase in our revenues that is proportipriaater than or equal to the increase in our
costs associated with this growth, our operatinggma will be adversely affected.

Our ability to implement or amend rules could benlited or delayed because of regulation, which coulkefjatively affect our ability to
implement needed changes.

Our options exchanges registered with the SEC sulshit proposed rule changes to the SEC for iteweand, in many cases, its
approval. Even where a proposed rule change majffbetive upon filing with the SEC, the SEC retaiine right to suspend and disapprove
such rule changes. Also, the CFTC may stay or gigse rules that we file with it for CFE, our futisrexchange. The rule review process car
be lengthy and can significantly delay the impletagan of proposed rule changes that we believanacessary to the operation of our
markets. If the SEC or CFTC delays or does notatlae of our exchanges to implement a rule chathigecould negatively affect our ability
to make needed changes or implement businesstadivi

Similarly, the SEC must approve amendments to ptions exchange subsidiaries' certificates of iporation and bylaws as well as
certain amendments to the certificate of incorponaand bylaws of CBOE Holdings. The SEC may decioeto approve a proposed
amendment or may delay such approval in a managéctuld negatively affect our ability to make aided change, which could prevent or
delay us from improving the operations of our mésla@ recognize income from new products.

As one of the largest options exchanges in the wiahd the largest options exchange in the U.S.,ma&y be at a greater risk for a cyb
attack and other cyber security risks.

The frequency of cyber attacks is increasing iregain and various groups have specifically targétedinancial services industry due to
its perceived role in the economic and politicahelte. At the date of this filing, we have no evide of any cases of data theft, corruption or
destruction of data or compromised customer daaui®y breaches may have significant costs in sesfrcash outlays, business disruption,
revenue losses, internal labor, overhead and ettgnses. Measures we implement to monitor the@mwient and protect our infrastructure
against security breaches and misappropriatiouofraellectual property assets may prove insudfitj which could result in system failures
and delays that could cause us to lose marketpmatits, experience lower trading volume, incungigant liabilities or have a negative imp
on our competitive advantage.

Misconduct by our TPHs or others could harm

We run the risk that our Trading Permit Holdersieotpersons who use our markets or our employegengage in fraud or other
misconduct, which could result in regulatory samsi and serious harm to our reputation, espedielbause we are the parent company of
SROs. It is not always possible to deter miscondaurad the precautions we take to prevent and
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detect this activity may not be effective in alsea. In addition, misconduct by, or failures oftiggpants on our exchanges may discourage
trading on our exchanges, which could reduce res®nu

Changes in the tax laws and regulations affecting and our market participants could have a materadverse effect on our business.

Legislation has been proposed, both domesticalliyimternationally, that could change the way thatmarket participants are taxed on
the products they trade on our markets. The prdpasalude modifications to the taxation of finaagdroducts, including repealing the "60/40
Rule," which allows market-makers to pay a blendayital gains and ordinary tax rates on theirmeprequiring all derivatives to be marked-
to-market, eliminating the exemption for "qualifiedvered calls,” and the implementation of a tratisa tax. If the proposed tax law changes,
a transaction tax or other tax change that detriatigrimpacts options or futures trading were tadrae law, they could have a negative imj
on the options and futures industry and us by ngakimnsactions more costly to market participantsch may reduce trading.

The IRS has proposed new regulations under Segfid(m) that may require dividend tax withholding &osignificant number of
transactions completed by foreign persons. If ioppsed regulations are adopted, or unless significhanges are made to the regulations,
there may be a significant reduction in tradingdmgign persons, either by their choice or duertikérs refusing to trade options for such
persons.

In addition to proposed tax changes that wouldcaffer market participants, states are currentlgifgimg the apportionment factors on
which the taxes are based, and are becoming mgresgjve at asserting nexus over corporationsatieahot domiciled in the state. If these
state tax laws change, or if states are succeasigserting nexus against us, we may be subjégxés in additional states or at a higher
amount in the states in which we operate. If tisisuos, we may experience a higher marginal stateata.

If our risk management methods are not effectiveirdusiness, reputation and financial results mag kdversely affectes

We have methods to identify, monitor and managerisks. If our methods are not effective or we @moesuccessful in monitoring or
evaluating the risks to which we are or may be egdoour business, reputation, financial condiéind operating results could be materially
adversely affected. In addition, our insuranceqie$ may not provide adequate coverage.

We may selectively explore acquisition opporturstier strategic alliances relating to other business products or technologies. We may not
be successful in integrating other businesses, proid or technologies with our business. Any suchrtsaction also may not produce the
results we anticipate, which could adversely affest

We may selectively explore and pursue acquisitizth@her opportunities to strengthen our businagsgaow our company. We may
enter into business combination transactions, raakeisitions or enter into strategic partnershmst ventures or alliances, any of which may
be material. The market for acquisition targets sinategic alliances is highly competitive, whickutdd make it more difficult to find
appropriate merger or acquisition opportunitiesvédfare required to raise capital by incurring detissuing additional equity for any reason in
connection with a strategic acquisition or investtnéinancing may not be available or the termsuwafh financing may not be favorable to us
and our stockholders, whose interests may be diloyethe issuance of additional stock.

The process of integration may produce unforesegulatory and operating difficulties and expendituand may divert the attention of
management from the ongoing operation of our bssiaad harm the reputation of the companies. Wernoaguccessfully achieve the
integration objectives, and we may not realizeahtcipated cost savings, revenue growth and syeeeng full or at all, or it may take longer to
realize them than expected, any of which could tiegjg impact our results of operations, finanaahdition or the market price of our
common stock.

Any decision to pay dividends on our common stoglai the discretion of our board of directors anémends upon the earnings of ol
operating subsidiaries. Accordingly, there can be guarantee that we will pay dividends to our stbokders.

We have paid quarterly dividends since the reatriigg transaction and initial public offering andénd to continue paying regular
quarterly dividends to our stockholders. Howevay, decision to pay dividends on our common stodklve at the discretion of the board of
directors, which may determine not to declare dinids at all or at a reduced amount. The boardssrdetation to declare dividends will
depend upon our profitability and financial conalitj contractual restrictions, restrictions impobgdpplicable law and the SEC and other
factors that the board deems relevant. As a holdamgpany with no significant business operationgsodwn, CBOE Holdings depends
entirely on distributions, if any, it may receivern its subsidiaries to meet its obligations ang gigidends to its stockholders. If these
subsidiaries are not profitable, or even if they and they determine to retain their profits fog irstheir businesses, we will be unable to pay
dividends to our stockholders.
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Certain provisions in our organizational documentsuld enable the board of directors to prevent @lay a change of control.

Our organizational documents contain provisions ¢oald block actions that shareholders might fanebrable, including discouraging,
delaying or preventing a change of control or ansblicited acquisition proposals for us. Theseudelprovisions:

» prohibiting stockholders from acting by written semt
* requiring advance notice of director nominationd ahbusiness to be brought before a meeting aksimders; an
» limiting the persons who may call special stockeaftimeeting

In addition, our organizational documents includevjsions that:

e restrict any person from voting or causing théng of shares of stock representing more than 808&ur outstanding voting
capital stock; and

» restrict any person from beneficially owning sdaof stock representing more than 20% of thetandéng shares of our capital
stock.

Furthermore, our board of directors has the authtwiissue shares of preferred stock in one orenseries and to fix the rights and
preferences of these shares without stockholdenoapp Any series of our preferred stock is likedybe senior to our common stock with
respect to dividends, liquidation rights and, polysivoting rights. The ability of the board of dators to issue preferred stock also could have
the effect of discouraging unsolicited acquisitoposals, thus adversely affecting the markeepsfoour common stock.

Delaware law makes it difficult for stockholderstihave recently acquired a large interest in paration to cause the merger or
acquisition of the corporation against the diregtaishes. Under Section 203 of the Delaware Gé@mgoration Law, a Delaware
corporation may not engage in any merger or otheiness combination with an interested stockhdlutea period of three years following the
date that the stockholder became an interesteltaitoter except in limited circumstances, includingapproval of the corporation's board of
directors.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

Our principal offices are located at 400 South UESatreet, Chicago, Illinois 60605. Through ourolyowned subsidiary, Chicago
Options Exchange Building Corporation, we own théding in which our principal offices are locatadd occupy approximately 300,000
square feet of this building. In addition to ouingipal offices, we also lease additional officasp, approximately 10,000 square feet, which
includes our data center and remote network oersti

We believe the space we occupy is sufficient totrnae current and future needs.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

As of December 31, 2014 , the end of the periogtoay by this report, the Company was subject tov#nious legal proceedings and
claims discussed below, as well as certain othgal lproceedings and claims that have not been feiglved and that have arisen in the
ordinary course of business.

The Company reviews its legal proceedings and slaisgulatory reviews and inspections and otheal lpgpceedings on an ongoing
basis and follows appropriate accounting guidanieenamaking accrual and disclosure decisions. Thepgaoy establishes accruals for those
contingencies where the incurrence of a loss ibalste and can be reasonably estimated, and weskstie amount accrued and the amou
a reasonably possible loss in excess of the amamentied, if such disclosure is necessary for manitial statements to not be misleading. The
Company does not record liabilities when the liketid that the liability has been incurred is prdbabut the amount cannot be reasonably
estimated, or when the liability is believed tody reasonably possible or remote. The Compasgessment of whether a loss is reasonably
possible or probable is based on its assessméme altimate outcome of the matter following alpapls.
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As of December 31, 2014he Company does not believe that there is ansdide possibility that any material loss exceediregamount
already recognized for these reviews, inspectioradteer legal proceedings, if any, has been incuiéhile the consequences of certain
unresolved proceedings are not presently deterr@nti®e outcome of any litigation is inherently antain and an adverse outcome from ce
matters could have a material effect on our eamin@ny given reporting period. However, in thénam of management, the ultimate liabil
is not expected to have a material effect on marfcial position, liquidity or capital resources.

Patent Litigation

ISE -- QRM

On November 12, 2012, CBOE brought suit againgtriational Securities Exchange, LLC ("ISE") in theited States District Court for
the Northern District of Illinois alleging that ISEfringes three of its patents (United States Rdtos. 7,356,498; 7,980,457; and 8,266,044
(the “QRM patents”)) related to quote risk monif@RM") technology. CBOE has requested injunctiekef and monetary damages. On
February 20, 2013, the court ruled that the cadednsferred to the United States District Courttfee Southern District of New York. On
October 31, 2013, the court stayed the litigatienging resolution of Covered Business Method ("CBRtent Reviews at the United States
Patent and Trademark Office ("USPTQ") that ISE petitioned for. On March 4, 2014, the USPTO in&ithCBM Patent Reviews on CBQE’
three QRM patents. In the CBM Patent Reviews, 18&dileged that CBOE's three QRM patents are idy@cause they are directed to
subject matter that is not eligible for patent potion. On May 22, 2014, the USPTO instituted IiRarties Review (“IPR"Proceedings, whic
ISE had petitioned for, on some but not all claoshsvo of CBOE’'s QRM patents (United States Patéos. 7,356,498 and 7,980,457). In the
IPR Proceedings, ISE has alleged that claims ofdiM@BOE’s QRM patents are invalid because they are dird¢otedbject matter that is eitt
anticipated or obvious in view of the prior art.tBéhe CBM Patent Reviews and IPR Proceedingsdjteli@ated by the Patent Trial and
Appeal Board of the USPTO.

Lanier Litigation

On May 23, 2014, Harold R. Lanier sued 14 secusrigechanges, including CBOE, in the United Statisribt Court for the Southern
District of New York on behalf of himself and a ptive class consisting of all persons in the UnB¢ates who entered into contracts to rec
market data through certain data plans at any simee May 19, 2008 to the present. The compldieges that the market data provided unde
the CQ Plan and CTA Plans was inferior to the tlzathe exchanges provided to those that direetigive other data from the exchanges,
which the plaintiffs allege is a breach of theiuBscriber contracts” and a violation of the exclem@bligations under the CQ and CTA Plans.
The plaintiffs seek monetary and injunctive reli€n May 30, 2014, Mr. Lanier filed two additiorsalits in the same Court, alleging
substantially the same claims and requesting stme types of relief against the exchanges wiiipate in the UTP and the OPRA data
plans. CBOE is a defendant in each of these sitde C2 is only a defendant in the suit regardimg OPRA Plan.

Other

As a self-regulatory organization under the jutidn of the SEC, with respect to CBOE and C2, asd designated contract market
under the jurisdiction of the CFTC, with respecCi6E, we are subject to routine reviews and inspestby the SEC and the CFTC.

We are also currently a party to various otherllpgaceedings in addition to those already mentioméanagement does not believe that
the outcome of any of these other reviews, inspastor other legal proceedings will have a matémaact on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skbolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Unrestricted Common Stock

The Company's unrestricted common stock is listethe NASDAQ Global Select Market under the tradsgghbol CBOE. As of
January 30, 2015, there were approximately 172emsldf record of our unrestricted common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesgbrices by quarter for shares of our unrestrictedmon stock as reported on
NASDAQ and cash dividends declared per qua

Cash

Price Range Dividends
Declared
Calendar Period High Low per Share
2013
First Quarter $ 36.9¢ $ 29.7¢ % 0.1t
Second Quarter 47.1% 35.7¢ 0.1t
Third Quarter 51.1zZ 44.4¢ 0.1¢
Fourth Quarter (1) 54.7¢ 44.8¢ 0.6¢
2014
First Quarter 59.2¢ 48.2: 0.1¢
Second Quarter 56.9¢ 46.8¢ 0.1¢
Third Quarter 56.3¢€ 46.5: 0.21
Fourth Quarter 65.3¢ 52.9( 0.21
2015
Through February 11, 2015 (2) 68.0( 60.9¢ 0.21

(1) On December 10, 2013, the Company's board of direceclared a special cash dividend of $0.50 lpenes The dividend was paid
on January 17, 2014 to stockholders of recordaatliise of business on January 3, 2014.

(2) On February 4, 2015, the Company's board of directeclared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.21spare. The dividend is payable
on March 20, 2015 to stockholders of record atcthse of business on February 27, 2015.

Dividends

Each share of unrestricted common stock, includistricted stock awards, and restricted stock imigstitled to receive dividend and
dividend equivalents, respectively, if, as and wtealared by the board of directors of the Company.

The Company’s expectation is to continue to payddinds. The decision to pay a dividend, howevenaias within the discretion of our
board of directors and may be affected by variagsoirs, including our earnings, financial conditioapital requirements, level of indebtedn
and other considerations our board of directorsrderelevant. Future debt obligations and statupooyisions, among other things, may limit,
or in some cases prohibit, our ability to pay dérids.

As a holding company, the Company's ability to dexland continue to pay dividends in the futurdawéispect to its common stock will
also be dependent upon the ability of its subsielaio pay dividends to it under applicable corpmtaw.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
Not applicable.
Use of Proceeds

Not applicable.
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

The table below shows the purchases of equity &by the Company in the three months ended mbee 31, 2014 , reflecting the
purchase of unrestricted common stock under thegaogis share repurchase program:

Total Number of

Total Shares Purchased Approximate Dollar Value of
Number of Average as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet Be

Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans
Period Purchased per Share or Programs or Programs (1)
October 1, 201— October 31, 2014 248,300 $ 55.7¢ 248,300 $ 104,535,51
November 1, 201- November 30, 2014 111,50( 60.52 111,50( 97,787,57
December 1, 201- December 31, 2014 129,70( 62.7¢ 129,70( 89,647,75
Totals 489,50 $ 58.6¢ 489,50

(1) In 2011, the board of directors approved atimirauthorization for the Company to repurchasares of its outstanding unrestricted
common stock of $100 million and approved additieahorizations of $100 million in each of 201213 and 2014 for a total
authorization of $400 million. The program perntits Company to purchase shares through a varietettiiods, including in the
open market or through privately negotiated tratisas, in accordance with applicable securitiesslalivdoes not obligate the
Company to make any repurchases at any specifedinsituation.

The Company purchased 248 shares of unrestricredhon stock at an average price of $54.42 in theethmonths ended December 31,
2014 to satisfy employees' tax obligations uporvéisting of restricted stock. These purchases natrpart of the publicly announced
repurchase program.

Stockholder Return Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative togalim provided to stockholders on our unrestrici®ehimon stock since our initial
public offering against the return of the S&P Midet00 Index and a customized peer group that iesl@@ME Group Inc., Intercontinental
Exchange Inc., The NASDAQ OMX Group Inc. and CBO&dinhgs.

An investment of $100, with reinvestment of allidends, is assumed to have been made in our untedtcommon stock, the index and
the peer groups on June 15, 2010, and its perfarenartracked on a annual basis through Decemhet(34 .
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Comparison of Cumulative Total Return of the
Company, Peer Groups, Industry Indexes and/or Broadarkets

COMPARISON OF 54 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among CBOE Holdings, Inc., the S&P Midcap 400 Index
and a Peer Group

250
200
| 30
100
50
0 T T T T I
06/15/10 1231710 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/13 12/31/14
—a— (BOE —a— S&P Mideap 400 —¥F— Peer Group
* $100 invested on 6/15/10 in stock or 5/31/M@ndex, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
Copyright© 2014 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hilbmpanies Inc. All rights reserved.
6/15/2010 (1 12/2010 12/2011 12/2012 12/2013 12/2014
CBOE Holdings, Inc. 10¢ 70.9¢ 81.6¢ 97.2¢ 175.8( 217.6¢
S&P Midcap 400 10¢ 119.9¢ 117.¢ 138.91 185.5: 203.6¢
Peer Group 10¢ 101.4: 89.7¢ 96.8: 164.2¢ 182.1¢
(1) Reflects the date of the Company's initial prbffering.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table shows selected financial détthe Company that should be read together withnéggment's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtiems" and the Consolidated Financial Statememdscarresponding notes included in
Items 7 and 8, respectively, of this Form 10-K:

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Income Statement Data:

Total operating revenues $ 617,228 $ 572,05( $ 512,33¢ $ 508,14: $  437,10:
Total operating expenses 303,42: 286,23t 268,24: 266,51: 269,76:
Operating income 313,80: 285,81« 244,09 241,63: 167,34
Total other expense (4,109 (2,15¢) (1,54¢) (1,54¢) (2,71%
Income before income taxes 309,69 283,65t 242,55: 240,08 164,62:
Income tax provision 119,98 107,65 85,15¢ 100,67¢ 65,22"
Net income $ 189,71 $ 17599¢ $ 157,39! $ 139,40t $ 99,39¢
Net income allocated to common

stockholders $ 188,39: $ 173,861 $ 15525« $ 136,58: $ 98,16¢

Net income per share allocated to common
stockholders (1)

Basic $ 221 % 1.9¢ $ 1.7¢ $ 152 $ 1.0
Diluted 2.21 1.9¢ 1.7¢ 152 1.0¢
Cash dividends per share paid on Class A
B Common Stock — — — — 1.2t
Cash dividends declared per share (2) (3) 0.7¢ 1.1¢€ 1.2¢ 0.44 0.2C
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 383,90 $ 441,58¢ $ 338,85¢ $ 327,86¢ $ 254,11.
Total liabilities 133,83: 157,07: 99,73¢ 91,59¢ 78,23t
Total stockholders'/members' equity 250,06 284,51° 239,12: 236,27( 175,87
Average daily volume by product (4)
Equities 1,93¢ 1,721 1,97 2,04¢ 2,27:
Indexes 1,61: 1,47¢ 1,215 1,271 1,071
Exchange-traded products 1,507 1,35¢ 1,247 1,462 1,09%
Total options average daily volume 5,05¢ 4,55¢ 4,441 4,781 4,441
Futures 201 15¢ 96 48 17
Total average daily volume 5,26( 4,71% 4,531 4,82¢ 4,45¢
(1) Net income per share allocated to common stock®idecalculated by dividing net income for eachhaf periods as if th

restructuring transaction had occurred at the lméginof the year ended December 31, 2010.

(2) On December 11, 2012, the Company's boardectdrs declared a special cash dividend of $petsshare. This was in addition to
the quarterly cash dividends which aggregated $0es4hare for the year ended December 31, 2012.

3) On December 10, 2013, the Company's boardectdrs declared a special cash dividend of $fpd&Gshare. This was in addition to
the quarterly cash dividends which aggregated $peB&hare for the year ended December 31, 2013.

4 Average daily volume equals the total contractdeidaduring the period divided by the number ofitrgdiays in the perio
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations
General

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financ@idition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") shoble read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements of the Comzand the notes thereto included in Item 8 of Ariaual Report on Form 10-K. The
following discussion contains forwelooking statements. Actual results could diffetenially from the results discussed in the forward-
looking statements. See "Risk Factors" and "Forwamdking Statements" above.

Overview

CBOE Holdings, Inc. is the holding company for Gigo Board Options Exchange, Incorporated, CBOErEstlExchange, LLC, C2
Options Exchange, Incorporated and other subsadiari

The Company's principal business is operating msutkat offer for trading options on various mariketexes (index options), mostly on
an exclusive basis, and futures contracts, asagedin non-exclusive "multiply-listed" options, swhoptions on the stocks of individual
corporations (equity options) and options on othathange-traded products (ETP options), such asaege-traded funds (ETF options) and
exchange-traded notes (ETN options). The Compaeyabgs three stand-alone exchanges, but reponteshkts of its operations in one
reporting segment.

CBOE is our primary options market and offers tngdi listed options through a single system thtggrates electronic trading and
traditional open outcry trading on our trading fidm Chicago. This integration of electronic tragliand traditional open outcry trading into a
single exchange is known as our Hybrid trading rhadEE, our all-electronic futures exchange, offieasling of futures on the VIX Index and
other products. C2 is our all-electronic excharige &lso offers trading for listed options, and ropgrate with a different market model and
fee structure than CBOE. All of our exchanges ojgena our proprietary technology platform knowrnC&0OE Command.

Business Trends

» Transaction fees accounted for 70.9% , 69.4%68nd% of total operating revenues for the yeaedrdecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and
2012 , respectively.

« Index options and futures contracts accounte®@fd8% , 78.8% and 67.7% of our transaction feeshfe year ended December 31,
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

»  Our share of total exchange-traded options eatdrfor the year ended December 31, 2014 was 29@%Fom 27.9% and 27.8% in
2013 and 2012, respectively.

e Operating expenses were 49.2% , 50.0% and 52@%otal operating revenues for the years endeceinber 31, 2014 , 2013 and
2012 , respectively.

» Employee costs, representing our largest expesisgory, were 19.7% , 20.6% and 20.3% , of wyparating revenues for the years
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , resphctiv

» In December 2014, we entered into an agreemehtthét Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("HRA") to provide a majority of
regulatory services to the CBOE and C2 options etarkVe do not expect revenue generated from regyléees to be materially
impacted by the agreement with FINRA. As a restthis agreement, we will experience a shift in@xges from employee costs to
outside services.

Business Strategy
We believe that the derivatives industry, especiéié listed options and futures industry, hasifigant growth potential, including

through new participants and products. We expefitrtber expand our business and increase our vegeand profitability by pursuing the
following growth strategies:

* We intend to continue developing innovative projanig products that meet the needs of the derivaiivdustry, both through strateg
relationships and internal development.



We intend to continue our efforts to expandubke of our products internationally. At the cordhaft effort is extending trading hours
in our exclusive options and futures products.

We have designed our fee schedule to provide@o@ benefits to market participants that con@attheir overall trading activity at
our exchanges.
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 We intend to continue to enhance our tradingfgia by continuing to invest in hardening and aegitimg the functionality and
capacity of our trading systems.

* We seek to attract participants from the overtbunter market, through customizing options peatg&land through offering products
similar to those traded over-the-counter.

» We evaluate strategic opportunities that we beligMeenhance stockholder valt
Components of Operating Revenues
Transaction Fees

The primary and largest source of operating reveiigansaction fees. Transaction fees are aibmof many variables with the main
three being: (1) exchange fee rates; (2) tradifngme mix (products traded); and (3) transaction b@iween order type. Because transaction
fees are assessed on a per contract basis, tians@e revenue is highly correlated to the volwheontracts traded on the Company's
exchanges. While exchange fee rates are establishédd Company, trading volume and transactionanéinfluenced by a number of factc
including price competition, price volatility ingrunderlying securities and national and intermai@conomic and political conditions.

Revenue is recorded as transactions occur on e-tfai® basis. The main products we trade are edpityx and ETP options and futures
contracts.

» Equity options reflect trading in options contraststhe stocks of individual compani
» Index options reflect trading in index options qants on market index

» ETP options include ETF options that are optiondaskets of stocks designed to generally tradkdex, but which trade like
individual stocks, and ETN options that are optionssenior, unsecured, unsubordinated debt sexiisued by an underwriting
bank.

» Futures contracts are standardized, transferakhange-traded contracts that require delivésyammaodity, bond, currency, stock
index or other benchmark interests at a specifiek @nd on a specified future date, which ardezbth cash.

The Company believes that the number of investasuse options represents a growing proportidhefotal investing public and that
the increasing use of options represents a lomg-teand that will continue in the future. Furthemmowe believe significant opportunities exist
to expand the use of options by both instituticarad professional investors and for the migratioaativity from the over-th@ounter market t
exchanges.

While there is no certainty, we expect that thaustdy-wide and Company-specific factors that ctmiied to past volume changes will
continue to contribute to future volume changesweler, additional factors may arise that could @ispact trading volume which may result
in increases or decreases in our trading volunth as new or existing competition, or other eve@tmsidering these factors, we do not ex
past trading volumes to be an indicator of futuaeling volume.

Access Fees

Access fees represent fees assessed to Trading Peiders for the opportunity to trade, includifeges for trading-related functionality,
on CBOE, C2 and CFE. The CBOE program containsrebaised market-maker appointment system withreiffietrading permits based on
trading function and, in the case of market-makties assessment of a surcharge for certain CBOfriptary products. Beginning in mid-
2013, CBOE implemented sliding scales for all Méuldaker and Floor Broker Trading Permits held bijliated Trading Permit Holders and
TPH Organizations that are used in any optionsselsther than certain proprietary indexes. Thebrurof trading permits made available is
limited.

Exchange Services and Other Fees

To facilitate trading, the Company offers technglsgrvices, terminal and other equipment rentadéntanance services, trading floor
space and telecommunications services. Trading od equipment rentals are generally on a monthdoth basis. Facilities, systems
services and other fees are generally monthly &sedh, although certain services are influenceddaujrtg volume or other defined metrics,



while others are based solely on demand.
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Market Data Fees

Market data fees represent income derived frons#ifie of our transaction information through thei@m Price Reporting Authority
("OPRA") and primarily through our subsidiary, MatlData Express, LLC ("MDX"). Through MDX, we saiktorical options data, as well as
real-time data for certain proprietary products anttkxes. It also provides market data through CEBBDEaming Markets, a high-availability,
low latency streaming data feed. OPRA is a limltelility company consisting of representativeshed member exchanges, including CBOE
and C2, authorized by the SEC to provide consdillaptions information. OPRA gathers market daimfrarious options exchanges,
including CBOE and C2, and, in turn, disseminatésdata to third parties who pay fees to OPRActeas the data. Revenue generated by
OPRA from the dissemination of market data is stharmmong OPRA members according to the number alf ¢tdared options transactions by
each of the member exchanges as calculated eadieq@PRA is not consolidated with the Company.

Regulatory Fees

Regulatory fees are charged to Trading Permit Helgresupport of our regulatory responsibilitiessal-regulatory organizations under
the Exchange Act. Regulatory fees include an OptRegulatory Fee under which fees are based ostiydwide customer volume of Trading
Permit Holders and designated examining authoeigg ffor certain Trading Permit Holders. This sowfoevenue could decline in the future if
the number of customer contracts executed by Tgadarmit Holders declines and rates are not inetkas are decreased or if our costs to
perform our regulatory responsibilities stabilizedecrease.

The SEC requires that the revenues derived fromaioeof the fees from our regulatory functions, goofi which are included in this
revenue category, and regulatory fines must be fsse@gulatory purposes. Expenses related toegulatory functions are included in our
operating expenses, mainly in employee costs atsideuservices.

In December 2014, we entered into an agreementthgtfrinancial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FIMR) to provide certain
regulatory services to the CBOE and C2 options etarkAdditionally, CBOE entered into a separateagrent with FINRA, under which it
assigned to FINRA the responsibility to performutadory services for the Options Regulatory Sufarite Authority ("ORSA"). FINRA beg:
performing the services on January 1, 2015.

Other Revenue
The following sub-categories are the sources ofmae within this category:

* Revenue generated through various licensing agnegst

* Revenue generated through regulatory servioeeagents with other options exchanges (in 2015, ileavlonger generate
revenue from these regulatory service agreements);

» Revenue derived from fines assessed for rule vwola.
* Revenue generated through our order routing cdeeadnd position transfer fi
* Revenue associated with advertisements througlkarporate web siteyww.cboe.com
» Revenue generated from courses and seminars offexatgh CBOE's Options Institu
* Rental of commercial space in the lobby of ourding); anc
»  Other sources of reveni
Components of Operating Expenses
Most of our expenses do not vary directly with adpsin our trading volume except royalty fees aadihg volume incentives.

Employee Costs

Employee costs are our most significant expenseararhade salaries and benefits, stock-based conapiens incentive compensation,
severance and employer taxes. Salaries and beregfitssent our largest expense category and telnel doiven by both our staffing
requirements and the general dynamics of the empoy market. Stock-based compensation is a nonecgsnse related to equity awards.



Stock-based compensation can vary depending ofquiduetity and fair value of the award on the datgraht and the related service
period.

Depreciation and Amortization
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Depreciation and amortization expense results ffrdepreciation of long-lived assets purchasedtamadmortization of purchased and
internally developed software.

Data Processing

Data processing expense consists primarily of aetdsed to the maintenance of computer equipmeppiarting our system architecture,
circuits supporting our wide area network, supparproduction software, fees paid to informati@ndors for displaying data and off-site
system hosting fees.

Outside Services

Outside services consist primarily of consulting/gees, which include: the supplementation of staffactivities primarily related to
systems development and maintenance and legalateguand audit and tax advisory services.

Royalty Fees

Royalty fees primarily consist of license fees daidthe use of underlying indexes in our propmgtaroducts usually based on contracts
traded. The Company has licenses with the ownettseo8&P 500 Index, S&P 100 Index and certain o8&¥® Indexes, the DJIA, the
NASDAQ 100 and the Russell indexes. This categtay imcludes fees paid to market participants foleo flow that they direct or cause to
directed to our exchanges and fees related toitiseination of market data related to S&P indexes.

Trading Volume Incentives

Trading volume incentives consist of market linkagpenses incurred to send certain orders to ettedranges. If a competing exchange
guotes a better price, we route the customer's tod@at exchange and pay certain of the assataists. Regardless of whether the
transaction is traded at our options exchangegnder flow potential enhances our overall marlaifion and participation and provides cost
savings to customers.

Travel and Promotional Expenses

Travel and promotional expenses primarily condisgtdvertising, costs for special events, sponsprehindustry conferences, options
education seminars and travel related expenses.

Facilities Costs

Facilities costs primarily consist of expensestezgldao owned and leased properties including raatntenance, utilities, real estate taxes
and telecommunications costs.

Other Expenses
Other expenses represent costs necessary to soppaperations but are not included in the ab@tegories.
Other Income/(Expense)

Income and expenses incurred through activitiesideitof our core operations are considered nonatipgrand are classified as other
income/(expense). These activities primarily ineliicterest earned on the investing of excess aaslmaestments in other business ventures.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the Company's consolidated &izdistatements requires the Company to make estingand judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenutexpenses, and related disclosure of contingsetaand liabilities. On an ongoing basis, the
Company evaluates its estimates, including thdsgaekto areas that require a significant levgudfyment or are otherwise subject to an
inherent degree of uncertainty. The Company basesiimates on historical experience, observahtrerds in particular areas, information
available from outside sources and various oth&uraptions that are believed to be reasonable uhdaiircumstances. Information from these
sources form the basis for making judgments abfmitarrying values of assets and liabilities thay mot be readily apparent from other
sources. Actual amounts may differ from these egtisiunder different assumptions or conditions.



We have identified the policies below as critieabur business operations and the understandingrafsults of operations. The impact
of, and any associated risks related to, theseipslon our business operations is discussed thomtgManagement's Discussion and Anal'
of Financial Condition and Results of Operatioft a detailed discussion on the application of¢hend other accounting policies, see Nc
to our consolidated financial statements and rdlatges included elsewhere in this Annual Repotfform 10-K.
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Revenue Recognition

» Transaction fees revenue is considered earnex ting execution of the trade recognized on a idade basis and presented net of
applicable volume discounts. In the event liquiglitpviders prepay transaction fees, revenue isgrazed based on the attainment of
volume thresholds resulting in the amortizationhaf prepayment over the calendar year.

» Access fee revenue is recognized during the pexggdss is granted and assurance of collectalslipyavidec
» Exchange services and other fees revenue is remyduring the period the service is provis

» Market data fees from OPRA are allocated bageth the share of total options transactions clefmedach of the OPRA members
and is received quarterly. Revenue from our maitkéd services is recognized in the period the idgteovided.

» Regulatory fees are recognized primarily oradédate basi:
Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary diffeesrbetween the tax basis and book basis of essei&gabilities. The Company
accounts for income taxes under the asset anditiyaimiethod, which requires the recognition of dedel tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of the eventbdivatbeen included in the consolidated finant&kments. Under this method, deferred ta
assets and liabilities are determined based oditfezences between the book and tax basis of asaset liabilities using enacted tax rates in
effect for the year in which the differences arpeoted to be reversed. The effect of a changeiratas on deferred tax assets and liabilities i
recognized in the period that includes the enactrdate. The Company files tax returns for fedestate and local income tax purposes. A
valuation allowance is recognized if it is anti¢gzhthat some or all of a deferred tax asset map@aoealized.

If the Company considers that a tax position is ferldkely-than-not" to be sustained upon audit,dubsolely on the technical merits of
the position, it recognizes the tax benefit. Thenpany measures the tax benefit by determiningatgebt amount that is greater than 50%
likely of being realized upon settlement, presuntimag the tax position is examined by the appraégitiaxing authority that has full knowledge
of all relevant information. These assessmentdearomplex and require specific analysis to deteerttie impact of the position, as such the
Company often obtains assistance from externakadvi The Company considers the information aridesrat the percentage to apply as a
possible uncertain portion related to the positibmthe extent that the Company's estimates chantie final tax outcome of these matters is
different than the amounts recorded, such diffezemnill impact the income tax provision in the périn which such determinations are made
Uncertain tax positions are classified as curreyf when the Company expects to pay cash withimthe twelve months. Interest and
penalties, if any, are recorded within the prowisior income taxes in the Company's consolidatatéstents of income and are classified on
the consolidated balance sheets with the relaaddity for unrecognized tax benefits.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-@&porting Discontinued Operations and DisclosureBigposals of Components of an
Entity, an amendment to FASB ASC Topic 205, Pratentof Financial Statements and FASB ASC Top; B8operty, Plant and Equipmel
The update revises the definition of discontinupdrations by limiting discontinued operations reijngrto disposals of components of an
entity that represent strategic shifts that haventh have) a major effect on an entity's operati@nd financial results, removing the lack of
continuing involvement criteria and requiring distiaued operations reporting for the disposal oéguity method investment that meets the
definition of discontinued operations. The upddse aequires expanded disclosures for discontimpegations, including disclosure of pretax
profit or loss of an individually significant compent of an entity that does not qualify for diséonéd operations reporting. This ASU is
effective prospectively for fiscal years, and inteperiods within those years, beginning after Deloer 15, 2014. The Company has elected
early adoption of the guidance and does not beitewdl impact our consolidated balance sheetteshents of income, comprehensive incom
or cash flows.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-8&&venue from Contracts with Customeris standard outlines a single comprehensiv
model for entities to use in accounting for reveatising from contracts with customers and sup&sedost current revenue recognition
guidance, including industry-specific guidanceattdition, it provides guidance on accounting fataiae revenue-related costs including when
to capitalize costs associated with obtaining arfilling a contract. The guidance provides comganiith two implementation methods.
Companies can choose to apply the standard retrtbgplg to each prior reporting period presented fletrospective application) or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of iaity applying the standard as an adjustment tmffening balance of retained earnings of the
annual reporting period that includes the datenitiail application (modified retrospective applicet). This guidance is effective for annual
reporting periods
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beginning after December 15, 2016, including imbepieriods within that reporting period. Early apption is not permitted. The Company i
the process of evaluating this guidance, thougldevaot expect it will materially impact our constated balance sheets, statements of incom
comprehensive income or cash flows.

Results of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the yeded December 31, 2013
Consolidated Results

The following summarizes financial performancetfor year ended December 31, 2014 compared to 2013 .

Percent
2014 2013 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Total operating revenues $ 6172 % 5721 % 45.1 7.%
Total operating expenses 303.¢ 286.2 17.z2 6.0%
Operating income 313.¢ 285.¢ 27.¢ 9.8%
Total other expense (4.2 (2.2 1.8 90.2%
Income before income taxes 309.% 283.i 26.C 9.1%
Income tax provision 120.( 107.% 12.: 11.4%
Net income $ 189.7 % 176.C $ 13.7 7.8%
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 188.« % 173¢  $ 14.¢ 8.4%
Operating income percentage 50.8% 50.(%
Net income percentage 30.7% 30.8%
Diluted—net income per share allocated to common
stockholders $ 221 % 1.9¢

* Theincrease in total operating revenues wanaily driven by higher transaction fees and madadt fees. The increase in
transaction fees was primarily driven by an 11.6&sease in total volume in 2014 . We experiencddme growth across all
product categories. As reported by the OCC, toidlistry cleared options contract volume was 4l®hikontracts in 2014 , a 4%
increase from 2013 .

* The increase in total operating expenses wasguilly driven by higher employee costs, depreciatiod amortization, data
processing and royalty fees, partially offset byéo outside services. Employee costs reflect aratele stock-based
compensation expense and severance expense teldtedransition of regulatory services to FINRAe increase in royalty fe
primarily resulted from higher volume in licensedlgroprietary products.

» The increase in total other expense was prisndriven by an impairment charge of $3.0 milliotated to our investment in IPXI
Holdings, LLC ("IPXI"), partially offset by a redtion in equity losses in other investments.
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Operating Revenues

Total operating revenues for the year ended DeceSthe2014 increased $45.1 million , or 7.9% ,84 %2 million from $572.1 million
in the prior year. The following summarizes chanige®tal operating revenues for the year endedceber 31, 2014 compared to 2013 .

Percent
2014 2013 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Transaction fees $ 437.¢ % 3972 % 40.€ 10.2%
Access fees 59.: 61.C (1.7 (2.9%
Exchange services and other fees 38.C 37.5 0.7 2.1%
Market data fees 30.¢ 24.¢ 5.k 22.2%
Regulatory fees 37.1 36.7 0.4 1.2%
Other revenue 14.¢ 15.C (0.9 (3.)%
Total operating revenues $ 617.: $ 572.1 $ 45.1 7.5%

Transaction Fees

Transaction fees increased 10.2% to $437.8 miftiothe year ended December 31, 2014 , represei@ir@fo of total operating
revenues, compared with $397.2 million for the pyiear period, or 69.4% of total operating revendéss increase was largely driven by an
11.6% increase in trading volume, partially offisgta 1.2% decrease in the average revenue pemactrithe increase in trading volume was
across all product categories and the decreaseiage revenue per contract primarily resulted feosmift in volume mix and an increase in
volume based incentives. We believe volume acrospmduct segments increased year over year duatket volatility, increased use of our
proprietary products most directly tied to volagiland success in capturing market share. Traddhgmne is impacted by many factors,
including: macroeconomic events, market volatiliggulatory actions or considerations, availabititycapital, competition, pricing and numl
of trading days in the period.

Average revenue per contract, discussed in mogsl deflow, is impacted by our fee structure, whintiudes volume based incentive
programs, mix of products traded, the account {gpstomer, firm, market-maker, etc.) and the maimarhich a trade is executed (electronic,
open-outcry, etc.). The implementation of fee cleangvhich may increase or decrease our averageuesr contract, is primarily to ensure
that we are competitive in the options marketpkaee to ultimately improve and continue to driveasrflow to our exchanges. We cannot
predict the trading patterns of market participamsich may be based on factors outside our cqrtrdlwe can attempt to price our product
levels that are competitive in our market.

The following summarizes transaction fees by prodategory for 2014 compared to 2013 .

Percent
2014 2013 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Equities $ 372 % 40.€ $ (3.9 (8.5)%
Indexes 276.( 249.¢ 26.2 10.5%
Exchange-traded products 42.4 437 (1.3 (8.)%
Total options transaction fees 355.¢ 334.1 21t 6.4%
Futures 82.2 63.1 19.1 30.2%
Total transaction fees $ 437.8  $ 3972 § 40.€ 10.2%
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Trading Volume

The Company's average daily trading volume ("ADW3gs 5.26 million contracts in 2014 , up 11.6% canag with 4.71 million for
2013 . The Company experienced ADV increases aalbpsoduct categories. We continued to experiggrogvth in the trading of our
proprietary products, primarily SPX options, VIXtmms and VIX futures. For the year ended Decendie2014 as compared to the prior yea
period, we experienced increases in total volun@RX options, VIX options and VIX futures of 7.99%1.5% and 26.7% , respectively. Total
trading days in 2014 and 2013 were two hundrey-fifto.

The following summarizes changes in total tradinotume and ADV by product for 2014 compared to 2013

2014 2013 Volume ADV
Percent Percent
Volume ADV Volume ADV Change Change
(in millions)

Equities 488.¢ 1.94 433.¢ 1.72 12.6% 12.6%
Indexes 406.5 1.61 372.€ 1.4¢ 9.1% 9.1%
Exchange-traded products 379.% 1.51 341.( 1.3¢ 11.4% 11.0%
Total options contracts 1,274.% 5.0¢€ 1,147 4.5t 11.1% 11.1%
Futures contracts 50.€ 0.2C 40.2 0.1€ 25.%% 25.%
Total contracts 1,325.4 5.2€ 1,187.¢ 4.71 11.6% 11.6%

The following provides the percentage of volumepbyduct category for the year ended December 314 20d 2013 .

2014 2013
Equities 36.% 36.5%
Indexes 30.7% 31.4%
Exchang-traded products 28.€% 28.1%
Futures 3.8% 3.4%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

Average revenue per contract

The average revenue per contract was $0.330 in 2@b&crease of 1.2% compared with $0.334 in 2@0&rage revenue per contract
represents transaction fees divided by total cotgra

The following summarizes average revenue per contiaproduct for 2014 compared to 2013 .

Percent

2014 2013 Change
Equities $ 0.07¢ $ 0.09¢ (19.1%
Indexes 0.67¢ 0.67(C 1.23%
Exchange-traded products 0.117 0.12¢ (12.5%
Total options average revenue per contract 0.27¢ 0.291 (4.)%
Futures 1.62: 1.57( 3.4%
Total average revenue per contract $ 0.33C $ 0.33¢ (1.2)%

Factors contributing to the change in total averagenue per contract for the year ended Decenthet@® 4 compared to the same
period in 2013 included:

*  Product mi—We experienced a shift in overall product mix. Aseacentage of total volume, equities increasetbt8% from
36.5% , indexes decreased to 30.7% from 31.4% watndes increased to 3.8% from 3.4% . Equities sgmeour lowest average
revenue per contract, while index options and ggigenerate our highest options average revenuwmpgract and our highest
total average revenue per contract, respectively.
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» Rate structur— Our rate structure includes sliding scales, voldiseounts, volume incentive programs and caps es ds part
of our effort to increase liquidity and market shar multiply-listed options. Average revenue pentcact on multiply-listed
options (equities and exchange-traded productsedsed 19.1% and 12.5% , respectively. These dexseasulted primarily
from increases in volume-based incentives for tipeeducts. Average revenue per contract on futineeased 3.4% . The
increase was primarily due to fee changes impleaakimt 2014.

Access Fees

Access fees for the year ended December 31, 20&éated to $59.3 million from $61.0 million in tbemparable prior year period. The
decrease in access fees was primarily due to iivegpotograms for market-maker trading permits dadrfbrokers implemented in May 2013
and a reduction in the number of trading permits.

The demand for trading permits could be impactethhyket fluctuations that affect trading volume.

Exchange Services and Other Fees

Exchange services and other fees for the year ebdedmber 31, 2014 increased 2.1% to $38.0 mifliom $37.3 million in the
comparable period in the prior year. The increaas primarily due to increased demand for technomgyices, terminal and other equipment
rentals and certain services impacted by tradingme.

Market Data Fees

Market data fees increased 22.2% to $30.4 mill@rttie year ended December 31, 2014 from $24.9omith the prior year. Market da
fees represent income derived from OPRA as wah@afompany's market data services, which for de& gnded December 31, 2014 were
$15.0 million and $15.4 million , respectively, afiod the same period in 2013 , were $12.9 milliod 12.0 million , respectively. Income
derived from OPRA is allocated based on each exg#larshare of total cleared options transactions.Jompany's share of OPRA income fol
the period ended December 31, 2014 increased 88@2ftom 21.7% for the same period in 2013 as atre$an increase in the Company's
share of total cleared options transactions. Reygremerated from the Company's market data serwitgsh provide current and historical
options and futures data, increased $3.4 milli@sulting primarily from an increase in subscribengl rates for certain market data services.

Regulatory Fees

Regulatory fees increased 1.2% for the year enféd ® $37.1 million from $36.7 million in the samperiod in the prior year.
Regulatory fees are primarily generated by theomgtregulatory fee that we charge on all TradingrireHolder customer volume industry-
wide which increased compared to the prior peridek higher revenue attributed to volume was pdytatfset by CBOE and C2 lowering th:
respective options regulatory fee rates as of Augjud014, and a decrease in regulatory fees reddor other regulatory services, primarily
related to CBOE Stock Exchange, LLC ("CBSX"), whigased trading operations on April 30, 2014.

Under the rules of each of our options exchangess@uired by the SEC, any revenue derived fromlatgry fees and fines cannot be
used for non-regulatory purposes.

In December 2014, we entered into an agreementthétfrinancial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FIMR) to provide a majority of the
regulatory services to the CBOE and C2 options etarklhe Company does not expect revenue gendratedegulatory fees to be materially
impacted by the agreement with FINRA.

Concentration of Revenue

All contracts traded on our exchanges must be etetirough clearing members of the OCC. At Decer3heR014 , there were one
hundred seven Trading Permit Holders that are idlganembers of the OCC. Two clearing members adeaufior 46% of transaction and
other fees collected through the OCC in 2014 . fdwa largest clearing member accounted for apprateip 11% of transaction and other fees
collected through the OCC. No one Trading Permiteiousing the clearing services of the top twateg member firms represented more
than 42% of transaction and other fees collectealiih the OCC, for the respective clearing memhbe2014 . Should a clearing member
withdraw from CBOE, we believe the Trading Permitidter portion of that clearing member's tradingwitst would likely transfer to another
clearing member.

The two largest clearing members mentioned abaar the majority of the market-maker sides of taatisns at CBOE, C2 and at all of
the U.S. options exchanges. If either of thesericlganembers were to withdraw from the businessafket-maker clearing and market-
makers were unable to transfer to another cleamiember, this could create significant disruptiothi® U.S. options markets, including ours.
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Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased $17.2 millmm6,.0% , to $303.4 million for the year ended 2&b4n $286.2 million in the year ago
period, resulting from higher employee costs, deiptmn and amortization, data processing and tpyaks, partially offset by lower outside
services. Expenses decreased to 49.2% of totahtipgrevenues in the year ended 2014 compareds@ith?s in the same period in 2013 .

The following summarizes changes in operating egesffior the year ended December 31, 2014 compa 2@l .

Percent
2014 2013 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Employee costs $ 1217 % 1181 $ 3.€ 3.1%
Depreciation and amortization 39.¢ 34.t 5.4 15.7%
Data processing 19.2 17.¢ 1.3 7.2%
Outside services 32.C 34.t (2.5 (7.2%
Royalty fees 66.1 56.¢€ 9.t 16.€ %
Trading volume incentives 4.1 4.3 (0.2 (6.9%
Travel and promotional expenses 9.C 9.8 (0.9 (7.8%
Facilities costs 5.7 5.C 0.7 13.2%
Other expenses 5.7 58 0.2 2.7%
Total operating expenses $ 303< $ 286.2 $ 17.2 6.C%

Employee Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , employds wese $121.7 million , or 19.7% of total opergtmevenues, compared wi$i18.1
million , or 20.6% of total operating revenuesthi same period in 2013 . This represented anaseref $3.6 million , or 3.1%resulting fron
higher salaries of $3.6 million , driven primarlly annual pay adjustments, higher payroll taxe®0d5 million and higher health insurance
costs of $0.4 million , higher severance expensk2cf million , primarily due to transition of a joaty of regulatory services to FINRA, and
higher annual incentive compensation of $2.0 milliovhich is aligned with performance targets, ipliyt offset by lower stock-based
compensation expense of $5.2 million .

In December 2014, we entered into an agreementRMNRA to provide certain regulatory services te ®BOE and C2 options markets.
As part of the agreement, a significant numberusfregulatory staff, as well as certain systemf stgpporting our regulatory functions,
transitioned to FINRA resulting in a headcount itthn of over 100 employees. As a result of theioidn in headcount, we expect employ
costs to be lower in 2015.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by $5.4anito $39.9 million for the year ended Decembgr 3014 compared with $34.5
million for the same period in 2013 . The incremsdepreciation and amortization primarily resultesin increased capital spending to harden
and enhance our trading platform and operations.

Data Processing

Data processing expenses increased $1.3 milli¢i %2 million for the year ended December 31, 2€drpared with $17.9 million in
the prior-year period. The increase in data prongssxpenses is primarily due to higher costs tmdtvare and software maintenance.

Outside Services

Expenses related to outside services decrease&21t0 fillion for the year ended December 31, 20thf$34.5 million in the prior-year
period. The $2.5 million decrease is primarily dodower costs related to litigation, partially &6t by higher costs for contract programmers.
The Company received an insurance reimbursemetadal expenses of $1.5 million in 2013 .

In December 2014, we entered into an agreementRMNRA to provide certain regulatory services te ®BOE and C2 options markets.
As noted above, certain staff transitioned from EBO FINRA. As a result of the transition, costsflarmer employees in regulatory and
systems staff supporting our regulatory functiamtl,be included in outside services in 2015. A®ault, we expect outside services to be in



higher in 2015. We do not expect this change toltés a material increase in total operating exgamnin 2015.
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Royalty Fees

Royalty fees for the year ended December 31, 204ré $66.1 million compared with $56.6 million fbetprior year period, an increase
of $9.5 million . The increase is primarily duehigher trading volume in licensed and proprietagdoicts and an increase in royalty rates as
result of the amendment the Company executed v&ith SPCO LLC (“S&P”),effective as of March 2013, relating to the Compsligense t
trade options and futures and create products lasedrtain S&P indexes and higher fees assocwitbddissemination of certain market data.

Operating Income

As a result of the items above, operating incom20itd was $313.8 million compared to $285.9 millier2013 , an increase of $27.9
million .

Other Expense
Net Loss from Investment in Affiliates

Net loss from investment in affiliates was $4.2lior for the year ended December 31, 2014 compartd$2.2 million for the same
period in the prior year. The loss in 2014 and 2@ arily included the Company's share of the ofegdoss of Signal Trading Systems, L
and, in 2014, the impairment of our investmentAXIl which totaled $3.0 million. See Note 3 to tlmmsolidated financial statements for
additional information on the Company's investmiarignal Trading Systems, LLC and IPXI.

Income before Income Taxes

As a result of the items above, income before iretemes in 2014 was $309.7 million compared to $288llion in 2013 , an increase
of $26.0 million .

Income Tax Provision

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , the incarprovision was $120.0 million compared with $I0illion for the same period |
2013 . This increase is primarily a result of higtexable income and a higher effective tax ratee &ffective tax rate was 38.7% and 38 0%
the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 , résggct

Net Income

As a result of the items above, net income allat&tecommon stockholders in 2014 was $188.4 miliompared to $173.9 million in
2013, an increase of $14.5 million . Basic andtddl net income per share allocated to common ktdd&rs were $2.21 and $1.99 for the
years endeDecember 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the yeded December 31, 2012
Consolidated Results

The following summarizes changes in financial pemfance for the year ended December 31, 2013 comwhpar2012 .

Percent
2013 2012 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Total operating revenues $ 5721 % 512.: % 59.¢ 11.7%
Total operating expenses 286.2 268.2 18.C 6.7%
Operating income 285.¢ 244.1 41.¢ 17.1%
Total other expense (2.2) (1.5 0.7 39.6%
Income before income taxes 283.7 242.€ 41.1 16.9%
Income tax provision 107.7 85.2 22.5 26.4%
Net income $ 176.C $ 1572  $ 18.€ 11.€%

Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 173.¢ % 155.2 % 18.¢ 12.(%




Operating income percentage 50.(% 47.6%

Net income percentage 30.8% 30.7%
Diluted—net income per share allocated to common
stockholders $ 19¢  § 1.7¢
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» The Company's market share of total optionsreatd traded on U.S. exchanges was 27.9% for thegreled December 31, 2013
compared to 27.8% for the year ended December@D, 2

* Total operating revenues increased due to highasaction fees, regulatory fees and exchangé&ssrand other fees, partially
offset by lower access fees.

» Total operating expenses increased due to highplogee costs, depreciation and amortization andltpyees, partially offset k
lower data processing, outside services, tradihignve incentives and other expense.

Significant Events in 2013

Total industry cleared contract volume in 2013 l&xtat. 1 billion contracts, a 3% increase from tB&2volume of 4.0 billion contracts as
reported by the OCC. In addition, 2013 marked #word highest year for options industry clearedraghvolume to date and the third
consecutive year in which volume surpassed 4 hilliontracts.

In 2013 , we experienced growth in the tradingwf groprietary products, primarily SPX options, Vitions and VIX futures. For the
year endeDecember 31, 2013 as compared to the prior ye&@wdieve experienced increases in total volume iK 8ptions, VIX options and
VIX futures of 18.9%, 29.1% and 67.9%, respectively

On March 9, 2013, CBOE entered into Amendment Rathie “ S&P Amendment”) to the License Agreemerst dmended, the “S&P
Agreement”) by and between CBOE and S&P, as suec@ssnterest to Standard & Poor's Financial SegsiLLC, pursuant to which CBOE
and C2 may list for trading securities options loem $&P 500 Index, the S&P 100 Index and certaieo8&P Indexes. The S&P Amendment
extended the term of the S&P Agreement until Deaam3i, 2033 and provides exclusivity to the Compamtyl December 31, 2032 with
respect to the S&P 500 Index.

The S&P Amendment also provides new pricing teeffective March 9, 2013, and additional changeasricing terms in subsequent
years. The revised pricing terms include the tehmsdescribe the fees that CBOE agrees to payv@&Preference to the trading on t
markets of CBOE and its affiliates of securitiesiaps and futures on the CBOE Volatility Index. TB&P Amendment also provides each
party with an option to terminate the S&P Agreemiarthe event that trading in options on the S&P Ftdex fails to meet certain volume
thresholds for three consecutive calendar quantgtis, CBOE's option to terminate upon a changeointiml.

On June 11, 2013, CBOE and C2 entered into a Cofseler under which the Company was censured asteted to cease and desist
from violating certain sections of the SecuritiecEange Act, paid a fine of $6.0 million and agréedomplete certain undertakings. Other
expense for the twelve months ended December 34, 2@luded $1.0 million related to the penaltythe fourth quarter of 2012, the
Company recorded an expense of $5.0 million relaietlis matter.

Transactions Impacting our Financial Performance fo the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2013

» Effective January 1, 2013, the Company incredseaptions regulatory fee rates for CBOE and Effective September 1, 2013,
CBOE decreased its options regulatory fee rateGthduspended its options regulatory fee rate.

* In February 2013 and March 2013, the Companypeoéd the Volume Incentive Plan ("VIP") to incantik to execute qualifying
electronic, public customer, multiply-listed volurmaeCBOE in excess of certain thresholds, withaalgated schedule for higher tiers.

» The Company granted restricted shares of stoclettain officers and employees on February 63201addition to the amounts
recognized in connection with these grants, the @ recorded accelerated stock-based compensaqiemse totaling of $3.2
million for certain executives due to provisionsitained in employment arrangements.

« On May 23, 2013, the Company granted sharesstficted stock to the incoming Chief Executivei€¥f and President and Chief
Operating Officer, in connection with their new piass. The grants to the Chief Executive Officad@resident and Chief Operating
Officer totaled $2.5 million, of which 50% vestepan grant.

* The Company recorded accelerated stock-basegemsation of $0.8 million to recognize the remajnialue of stock grants awarded
to employees in its regulatory division who will lamger receive stock-based compensation.
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Operating Revenues

Total operating revenues for the year ended Decethe2013 increased $59.8 million , or 11.7% $%@2.1 million from$512.3 million
in the prior year. The following summarizes chanige®tal operating revenues for the year endedceber 31, 2013 compared to 2012 .

Percent
2013 2012 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Transaction fees $ 397.2 357.1 40.1 11.2%
Access fees 61.C 64.1 (3.2 (4.9%
Exchange services and other fees 37.2 31.4 5.¢ 18.¢ %
Market data fees 24.¢ 24.: 0.€ 2.3%
Regulatory fees 36.7 21.C 15.7 T4.5%
Other revenue 15.C 14.4 0.€ 4.23%
$ 572.1 512.c 59.¢ 11.7%

Total operating revenues

Transaction Fees

Transaction fees increased 11.2% to $397.2 miftiothe year ended December 31, 2013 , represe@fintfb of total operating
revenues, compared with $357.1 million for the pyiear period, or 69.7% of total operating revendéss increase was largely driven by a
6.0% increase in the average revenue per contndca &.7% increase in trading volume. The incréaseerage revenue per contract resulted
from a shift in volume mix to our highest averageanue per contract products, index options anddsatcontracts, partially offset by higher

volume-based incentives, which lowered our averagenue per contract for multiply-listed options.
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The following summarizes transaction fees by prodmc2013 compared to 2012 .

Percent
2013 2012 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Equities $ 406 $ 50.¢ $ (29.0 (31.9%
Indexes 249.¢ 204.¢ 45.¢ 22.2%
Exchange-traded products 43.7 55.€ (11.9 (21.9%
Total options transaction fees 334.] 319.¢ 14.t 4.5 %
Futures 63.1 37.t 25.€ 68.2 %
Total transaction fees $ 3972 $ 357.1 §$ 40.1 11.2%

Trading Volume

The Company's ADV was 4.71 million contracts i12Q an increase of 3.7% compared with 4.54 nnilfar 2012 . Total trading days
in 2013 and 2012 were two hundred fifty-two and twmdred fifty, respectively. Due to the impactafrricane Sandy, all exchanges were
closed two days in October 2012 resulting in nditrg activity on those days.

The Company experienced growth in index optionsfatutes contracts, including SPX options, VIX opis and VIX futures, while
volume decreased in equity options. The followingmarizes changes in total trading volume and AD\pitoduct for 2013 compared to

2012 .

2013 2012 Volume ADV
Percent Percent
Volume ADV Volume ADV Change Change
(in millions)

Equities 433.¢ 1.72 494.: 1.97 (12.2% (12.9%
Indexes 372.¢ 1.4¢ 304.: 1.22 22.L% 21.5%
Exchange-traded products 341.( 1.3¢ 311.¢ 1.2¢ 9.4% 8.E%
Total options contracts 1,147« 4.5t 1,110.¢ 4.44 3.2% 2.5%
Futures contracts 40.2 0.1€ 23.¢ 0.1C 68.2 % 68.2 %
Total contracts 1,187.¢ 4.71 1,134. 4.54 4.7% 3.7%

The following provides the percentage of volumepbyduct category for the year ended December 313 28d 2012 .

2013 2012
Equities 36.5% 43.6%
Indexes 31.4% 26.8%
Exchang-traded products 28.1% 27.5%
Futures 3.4% 2.1%
100.(% 100.(%

Total

Average revenue per contract

The average revenue per contract was $0.334 in 284 3ncrease of 6.0% compared with $0.315 in 2042 rage revenue per contract
represents transaction fees divided by total cotgra
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The following summarizes average revenue per contrgproduct for 2013 compared to 2012 .

Percent

2013 2012 Change
Equities $ 0.09¢ $ 0.121 (22.9%
Indexes 0.67( 0.672 (0.39%
Exchange-traded products 0.12¢ 0.17¢ (28.0)%
Total options revenue per contract 0.291 0.28¢ 1.C%
Futures 1.57(C 1.57( — %
Total average revenue per contract $ 0.33¢ % 0.31f 6.C %

There were a number of factors that contributetthéoincrease in our average revenue per contr&fis compared to 2012 . These
include:

* Product mi—The increase in the average revenue per contrihette] a shift in the volume mix by product. Indgptions and
futures contracts accounted for 31.4% and 3.4%taf trading volume in 2013, up from 26.8% and2.ih 2012 , respectively.
Index options generated total average revenueqgreract of $0.670 representing the highest optimesage revenue per contract,
while futures contracts generated our highest #tatage revenue per contract of $1.570 .

» SPX options, VIX options and VIX futureser the year ended December 31, 2013 as compathd fwior year period, the total
trading volume in SPX options, VIX options and Vitures increased by 18.9% , 29.1% and 67.9% gertsely.

Access Fees

Access fees for the year ended December 31, 20&8aked to $61.0 million from $64.1 million in tbemparable prior year period. The
decrease in access fees was primarily due to thkementation of an incentive programs for markekendrading permits and floor brokers
implemented in May 2013, which lowered monthly asckees.

Exchange Services and Other Fees

Exchange services and other fees for the year ebdedmber 31, 2013 increased 18.8% to $37.3 mifliom $31.4 million in the
comparable period in the prior year, resulting fritna introduction of a network access option offiereconnection with the Company's data
center move to New Jersey in December 2012.

Market Data Fees

Market data fees increased 2.3% to $24.9 milliartHe year ended December 31, 2013 from $24.3amill the same period in the prior
year. OPRA and Company market data fee2013 and 2012 were $12.9 million and $12.0 milkod $15.0 million and $9.3 million
respectively. The Company's share of OPRA incoméhi® period ended December 31, 2013 decreased T&66Xrom 24.4% for the same
period in 2012 as a result of a decrease in thepaogis share of total cleared options transactieesenue generated from the Company's
market data services increased $2.7 million , teuprimarily from an increase in subscribers ®QE Streaming Markets and other market
data services and an increase in subscriber rates.

Regulatory Fees

Regulatory fees increased 74.5% for the year eB6&8 to $36.7 million from $21.0 millioim the same period in the prior year, resul
from CBOE and C2 increasing their options regulafee rates and higher Trading Permit Holder custonolume industry-wide as compared
to the same period in 2012n September 2013, CBOE decreased its optiondatyy fee rate and C2 suspended its options atoyl fee rate

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased $18.0 millmm6,. 7% , to $286.2 million for the year ended 2&b8n $268.2 million in the year ago
period, resulting from higher employee costs, deiptn and amortization and royalty fees, pantialiffset by lower data processing, outside
services, trading volume incentives and other espeBxpenses decreased to 50.0% of total operaiegues in the year ended 2013
compared with 52.3% in the same period in 2012 .

The following summarizes changes in operating egpefor the year ended December 31, 2013 compaZ@ile .
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Percent
2013 2012 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Employee costs $ 118.1 $ 1042 % 13.¢ 13.5%
Depreciation and amortization 34.t 31.t 3.C 9.5%
Data processing 17.¢ 19.€ (1.7) (8.7)%
Outside services 34.t 36.2 (1.8 (5.0%
Royalty fees 56.¢€ 46.1 10.t 22.€%
Trading volume incentives 4.2 6.3 (2.0 (30.6%
Travel and promotional expenses 9.¢ 10.C (0.2 (2.0%
Facilities costs 5.C 5.C — (0.9%
Other expenses 5.k 9.2 (3.7) (40.0%
Total operating expenses $ 286.2 $ 268.2 § 18.( 6.7%

Employee Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2013, employes wese $118.1 million , or 20.6% of total opergtnevenues, compared wif104.2
million , or 20.3% of total operating revenuesthe same period in 2012 . This represents an isereb$13.9 million , or 13.3% , resulting
from increases in stock-based compensation of ®8l®n , annual incentive compensation of $3.7limil and salaries of $4.4 milliosulting
from increases in staffing, primarily for regulatdunctions. These increases were partially offselower severance expense of $2.5 million .

The increase in stock-based compensation of $8l®miesulted from the amortization of stock-compation expense relating to the
February 2013 and May 2013 grants and the recognid $4.0 million of accelerated stock-based camspéon related to the February 2013
grant to certain executives due to provisions dopthin their employment arrangements and the mgtiog of the remaining value of stock
grants awarded, in June 2010, to employees in dmep@ny's regulatory division who were no longegible to receive equity-based
compensation.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by $3.0Ganito $34.5 million for the year ended Decembé&r 2013 compared with $31.5
million for the same period in 2012 .

Data Processing

Data processing expenses decreased $1.7 milligh2® million for the year ended December 31, 2€d8pared with $19.6 million in
the prior-year period. The decrease in data pravgexpenses is primarily due to decreases in hameland software maintenance relating to
the migration of the trading platform completeddiecember 2012.

Outside Services

Expenses related to outside services decreas&#b fillion for the year ended December 31, 200&1f$36.3 million in the prior-year
period. The $1.8 million decrease is primarily dodower costs related to litigation. The Compaegeived insurance reimbursement for legal
expenses of $1.5 million during the year ended Brses 31, 2013 .

Royalty Fees

Royalty fees expense for the year ended Decemhe&0dB were $56.6 million compared with $46.1 raillifor the prior year period, an
increase of $10.5 million . The increase is prilyadiie to higher trading volume in licensed indeaducts and an increase in royalty rates as
result of the amendment the Company executed vgith 16 the existing S&P Agreement.

Trading Volume Incentives

Trading volume incentives decreased $2.0 millio48 million for the year ended December 31, 26di@pared to $6.3 million for the
prior year period. The decrease was primarily @udewer volume in multiply-listed options producisodifications in the criteria for contracts
qualifying for certain quantity-based fee waivensl @adjustments to the fees paid by the Companirdasactions linked to away exchanges.



Other Expenses
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Other expenses decreased $3.7 million to $5.5aniflor the year ended December 31, 2013 compar$fl. Bomillion for the same period
a year ago. In 2012, the Company accrued an estihgadpense of $5.0 million related to the SEC itigation of CBOE's compliance with its
obligations as a self-regulatory organization urterfederal securities laws. In 2013, the Compangrded an additional $1.0 million related
to the final agreement with the SEC resulting meadecrease of $4.0 million year over year.

Operating Income

As a result of the items above, operating incom20ih3 was $285.9 million compared to $244.1 millie2012 , an increase of $41.8
million .

Other Expense
Net Loss from Investment in Affiliates

Net loss from investment in affiliates was $2.2limil for the year ended December 31, 2013 compaitd$1.7 million for the same
period in the prior year. The loss in 2013 and 2pid@arily reflected the Company's share of therafieg loss of Signal Trading Systems,
LLC.

Income before Income Taxes

As a result of the items above, income before iretemes in 2013 was $283.7 million compared to $&4illion in 2012 , an increase
of $41.1 million .

Income Tax Provision

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the incarmprovision was $107.7 million compared with $8&#lion for the same period in
2012, a direct result of an increase in the effedbx rate and higher taxable income. The effediiix rate was 38.0% and 35.1% for the year
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectiveyindnease in effective tax rate for the year eridledember 31, 2013 compared to 2012 is
the result of 2012 including the recognition ofaléte items related to prior periods. During thelts® months ended December 31, 2012, the
Company filed amended returns for 2008, 2009 arid) 20id completed its return for 2011 and recogniaedh discrete item, in the aggrega
$12.9 million net benefit for a Section 199 dedaetior U.S. production activities. No comparabl®pperiod adjustments were recorded in
the year ended December 31, 2013 .

Net Income

As a result of the items above, net income allat&aecommon stockholders in 2013 was $173.9 miliompared to $155.3 million in
2012, an increase of $18.6 million . Basic andtdill net income per share allocated to common ktbd&rs were $1.99 and $1.78 for the
years endeDecember 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have financed our operations, tamxpenditures and other cash needs throughgeastrated from operations. Cash
requirements principally consist of funding opargtexpenses, capital expenditures, actual andipetiéd quarterly and special dividend
payments and common stock repurchases under tloeiaced program. We expect to use cash on handcaniizr 31, 2014 and funds
generated from operations to continue to meet 6lb Zash requirements. From time to time, we canghie possibility of acquisitions,
dispositions and strategic alliances that we beligould strengthen our business in the long-telmwdver, if consummated these transactions
may negatively impact our liquidity in the shortrte

Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to the VfededEDecember 31, 2013
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $26&illion and $224.4 million for the years endedcBmber 31, 2014 and 2013 ,
respectively. The increase in net cash flows predidy operating activities was primarily due toHggnet income and comparable balances
year over year in deferred taxes and income taivable.



Net cash provided by operating activities was $1gillon higher than net income for the fiscal yesaded December 31, 2014 . The
difference was mainly a result of $39.9 milliondepreciation and amortization, the recognitionto€k-based compensation totaling $15.6
million and an increase in income tax liability$#£0.8 million , partially offset by an increasesiccounts receivable of $8.5 million .
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Investing Activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities tote&@.1 million and $31.2 million for the years edd@ecember 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Expenditures for capital and otheetstotaled $50.2 million and $28.7 million foe tyears ended December 31, 2014 and 201
respectively, primarily representing purchasesystesns hardware and development of software toemaadd enhance our trading platform
operations. The Company made an investment in Eigading Systems, LLC of $2.0 million in 2014 .

Our future expenditures for capital and other asaet expected to be primarily driven by spendinigarden the company's systems, as
well as ongoing investments in systems hardwaresaftdiare that enhance trading technology.

Financing Activities

Net cash flows used in financing activities tota$283.9 million and $107.4 million for the yeargled December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The $176.5 million increase in neticfiows used in financing activities resulted maiity from higher quarterly dividends, the
payment of a special dividend in 2014 and repurehias$ unrestricted common stock.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , net casis fised in financing activities consisted of $168il6ion in unrestricted common
stock purchases under the Company's share reparphagram, $67.0 million for the payment of qudytéividends, $43.8 million for the
payment of a special dividend and $8.3 milliondtrer share repurchases, which consisted of uintestrommon stock surrendered to satisfy
employees' tax obligations upon the vesting ofricst stock.

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the YededDecember 31, 2012
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $224illion and $200.5 million for the years ended 2@nd 2012 , respectively. The
increase in net cash flows provided by operatirityities was primarily due to an increase in wogkizapital generated by strong operating
results.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $48illon higher than net income for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2013 . The net
increase was mainly a result of $34.5 million ipaiation and amortization, the recognition otktbased compensation totaling $20.8
million and increase in income taxes payable 0@ $8illion partially offset by an increase in acctaireceivable of $4.2 millioand an increas
in income tax receivable of $10.3 million .

Investing Activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities tote$3d..2 million and $33.0 million for the years edd#ecember 31, 2013 and 2012 ,
respectively. Expenditures for capital and otheetstotaled $28.7 million and $30.1 million foe tyears ended December 31, 2013 and 201
respectively, primarily representing purchasesysfems hardware and software. In 2013 , the Compaage investments in IPXI Holdings,
LLC for $0.6 million and Signal Trading Systems,CIfor $1.9 million .

Financing Activities

Net cash flows used in financing activities tota$d®7.4 million and $166.9 million for the yeargled December 31, 2013 and 2012 ,
respectively. The decrease in net cash flows uséidancing activities resulted primarily from thayment of a special dividend in the prior
year totaling $66.2 millior

For the year ended December 31, 2013, net casis fised in financing activities consisted of $4%iBion in unrestricted common
stock purchases under the Company's share reparphagram, $58.4 million for the payment of qudytéividends and $6.1 million for other
shares purchased, which consisted of unrestrictedon stock surrendered to satisfy employees'bigaiions upon the vesting of restricted
stock.

Dividends

The Company’s expectation is to continue to paydéinds. The decision to pay a dividend, howevenaias within the discretion of our
board of directors and may be affected by variagsofrs, including our earnings, financial conditioapital requirements, level of indebtedn
and other considerations our board of directorsndelevant. Future debt obligations and statupooyisions, among other things, may limit,



or in some cases prohibit, our ability to pay dands.
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Share Repurchase Program

In 2011, the board of directors approved an indigthorization for the Company to repurchase shafrés outstanding unrestricted
common stock of $100 million and approved additienahorizations of $100 million in each of 201213 and 2014 for a total authorization
of $400 million. The program permits the Companyptiochase shares through a variety of methodsjdimd in the open market or through
privately negotiated transactions, in accordandk gpplicable securities laws. It does not obligheeCompany to make any repurchases a
specific time or situation.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2014Ctimepany purchased 3,215,246 shares of unrestictadnon stock at an average
cost per share of $52.35 , totaling $168.3 milliopurchases under the program.

Since inception of the program, the Company pumtids855,070 shares of unrestricted common stoak aterage cost per share of
$39.51 , totaling $310.4 million in purchases uritherprogram.

As of December 31, 2014 , the company had $89.Eomibf availability remaining under its existingare repurchase authorizations.
OCC Capital Plan

In December 2014, OCC announced a newly formedalggan designed to comply with proposed new Sta@dards for covered
clearing agencies. Under the plan, OCC's existkafp@nge stockholders, which include CBOE, wouldtigbate a pro-rata share of $150
million in equity capital which would increase OGGhareholders' equity. CBOE's capital contributinder the plan would be $30 million. In
addition, OCC's stockholders would commit to pravigplenishment capital on a pro-rata basis, thoeicapital thresholds are breached.
CBOE's obligation to provide replenishment capitadier the plan would be subject to a cap of $40anilln exchange for the equity capital
from its stockholders, OCC would, subject to defaation by its board of directors and compliancéhMégal requirements, commit to pay an
annual dividend to its stockholders equal to therabx income of OCC, in excess of the amountireguo maintain its target capital
requirement and satisfy other capital requiremeand,after refunds to its clearing members equ&Déd of distributable earnings before tax.
The plan is subject to approval by all of OCC’scktmlders and the SEC.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We currently do not have any relationships withamsolidated entities or financial partnershipseofteferred to as structured finance or
special purpose entities, that have been establighmehe purpose of facilitating offalance sheet arrangements or other contractuaitpw or
limited purposes.

Lease and Contractual Obligations

The Company currently leases office space includingmote network operations center and data icenith lease terms remaining frc
8 months to 31 months as of December 31, 20dDekcember 2014, we entered into an agreementfAMRA to provide certain regulatory
services to the CBOE and C2 options markets. Theeagent included the assignment of the office s@R@E leased for regulatory
operations.

Total rent expense related to current and fornmasdebligations for the years ended December 34 22013 and 2012 totaled $3.8
million , $3.0 million and $3.5 million , respectlly. Future minimum payments under our operatiagds and contractual obligations were as
follows at December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Less than More than 5
Total(1) 1 year 1- 3years 3-5years years
Operating leases $ 6,13t $ 2,811 $ 332 % — $ =
Contractual obligations 202,95¢ 18,15; 43,52( 40,15« 101,12
Total $ 209,090 $ 20,96¢ $ 46,84 $ 40,15« $ 101,12
(1) Gross unrecognized income tax liabilities,ledg interest and penalties, of $35.4 million aat included in the table due to

uncertainty about the date of their settlement.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Mark®isk
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We are exposed to market risk in the ordinary a@oidbusiness. This market risk consists primanilinterest rate risk associated with
our cash and cash equivalents. We have no longdeshort-term debt. The Company does not tradempfor its own account.

Interest Rate Risk

We have exposure to market risk for changes inéstaates relating to our cash and cash equivsal@stof December 31, 2014 and
2013, our cash and cash equivalents were $14Ti8mand $221.3 million , respectively. We investailable cash in highly liquid, short-term
investments, such as money market funds and Ueastry securities. Our investment policy is to @nes capital and liquidity. A hypothetical
three basis point decrease in short-term intee¢ss would decrease annual earnings by less tfaA, assuming no change in the amount c
composition of our cash and cash equivalents.

Impact of Inflation

We have not been adversely affected by inflatioteasnological advances and competition have géypeaused prices for hardware
and software that we use for our electronic platfoto remain constant or decline. Since transastonour exchanges are not governed by
long-term contracts, we believe that any increas@lation are unlikely to have a material adweedfect on us.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Chicago, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and subsidiatles (Company") as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statEsnof income, comprehensive income, stockholéersty, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20hése financial statements are the responsilofithe Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 thenaksults of their operations and their casdlfor each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2014 , in conformity with actiogrprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedt& of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2014 , based on the criteria establishiedernal Control - Integrated Framework
(2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission and our report datdudgry 20, 201®xpressed a
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohtiver financial reporting

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Chicago, lllinois
February 20, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Chicago, lllinois

We have audited the internal control over finanglorting of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and subsidialiihe "Company") as of December 31,
2014 , based on criteria establishedhiternal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatigns
the Treadway Commission. The Company's managemmeesponsible for maintaining effective internahirol over financial reporting and f
its assessment of the effectiveness of internarabover financial reporting, included in the angeanying Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Compsimternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxe@r financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etnadutihe design and operating effectiveness ofiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezeéssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis for ou
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repagtis a process designed by, or under the supemvigi the company's principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons penigrg similar functions, and effected by the compsifspard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anlget preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles. A company's internaitom over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertainéartaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactions@eded as necessary to permit preparatio
of financial statements in accordance with gengradtepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are bein
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngen@aent and directors of the company; and (3) peoxédisonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjion, use, or disposition of the company's as#ieit could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltaarover financial reporting to future periods ateéject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of December 31, 2014 ,
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year endexbBber 31, 2014 of the Company and our reportdatbruary 20, 2015 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 20, 2015
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013

(in thousands, except share amounts) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 147,92 % 221,34:
Accounts receivable—net allowances of 2014 - $2862013 - $266 58,38t 49,88¢
Marketing fee receivable 10,69’ 8,86¢
Income taxes receivable 21,50 22,03¢
Other prepaid expenses 4,62: 4,007
Other current assets 97z 2,717
Total Current Assets 244,100 308,86:
Investments in Affiliates 12,35 14,58:
Land 4,91« 4,91«

Property and Equipment:

Construction in progress — 23
Building 68,01¢ 65,44¢
Furniture and equipment 286,72: 271,43
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (287,88¢) (269,61
Total Property and Equipment—Net 66,85¢ 67,29:
Other Assets:

Software development work in progress 7,817 7,85%
Data processing software and other assets (lesshatated amortization of 2014 - $163,486; 201347%322) 47,85¢ 38,08¢
Total Other Assets—Net 55,67: 45,93¢
Total $ 383,90: $ 441,58¢

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 58,56¢ $ 52,95¢
Dividend payable — 43,83:
Marketing fee payable 11,23¢ 9,44:
Deferred revenue and other liabilities 1,98¢ 1,10(
Post-retirement medical benefits 101 127
Income tax payable 1,774 —
Total Current Liabilities 73,66¢ 107,45¢

Long-term Liabilities:

Post-retirement medical benefits 1,617 2,11(
Income tax liability 40,68: 29,90:
Other long-term liabilities 4,197 3,85¢
Deferred income taxes 13,67% 13,74t
Total Long-term Liabilities 60,16¢ 49,61«
Commitments and Contingencies

Total Liabilities 133,83: 157,07:

Stockholders' Equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value: 20,000,000 stearésmrized, no shares issued and outstandingcarilger 31, 2014 or 2013 — —
Unrestricted common stock, $0.01 par value: 325@@shares authorized; 92,569,189 issued and 44,19 outstanding at

December 31, 2014; 91,845,492 issued and 86,770M3%anding at December 31, 2013 92¢ 91¢
Additional paid-in-capital 110,11: 90,98
Retained earnings 472,00! 349,29(
Treasury stock at cost — 8,454,714 shares at DezeBih 2014 and 5,074,755 shares at December 33, 20 (332,28 (155,62
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (68¢) (1,050

Total Stockholders' Equity 250,06 284,51




Total $ 383,90. $ 441,58!

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Operating Revenues:

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

Transaction fees $ 437,76 $ 397,21t % 357,14t
Access fees 59,33: 61,02: 64,07(
Exchange services and other fees 38,04: 37,25( 31,36¢
Market data fees 30,44° 2491 24,36(
Regulatory fees 37,08: 36,63: 20,99¢
Other revenue 14,55° 15,01¢ 14,39¢
Total Operating Revenues 617,22! 572,05( 512,33¢
Operating Expenses:
Employee costs 121,73« 118,08: 104,19¢
Depreciation and amortization 39,91 34,48¢ 31,48t
Data processing 19,18¢ 17,89¢ 19,60:
Outside services 31,97¢ 34,47: 36,30(
Royalty fees 66,11( 56,57¢ 46,13¢
Trading volume incentives 4,08( 4,35k 6,27¢
Travel and promotional expenses 9,04¢ 9,80¢ 10,00¢
Facilities costs 5,721 5,05z 5,06¢
Other expenses 5,65¢ 5,50¢ 9,17¢
Total Operating Expenses 303,42 286,23 268,24
Operating Income 313,80: 285,81 244.,09°
Other Income/(Expense):
Investment income 112 63 14¢
Net loss from investment in affiliates (4,217 (2,22)) (1,69%)
Total Other Expense (4,109 (2,15¢) (1,54¢€)
Income Before Income Taxes 309,69 283,65¢ 242,55:
Income tax provision 119,98: 107,65 85,15¢
Net Income 189,71 175,99¢ 157,39!
Net Income allocated to participating securities (1,329 (2,136 (2,147
Net Income allocated to common stockholders $ 188,39 $ 173,86 $ 155,25:
Net income per share allocated to common stockneldéote 14)

Basic $ 221 % 1.9¢ $ 1.7¢

Diluted 2.21 1.9¢ 1.7¢
Weighted average shares used in computing net ieganshare

Basic 85,40¢ 87,33 87,46(

Diluted 85,40¢ 87,33 87,46(

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012

(in thousands)

Net Income

Comprehensive Income (Loss) - net of tax:
Post retirement benefit obligation

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive Income allocated to participating secities

Comprehensive Income allocated to common stockholde

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
189,71: $ 175,99¢ $ 157,39!
361 (157) 6
190,07¢ 175,84: 157,40:
(1,327) (2,136) (2,14))
188,75: $ 173,70¢ $ 155,26(

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012

(in thousands)

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net Income 189,71 175,99¢ 157,39!
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casidlprovided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 39,91¢ 34,48¢ 31,48!
Other amortization 87 114 8¢
Provision for deferred income taxes (290 (7,14%) (49%)
Stock-based compensation 15,577 20,82: 12,34¢
Equity in loss of affiliates 1,217 1,97¢ 1,69¢
Impairment of investment in affiliates and othesets 3,00( 24¢ —
Loss on disposition of property 662 3 1
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (8,49¢ (4,222) (8,08¢)
Marketing fee receivable (1,82¢) (3,659 (23)
Income taxes receivable 53€ (10,32 (4,967)
Prepaid expenses (615) 13¢ 6
Other current assets 1,74¢ (2,15)) 49¢
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,88¢ 5,51¢€ 1,118
Marketing fee payable 1,79¢ 3,63¢ 43
Income tax payable 1,774 — —
Deferred revenue and other liabilities 1,22¢ (75) 7%
Post-retirement benefit obligations (28) (36) 17
Income tax liability 10,78( 9,04¢ 8,67
Net Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities 262,65 224,38( 200,53!
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital and other assets expenditures (50,159 (28,679 (30,06¢)
Investment in Signal Trading Systems, LLC (1,98%) (1,920 (1,667)
Investment in IPXI Holdings, LLC — (612) (1,25()
Other 3 8 —
Net Cash Flows used in Investing Activities (52,139 (31,19) (32,97)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Payment of quarterly dividends (66,999 (58,369 (47,829
Payment of special dividend (43,83) — (66,197
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation 3,551 2,35¢ —
Purchase of unrestricted stock from employees (8,337) (6,13€) (3,12%)
Purchase of unrestricted common stock under anmoupmgram (168,329 (45,290) (49,749
Net Cash Flows used in Financing Activities (283,93) (107,439 (166,89)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (73,412 85,74« 661
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 221,34: 135,59° 134,931
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 147,92° 221,34: 135,59
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for income taxes 103,97¢ 113,74: 82,63:
Non-cash activities:
Change in post-retirement benefit obligation (589) 25E (25)
Unpaid liability - dividends payable — 43,83 —
Unpaid liability to acquire equipment and software 2,76¢ 3,04¢ 75¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012

Accumulated

Unrestricted ~ Additional Other Total

Preferred Common Paid-In Retained Treasury Comprehensive Stockholders'
(in thousands) Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Loss Equity
Balance—January 1, 2012 — 90€& 55,46¢ 232,12: (51,329 (899) 236,27(
Cash dividends on common stock (114,02} (114,02)
Stock-based compensation 12,34¢ 12,34¢
Issuance of vested restricted stock granted to
employees 5 (5) —
Purchase of unrestricted common stock (52,877) (52,877)
Net income 157,39! 157,39!
Post-retirement benefit obligation adjustment—rfe
tax expense of $19 6 6
Balance—December 31, 2012 — 913 67,81: 275,49: (104,20) (89%) 239,12
Cash dividends on common stock (102,200 (102,200
Stock-based compensation 20,82: 20,82¢
Issuance of vested restricted stock granted to
employees 6 (6) —
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
plan 2,35¢ 2,35¢
Purchase of unrestricted common stock (51,42¢) (51,42¢)
Net income 175,99¢ 175,99¢
Post-retirement benefit obligation adjustment—rfe
tax benefit of $99 (157 (157)
Balance-December 31, 2013 — 91¢ 90,98¢ 349,29( (155,62) (1,050) 284,51
Cash dividends on common stock (66,999 (66,999
Stock-based compensation 15,571 15,577
Issuance of vested restricted stock granted to
employees 7 @) —
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
plan 3,557 3,557
Purchase of unrestricted common stock $(176,66() (176,66()
Net income 189,71« 189,71«
Post-retirement benefit obligation adjustment—rfe
tax expense of $222 361 361
Balance-December 31, 2014 $ — % 92€ $ 110,11 $472,00! $(332,28) $ (689) $ 250,06

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CBOE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 20
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business—CBOE Holdings, Inc. ("CBOE Holdings" or the "Conmyd) is the holding company of registered secsitie
exchanges, subject to oversight by the Securitidsexchange Commission ("SEC"), and a designatattaxt market under the jurisdiction of
the Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTQHhe Company's principal business is operating niatkeat offer for trading exclusive
options on various market indexes (index optioms) fatures contracts, as well as on non-exclugweltiply-listed" options, such as options
the stocks of individual corporations (equity opsdand options on other exchange-traded prod&diB pptions), such as exchange-traded
funds (ETF options) and exchange-traded notes (gdtidns), and certain other index options.

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements includeatteounts and results of operations of CBOE Holdamgsits
wholly-owned subsidiaries, including: Chicago Bo&ptions Exchange, Incorporated ("CBOE"), CBOE FeglExchange, LLC ("CFE"), C2
Options Exchange, Incorporated ("C2"), Market DE%press, LLC, Chicago Options Exchange Buildingg@oation and DerivaTech
Corporation. Inter-company balances and transastiawe been eliminated in consolidation. The Compaports the results of its operations
in one reporting segment.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of consolidated financial statetmi@nconformity with accounting principles genéralccepted in
the United States ("GAAP") requires managementakarestimates and assumptions that affect thetempbamounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities ri@ported amounts of revenues and expenses. Ongaing basis, management evaluates its
estimates based upon historical experience, obsegvaf trends, information available from outsidarses and various other assumptions tha
are believed to be reasonable under the circumssadctual results may differ from these estimateder different conditions or assumptions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquice8iments with maturities of three months or lesmf
the date of purchase. The Company places its cabhash equivalents with highly-rated financiatitusions, limits the amount of credit
exposure with any one financial institution andawacts ongoing evaluations of the creditworthindghe financial institutions with which it
does business; therefore concentrations of cristlitare limited. There are no redemption restriction the Company's invested cash balance:

Accounts Receivable—Accounts receivable consists primarily of transattnd regulatory fees from The Options ClearingoGration
("OCC"), and the Company's share of distributableenue receivable from OPRA. Accounts receival#depamarily collected through OCC,
and are with large, highly-rated clearing firmserdfore concentrations of credit risk are limittede Company has no financing-related
receivables.

Prepaid expenses—Prepaid expenses primarily consist of prepaid so#wnaintenance and licensing expenses which aodiaed ove
the respective periods.

Investments in Affiliates—Investments in affiliates represent investment®@C, Signal Trading Systems, LLC ("Signal Tradng"
IPXI Holdings, LLC ("IPXI") and CBOE Stock Exchangel C ("CBSX").

The investments in OCC and IPXI are accounted fioleu the cost-method of accounting for investments.
The investments in Signal Trading and CBSX are actzdl for under the equity method.

Investments in affiliates are periodically reviewedletermine whether any events or changes inmistances indicate that the
investments may be other than temporarily impaiedhe event of impairment, the Company would gggpe a loss for the difference betw
the carrying amount and the estimated fair valughefinvestment.

Property and Equipment—Property and equipment are carried at cost, natofimulated depreciation. Depreciation is caledlatsing
the straight-line method, generally over five tatjoyears. Leasehold improvements are amortized tineelesser of their estimated useful lives
or the remaining term of the applicable leases.

Property and Equipment—Construction in Progressis capitalized and carried at cost. Upon completibe projects are placed in
service and amortized over the appropriate usefes| using the straight-line method commencindnhe date the asset is placed in service.
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Software Development Work in Progress and Data Prassing Software and Other Assets- The Company expenses software
development costs as incurred during the prelinjipaoject stage, while capitalizing costs incurdeding the application development stage,
which includes design, coding, installation anditgsactivities. Estimated useful lives are thredive years for internally developed and othel
data processing software and generally are fivesyaaless for other assets.

Employee Benefit Plans—The funded status of a post retirement benefit [daecognized in the Consolidated Balance Shekt a
changes in that funded status are recognized ipgieof change in other comprehensive income)(I&an assets and obligations are
measured at year end. The Company recognizes changetuarial gains and losses and prior senasésdn the year in which the changes
occur through accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Commitments and Contingencies—Litigation—The Company accrues loss contingencies when teadd®th probable and estimat
All legal costs incurred in connection with lossitingencies are expensed as service is provided.

Revenue Recognition—Revenue recognition policies for specific soureersevenue are discussed below:

Transaction Fees: Transaction fees are a function of three véemil{1) exchange fee rates; (2) trading volumd; @& transaction mix
between contract type. Transaction fees are assessa per contract basis and are considered eapwedthe execution of a trade and are
recognized on a trade date basis. Transactiorafegsresented net of applicable volume discountthd event liquidity providers prepay for
transaction fees, revenue is recognized basedeoatthinment of volume thresholds resulting inaheortization of the prepayment over the
calendar year.

Access Fees: Access fees represent fees assessed to Traeingt Holders for the opportunity to trade and oeer related functions
of CBOE, C2 and CFE. Access fees are recognizedglthre period the service is provided.

Exchange Services and Other FeeSxchange services and other fees include systevitss, trading floor charges and application
revenue. Exchange services and other fees aremaeedgduring the period the service is provided.

Market Data Fees: Market data fees include Options Price Repgrfinthority ("OPRA™) income and fees generated fritie
Company's market data services. OPRA is a limitdglity company consisting of representativeshaf member exchanges and is authorized
by the SEC to provide consolidated options infoiomatThe Company's market data services are pravidt®ugh CBOE Streaming Markets
("CSM") and other services. OPRA income is alloddiased upon the individual exchange's relativamel of total cleared options
transactions. The Company receives monthly estenat©PRA's distributable revenue (See Note 4)iacaime is distributed on a quarterly
basis. Company market data fees represent chargesrfent and historical options and futures gatevided directly by the Company. Market
data services are recognized in the period theiggvided.

Regulatory Fees: Regulatory fees are primarily based on the nurabeustomer contracts traded on all U.S. optiexshanges by
Trading Permit Holders and are primarily recognineda trade-date basis. Under the rules of eacliobptions exchanges, as required by the
SEC, any revenue derived from regulatory fees aregfcannot be used for non-regulatory purposes.

Concentration of Revenu@ll contracts traded on our exchanges must beetethirough clearing members of the OCC. At
December 31, 2014 , there were one hundred sestnty Permit Holders that are clearing members®fQCC. Two clearing members
accounted for 46% of transaction and other fededeld through the OCC in 2014 . The next largkestring member accounted for
approximately 11%f transaction and other fees collected throughQ@€. No one Trading Permit Holder using the clegagervices of the tc
two clearing member firms represented more than d2&@nsaction and other fees collected throughQICC, for the respective clearing
member, in 2014 . Should a clearing member withdram CBOE, we believe the Trading Permit Holdertjom of that clearing member's
trading activity would likely transfer to anothdearing member.

The two largest clearing members mentioned abaar the majority of the market-maker sides of taatisns at CBOE, C2 and at all of
the U.S. options exchanges. If either of thesericlganembers were to withdraw from the businessafket-maker clearing and market-
makers were unable to transfer to another cleamiember, this could create significant disruptioth® U.S. options markets, including ours.
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Advertising Costs—Advertising costs, including print advertising gorduction costs, product promotion campaignssamdinar,
conference convention costs related to trade slaomother industry events and, in prior years, spahips with local professional sports
organizations, are expensed as incurred or amdrtizer the respective period. The Company incuaidcrtising costs of $4.3 million , $5.4
million and $5.3 million for the years ended Decem®1, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively. Adsigi costs are included in travel and
promotional expenses in the consolidated statenoémeome.

Stock-Based Compensatior—Stock-based compensation is based on the faiewalthe award on the grant date and recognized ove
the related service period, net of estimated farfes. For performance based units, we use theévidatlo valuation model method to estimate
the fair value of the award.

Income Taxes—Deferred income taxes arise from temporary difiees between the tax basis and book basis of aswt&@bilities. A
valuation allowance is recognized if it is anti¢gzhthat some or all of a deferred tax asset mapaoealized.

The Company accounts for uncertainty in incomegareognized in its consolidated financial statesibg using a more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold based solely on the techmitaiits of the position taken or expected to benaknterest and penalties are recorded w
the provision for income taxes in the Company'ssotidated statements of income and are classifietth® consolidated balance sheets witl
related liability for unrecognized tax benefitseS¢ote 9 for further discussion of the Companyt®ime taxes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements— In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, Rejmy Discontinued Operations and
Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Engityamendment to FASB ASC Topic 205, Presentatidiinancial Statements and FASB
ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant and Equipment. Tpesaie revises the definition of discontinued openat by limiting discontinued operatio
reporting to disposals of components of an enligy tepresent strategic shifts that have (or veilld) a major effect on an entity's operations
and financial results, removing the lack of conitguinvolvement criteria and requiring discontinumgkrations reporting for the disposal of an
equity method investment that meets the definitibdiscontinued operations. The update also reg@rpanded disclosures for discontinued
operations, including disclosure of pretax profitass of an individually significant componentaf entity that does not qualify for
discontinued operations reporting. This ASU is &ffe prospectively for fiscal years, and interieripds within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2014. The Company has elected eaofytiad of the guidance and does not believe it wifpact our consolidated balance
sheets, statements of income, comprehensive incomash flows.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revemorn fContracts with Customers. This standard owlmsingle comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for reveatising from contracts with customers and sup&seadost current revenue recognition
guidance, including industry-specific guidanceatidition, the ASU provides guidance on accountorgcértain revenueelated costs includir
when to capitalize costs associated with obtaiaing) fulfilling a contract. ASU 20189 provides companies with two implementation me#:
Companies can choose to apply the standard retrtbgplg to each prior reporting period presented fletrospective application) or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of iaity applying the standard as an adjustment tmffening balance of retained earnings of the
annual reporting period that includes the datenitiai application (modified retrospective applicet). This guidance is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 20i@uding interim periods within that reportingnod. Early application is not permitted.
The Company is in the process of evaluating thidance, though we do not expect it will materiathpact our consolidated balance sheets,
statements of income, comprehensive income or ftash.

2. SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

In 2011, the board of directors approved an indighorization for the Company to repurchase shafrés outstanding unrestricted
common stock of $100 million and approved additieahorizations $100 million in each of 2012, 2GRl 2014 for a total authorization of
$400 million. The program permits the Company techase shares through a variety of methods, inotu the open market or through
privately negotiated transactions, in accordandk gpplicable securities laws. It does not obligheeCompany to make any repurchases a
specific time or situation.

Under the program, for the twelve months ended Béet 31, 2014 , the Company purchased 3,215,248sbaunrestricted common
stock at an average cost per share of $52.35rigt&lL68.3 million .

Since inception of the program through Decembe2814 , the Company has purchased 7,855,070 sbanesestricted common stock
at an average cost per share of $39.51 totaling.43illion .
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3. INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATES

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the Company's imezt in affiliates was comprised of the followifig thousands):

2014 2013
Investment in OCC $ 33t % 33¢
Investment in Signal Trading 11,90( 11,13(
Investment in IPXI 11¢ 3,11¢
Investment in CBSX — —
Investment in Affiliates $ 12,35 § 14,58:

The Company holds a 20% investment in OCC whiatunted for under the cost-method of accountngnfzestments because of the
Company's inability to exercise significant infleen

In May 2010, CBOE acquired a 50% interest in Sigrralding from FlexTrade Systems, Inc. ("FlexTrad&He joint venture develops
and markets a multi-asset front-end order entrjesysknown as "Pulse," which has a particular ersjshan options trading. The Company
assists in the development of the terminals andiges marketing services to the joint venture, Wwhicaccounted for under the equity method
We account for the investment in Signal Tradingerrttie equity method due to the substantive ppetiig rights provided to the other limit
liability company member, FlexTrade. In the twehaenths ended December 31, 2014 , the Company reg@ahtributions to and equity
losses in Signal Trading of $2.0 million and $1.@ion , respectively.

The Company, through DerivaTech Corporation, a Wholvned subsidiary, acquired a 10.0% interesPiXlIHoldings, LLC ("IPXI")
for $2.5 million . The Company contributed an aiaial $0.6 million in October 2013. In December 20the Company recorded an
impairment charge of $3.0 million . The impairmers the result of an additional investment in IB}lan investor at a fair value significantly
lower than our original investment. Our investmand equity interest in IPXI as of December 31, 2@&4e $0.1 million and approximately
5.0% , respectively.

The Company currently holds a 49.96% equity intere€BSX in return for non-cash property contribus. CBSX, which is not a self-
regulatory organization, is a stock trading fagittf CBOE. CBSX ceased trading operations on A30il2014. CBOE is responsible for the
compliance and regulation of the CBSX marketpléteddition, the Company has a services agreenmafgruvhich it provides financial,
accounting and technology support.

4. RELATED PARTIES

The Company collected transaction and other fe&§87.5 million , $610.3 million and $544.3 milliamthe years ended December 31,
2014 , 2013 and 2012, respectively, by drawingeoeounts of CBOE and C2 market participants hefd@t. The amounts collected by OCC
for CBOE included $121.4 million , $99.7 million@d®96.1 million of marketing fees during the yeansled December 31, 2014 , 2013 and
2012 , respectively. Additionally, the Company eotked transaction and other fees of $84.7 milliath $65.7 million in the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, by adrgquon accounts of CFE market participants held@COn 2012, CFE collections were
included in CBOE and C2 collections. The Company &aeceivable due from OCC of $59.8 million an&.$4million at December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively.

OPRA is a limited liability company consisting @presentatives of the member exchanges and israagtidy the SEC to provide
consolidated options information. This informatisrprovided by the exchanges and is sold to matiet vendors, outside news services and
customers. OPRA's operating income is distributadreg the exchanges based on their relative voldnal cleared options transactions.
The Company's share of OPRA operating income w&sl$hillion , $12.9 million and $15.0 million dudrthe years ended December 31,
2014 , 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Compadyahceivable from OPRA of $4.2 million and $3.8lion at December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

The Company incurred re-billable expenses on betigBSX for expenses such as employee costs, cdemeguipment and software of
$2.4 million , $4.6 million and $3.7 million durirthe years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and,2@%Rectively. These amounts are



included as a reduction of the underlying expenBas.Company had a receivable from
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CBSX of $0.4 million at December 31, 2013, respety. CBSX ceased trading operations on April 3014, therefore, we did not have a
material receivable balance at December 31, 2014 .

Options Regulatory Surveillance Authority ("ORSAS)responsible for conducting insider trading irigegions related to options on
behalf of all options exchanges. CBOE through Ddmem2014 was the Regulatory Services Provider uagédan entered into by the options
exchanges and approved by the SEC to administel®ORfective January 1, 2015, the ORSA policy cortes delegated the operation of the
ORSA Plan facility to FINRA, and FINRA became tlesce provider under the Regulatory Services Agrexat. During the year, the
Company incurred re-billable expenses on behalREA for expenses such as employee costs, occupadcgperating systems of $2.7
million , $2.3 million and $2.1 million , during ¢hyears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2@kpectively. These amounts were inclu
as a reduction of the underlying expenses. The @omnpad a receivable due from ORSA of $1.2 milkoal $1.2 million at December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 , accounts payabl@ecrued liabilities consisted of the following thousands):

2014 2013
Compensation and benefit related liabilities $ 23,03 $ 22,19!
Royalties 17,62« 13,51:
Accounts payable 2,77¢ 4,21¢
Facilities 1,94 1,82«
Legal 1,35¢ 1,60z
Market Linkage 1,18: 1,157
Purchase of unrestricted common stock (1) 1,15¢ 1,93
Other 9,49 6,51¢
Total $ 58,56¢ $ 52,95¢

(1) Reflects shares purchased at the end of thedorat are not settled until three trading ddysrahe trade occurs.
6. MARKETING FEE

The Company facilitates the collection and payneémharketing fees assessed on certain trades takiog at CBOE. Funds resulting
from the marketing fees are made available to Degeyl Primary Market-Makers and Preferred Markekédgs as an economic inducement to
route orders to CBOE. Pursuant to ASC 605REyenue Recognition—Principal Agent Consideratiaghe Company reflects the assessments
and payments on a net basis, with no impact omreagor expenses.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , amounts assbgdbe Company on behalf of others included irentrassets totalekil0.7 million
and $8.9 million , respectively, and payments duethers included in current liabilities totaledl$ million and $9.4 million , respectively.

7. DEFERRED REVENUE

The following tables summarize the activity in dedel revenue for the years ended December 31, 2042013 .

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Cash Revenue December 31,
(in thousands) 2013 Additions Recognition 2014
Liquidity provider sliding scale $ — % 15,80C $ (15,800 $ —
Other, net 1,10( 11,42¢ (10,54)) 1,98¢
Total deferred revenue $ 1,10 $ 27,22¢ % (26,34) $ 1,98¢
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Balance at Balance at
December 31, Cash Revenue December 31,
(in thousands) 2012 Additions Recognition 2013
Liquidity provider sliding scale $ $ 29,23. $ (29,23) $ =
Other, net 1,08¢ 7,34¢ (7,339 1,10C
Total deferred revenue $ 1,08: $ 36,58( $ (36,569 $ 1,10¢

Liquidity providers are eligible to participatetime sliding scale program, which involves prepaynoéitransaction fees, and receive
reduced fees based on the achievement of certaimeahresholds within a month. The prepaymentif@and 2013 transaction fees totaled
$15.8 million and $29.2 million , respectively. Beeamounts were amortized and recorded as tramsdets over the respective twelve montt
periods.

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employees are eligible to participate in the ChacBgard Options Exchange SMART Plan ("SMART Plaithe SMART Plan is a
defined contribution plan, which is qualified undeternal Revenue Code Section 401(k). The Comganyributed $4.5 million , $4.0 million
and $3.9 million to the SMART Plan for each of tlears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 201featdsely.

Eligible employees may participate in the SuppletaleBmployee Retirement Plan, Executive Retirenidah and Deferred
Compensation Plan. Each plan is a defined contabytlan that is non-qualified by Internal Rever@ade regulations. The Company
contributed $1.5 million , $1.6 million and $1.4lkin to the above plans for the years ended Deegr@h, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 ,
respectively.

The Company has a post-retirement medical plandaain former members of senior management. Thepgaay recorded immaterial
post-retirement benefits expense for the yearscebdeember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , resulting fiee amortization of service costs and
actuarial expense included in accumulated othepecehensive loss at December 31, 2014 , 2013 an2l 201
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9. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of the statutory federal incomg tate to the effective income tax rate for thergemded December 31, 2014 , 2013 an
2012 is as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State income tax rate, net of federal income téecef 3.5 3.€ 4.¢
Section 199 deductions 1.7 (2.2 (7.5)
Other, net 1.¢ 1kt 2.8
Effective income tax rate 38.1% 38.C% 35.1%

During the twelve months ended December 31, 20E2Company filed amended returns for 2008, 20092a@ and completed its
return for 2011 and recognized, as a discrete itetie aggregate, a $12.9 million net benefitd@ection 199 deduction for U.S. production
activities which encompasses all personal proparthiding computer software for prior year periods

The components of income tax expense for the yavaded December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 are asvfo(in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federal $ 95,94¢ $ 93,84« $ 65,054
State 24,32 20,95¢ 20,591
Total current 120,27: 114,80: 85,65!
Deferred:
Federal 1,95¢ (4,63¢) 40€
State (2,24%) (2,509 (901)
Total deferred (290 (7,145 (49%)
Total $ 119,98 $ 107,65 $ 85,15¢

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the net deferreohie tax liability is as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013
Deferred tax assets $ 26,96: $ 25,14
Deferred tax liabilities (40,639 (38,889

Net deferred income tax liability $ (13,677 $ (13,745
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The tax effect of temporary differences giving tisesignificant portions of deferred tax assets létullities at December 31, 2014 and
2013 are presented below (in thousands):

2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Intangibles $ 44 3 5C
Accrued compensation and benefits 9,34 11,23
Property, equipment and technology, net 59¢ 697
Investment in affiliates 6,32¢ 6,15¢
Other 10,65( 7,00¢
Total deferred tax assets 26,96: 25,14«
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, equipment and technology, net (37,85) (36,180)
Investment in affiliates (1,69¢) (1,689
Prepaid (2,080 (1,027%)
Other (12) 1
Total deferred tax liabilities (40,639 (38,889
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (13,67) $ (13,749

The net deferred tax liabilities are classifiedamy-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balandee8ts at December 31, 2014 and 2013 .

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending unagrtax positions, excluding interest and penaligas follows (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Balance as of January 1 $ 26,748 % 19,49 $ 12,18¢
Gross increases on tax positions in prior period 2,82¢ 54¢ 3,401
Gross decreases on tax positions in prior period (1,059 (18) (839)
Gross increases on tax positions in current period 8,11: 7,27(C 4,74(
Lapse of statute of limitations (1,209 (549) —
Balance as of December 31 $ 3542¢ § 26,74t $ 19,49

As of December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , the Cagnpad $35.4 million , $26.7 million and $19.5 naifl , respectively, of uncertain
tax positions excluding interest and penalties cWhif recognized in the future, would affect thmaal effective income tax rate. Reductions t
uncertain tax positions from the lapse of the ajafie statutes of limitations during the next tveetronths are estimated to be approximately
$15.9 million , not including any potential new #éhs.

Estimated interest costs and penalties are cladsi part of the provision for income taxes inGoepany's consolidated statements of
income and were $2.1 million , $1.8 million and@&illion for the periods ended December 31, 202@1,3 and 2012 , respectively. Accrued
interest and penalties were $5.3 million , $3.diarland $1.4 million as of December 31, 2014 ,28hd 2012 , respectively.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal tax, llisndlew Jersey, and New York state taxes and WashinB.C. taxes, as well as taxes ir
other local jurisdictions. The Company has operytars from 2007 on for New York, 2008 on for Fedie2010 on for New Jersey, and 2011
on for lllinois and Washington, D.C. The InternahiRnue Service is currently auditing 2010 andakileg at specific line items from 2008 to
2013 due to the filing by the Company of amendédrns containing the recognition of certain creditsl deductions. The lIllinois Department
of Revenue has informed the Company they will bditeng 2011 and 2012 tax years, the New York SEpartment of Taxation and Finance
is currently auditing the 2007 through 2012 taxrgesnd the New Jersey Division of Taxation is aotlyeauditing the 2010 through 2012 tax
years.
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10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received ugale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a Itghil an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date athgiprincipal or most advantageous market for aisaet or liability. The fair value should be
calculated based on assumptions that market gaatits would use in pricing the asset or liabilitgt on assumptions specific to the entity. In
addition, the fair value of liabilities should incde consideration of non-performance risk, inclgdime Company’s own credit risk.

The Company applied Financial Accounting Stand&ulsrd ("FASB") ASC 820Fair Value Measurement and Disclosyrehich
provides guidance for using fair value to measseets and liabilities by defining fair value antabsishing the framework for measuring fair
value. ASC 820 applies to financial and nonfinahicistruments that are measured and reported air &dlue basis. The three-level hierarchy
of fair value measurements is based on whethdnthas to those measurements are observable osanale. Observable inputs reflect
market data obtained from independent sourcesewimibbservable inputs reflect the Company’s makstimptions. The fair-value hierarchy
requires the use of observable market data whefableand consists of the following levels:

. Level 1—Unadjusted inputs based on quoted markets forimirassets or liabilitie

. Level 2—Observable inputs, either direct or iedt, not including Level 1, corroborated by marttata or based upon quoted
prices in non-active markets.

. Level 3—Unobservable inputs that reflect managjet’s best assumptions of what market participatsid use in valuing
the asset or liability.

The Company has included a tabular disclosureifiantial assets that are measured at fair valueresurring basis in the consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 and 2048 Company holds no financial liabilities the¢ aneasured at fair value on a recurring b

(amounts in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at fair value:

Money market funds $ 135,00( — —  $ 135,00(
Total assets at fair value at December 31, 2014 $ 135,000  $ — — $ 135,00(
(amounts in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at fair value:

Money market funds $ 207,00( — — 3 207,00(
Total assets at fair value at December 31, 2013 $ 207,000 $ — — $ 207,00

The Company, through DerivaTech Corporation, a Wholvned subsidiary, acquired a 10.0% interesPiXlIHoldings, LLC ("IPXI")
for $2.5 million . The Company contributed an audial $0.6 million in October 2013. The investmengasured at fair value on a non-
recurring basis, is classified as level 3 as tireviue was based on both observable and unoliderirgputs. In December 2014, the Company
recorded an impairment charge of $3.0 million . TThpairment was the result of an additional investirin IPXI by an investor at a fair value
significantly lower than our original investmentudnvestment and equity interest in IPXI as of &maber 31, 2014 were valued$t. 1 million
and approximately 5.0% , respectively.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of December 31, 2014 , the end of the periogte¥ by this report, the Company was subject tov#nious legal proceedings and
claims discussed below, as well as certain otlga lproceedings and claims that have not been fefiglved and that have arisen in the
ordinary course of business.
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The Company reviews its legal proceedings and dairgulatory reviews and inspections and otheal lpgpceedings on an ongoing
basis and follows appropriate accounting guidancenamaking accrual and disclosure decisions. Thepg@aay establishes accruals for those
contingencies where the incurrence of a loss ibadste and can be reasonably estimated, and weskstiie amount accrued and the amou
a reasonably possible loss in excess of the ansmentied, if such disclosure is necessary for mamftial statements to not be misleading. The
Company does not record liabilities when the lifketid that the liability has been incurred is prdéabut the amount cannot be reasonably
estimated, or when the liability is believed todrdy reasonably possible or remote. The Compasgessment of whether a loss is reasonably
possible or probable is based on its assessmdéim¢ eftimate outcome of the matter following alpegls.

As of December 31, 201,4he Company does not believe that there is anedde possibility that any material loss exceedirggamount
already recognized for these reviews, inspectiorater legal proceedings, if any, has been incuv¢hile the consequences of certain
unresolved proceedings are not presently deterrdgntie outcome of any litigation is inherently arnt@in and an adverse outcome from ce
matters could have a material effect on our eamin@ny given reporting period. However, in thénagm of management, the ultimate liabil
is not expected to have a material effect on marfcial position, liquidity or capital resources.

Patent Litigation

ISE -- QRM

On November 12, 2012, CBOE brought suit againgtriational Securities Exchange, LLC ("ISE") in theited States District Court for
the Northern District of lllinois alleging that ISEfringes three of its patents (United States Rtdtos. 7,356,498; 7,980,457; and 8,266,044
(the “QRM patents™)) related to quote risk monif@RM") technology. CBOE has requested injunctiekef and monetary damages. On
February 20, 2013, the court ruled that the cagednsferred to the United States District Courttfee Southern District of New York. On
October 31, 2013, the court stayed the litigatienging resolution of Covered Business Method ("CBRtent Reviews at the United States
Patent and Trademark Office ("USPTQ") that ISE petitioned for. On March 4, 2014, the USPTO in&ithCBM Patent Reviews on CBQE’
three QRM patents. In the CBM Patent Reviews, 18&dileged that CBOE's three QRM patents are idy@cause they are directed to
subject matter that is not eligible for patent potion. On May 22, 2014, the USPTO instituted IiRarties Review (“IPR"Proceedings, whic
ISE had petitioned for, on some but not all claoshsvo of CBOE’'s QRM patents (United States Patéos. 7,356,498 and 7,980,457). In the
IPR Proceedings, ISE has alleged that claims ofdiM@BOE’s QRM patents are invalid because they are dirg¢otedbject matter that is eitt
anticipated or obvious in view of the prior art.tBéhe CBM Patent Reviews and IPR Proceedingsdjteli@ated by the Patent Trial and
Appeal Board of the USPTO.

Lanier Litigation

On May 23, 2014, Harold R. Lanier sued 14 secusrigechanges, including CBOE, in the United Statisribt Court for the Southern
District of New York on behalf of himself and a ptive class consisting of all persons in the UnB¢ates who entered into contracts to rec
market data through certain data plans at any simee May 19, 2008 to the present. The compldieges that the market data provided unde
the CQ Plan and CTA Plans was inferior to the tlzathe exchanges provided to those that direetigive other data from the exchanges,
which the plaintiffs allege is a breach of theiuBiscriber contracts” and a violation of the exclem\@bligations under the CQ and CTA Plans.
The plaintiffs seek monetary and injunctive reli€n May 30, 2014, Mr. Lanier filed two additiorsalits in the same Court, alleging
substantially the same claims and requesting stme types of relief against the exchanges wiiipate in the UTP and the OPRA data
plans. CBOE is a defendant in each of these sitde C2 is only a defendant in the suit regardimg OPRA Plan.

70




Table of Contents

CBOE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201

Other

As a self-regulatory organization under the jugtidn of the SEC, with respect to CBOE and C2, asd designated contract market
under the jurisdiction of the CFTC, with respecC6E, we are subject to routine reviews and inspestby the SEC and the CFTC.

We are also currently a party to various otherllpgaceedings in addition to those already mentiohdanagement does not believe that
the outcome of any of these other reviews, inspestor other legal proceedings will have a matémglact on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Leases and Other Obligations

The Company leases facilities with lease terms mgimgifrom 8 months to 31 months as of Decembe2814 . Total rent expense
related to these lease obligations, reflected ia geocessing and facilities costs line items @nGlonsolidated Statements of Income, for the
years endeDecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were $3.8 miJli&$10 million and $3.5 million , respectively.tbte minimum payments for
our operating leases and contractual obligatioasarfollows at December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Operating Contractual

Year Leases Obligations Total

2015 $ 2,811 18,157 $ 20,96¢
2016 2,62¢ 20,46: 23,09
2017 69€ 23,05) 23,75:
2018 — 20,07( 20,07(
2019 — 20,08¢ 20,08«
Total $ 6,13t $ 101,83 $ 107,96¢

12. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock-based compensation is based on the fair wdltiee award on the date of grant, which is recogghover the related service period,
net of estimated forfeitures. The service periothésperiod over which the related service is pentd, which is generally the same as the
vesting period.

The board amended and restated the CBOE HoldingsL.bng Term Incentive Plan (the "LTIP"), effeciupon receiving stockholder
approval, which was received at the May 17, 20Iiuahmeeting of stockholders. The LTIP provides #raaggregate of 4,248,497 shares of
the Company's common stock are reserved for isguangarticipants under the LTIP.

The Compensation Committee of the Company's bdaditectors administers the LTIP and may desigaate of the following as a
participant under the LTIP: any officer or othermayee of the Company or its affiliates or individsiengaged to become an officer or
employee and non-employee directors of the CompEmg.LTIP permits the granting of non-qualifiedadtmptions, restricted stock, restricted
stock units, incentive compensation awards or amybination of the foregoing. The Compensation Cottamihas the authority and complete
discretion to prescribe, amend and rescind ruldsagulations relating to the LTIP, select partigits and to determine the form and terms of
any awards.

On February 19, 2014, the Company granted awasd<tvered 206,192 shares of stock, consistingdfe8 shares of restricted stock
and 161,024 restricted stock units ("RSUs"), edahitoch entitles the holders to one share of comistock upon vesting, to certain officers
and employees at a fair value of $55.35 per sfldre RSUs vest ratably over three years, with oiré-tresting on each anniversary of the
grant date, and vesting accelerates upon the arwerof a change in control. Unvested restricteckstinits will be forfeited if the officer or
employee leaves the company prior to the appliceddting date, except in limited circumstances. fEHs#ricted stock units have no voting
rights but are able to participate in the paymémtividends.

In addition, on February 19, 2014, the Company g 7,470 RSUs that are contingent on the achiemenf performance conditions
including 23,735 at a fair value of $55.35 per R@8lated to earnings per share during the performaeciod and 23,735 RSUs at a fair value
of $77.00 per RSU, related to total shareholdemrnetluring the performance period. The Company tised/onte Carlo valuation model



method to estimate the fair value of the total shalder return RSUs
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which incorporated the following assumptions: ffide interest rate ( 0.69% ), three-year volati{iB4.8% ) and three-year correlation with
S&P 500 Index (0.56). Each of these performanceeshizas a performance condition under which theburaf units ultimately awarded will
vary from 0% to 200% of the original grant, withchaunit representing the contingent right to reeeine share of our common stock. The
vesting period for the shares contingent on théeaelment of performance is three years. For eatheoperformance awards, the RSU will be
settled in shares of our common stock followingtingsof the restricted stock unit assuming thatgheticipant has been continuously
employed during the vesting period, subject to leradon in the event of a change of control of @@mpany or in the event of a participant’s
earlier death, disability or qualified retiremeRarticipants shall have no voting rights with redfie shares until the issuance of the shares of
stock. Dividends are accrued by the Company andoeipaid once the RSUs contingent on the achiemeofgerformance conditions vest.

On May 22, 2014, the Company granted 18,240 studnestricted stock, at a fair value of $49.36 gleare, to the non-employee
members of the board of directors. The shares daree-year vesting period and vesting accelerates the occurrence of a change in contro
of the Company. Unvested portions of the restristedk will be forfeited if the director leaves thempany prior to the applicable vesting d

For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 &tl,28e Company recognized $15.6 million , $20ilion and $12.3 million ,
respectively, of stock-based compensation expesiated to restricted stock. For the twelve montited December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 201
the Company recorded $2.5 million , $4.0 milliord&0.3 million , respectively, to recognize accaied stock-based compensation. The
accelerated stock-based compensation expenseldat@l 2013, is primarily for certain executiveg do provisions contained in their
employment arrangements and, in 2012 , departwasthe board of directors.

The activity in the Company's restricted stockiriet®d stock units and performance shares foy#ze ended December 31, 2014 was a
follows:

Number of Shares Weighted Average
of Restricted Grant-Date Fair
Stock Value
Unvested restricted stock at January 1, 2014 708,22 $ 33.41
Granted 271,90: 56.8¢
Vested (553,639 33.2¢
Forfeited (11,735 42.0¢
Unvested restricted stock at December 31, 2014 414,74¢  $ 46.44

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had unrezedrstock-based compensation expense of $12.2millated to outstanding
restricted stock. The remaining unrecognized sto$éed compensation is expected to be recognizediaveighted average period of 1.4
years. The Company is projecting a forfeiture natthe range 02% to 5% . The total fair value of shares vestethduhe year ended
December 31, 2014 was $18.4 million .

13. NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

The computation of basic net income allocated tomon stockholders is calculated by reducing netrime for the period by dividends
paid or declared and undistributed net incomeHergeriod that are allocated to participating séesrto arrive at net income allocated to
common stockholders. Net income allocated to comstockholders is divided by the weighted averagaler of common shares outstanding
during the period to determine net income per shioeated to common stockholders.

The computation of diluted earnings per share lsutated by dividing net income allocated to comnstockholders by the sum of the
weighted average number of common shares outsiguptlis all additional common shares that would Hasen outstanding if the potentially
dilutive common shares had been issued. The déugffect is calculated using the more dilutivetaf two-class or treasury stock method.
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The following table reconciles net income applieatd common stockholders and the number of shaes to calculate the basic and
diluted net income per common share for the forydmrs ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2014 2013 2012
Basic EPS Numerator:
Net Income $ 189,71 $ 175,99¢ $ 157,39!
Less: Earnings allocated to participating seciwitie (1,329 (2,136 (2,147
Net Income allocated to common stockholders $ 188,39: $ 173,86. $ 155,25:
Basic EPS Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 85,40¢t 87,33 87,46(
Basic net income per common share $ 221 % 19¢ $ 1.7¢
Diluted EPS Numerator:
Net Income $ 189,71: $ 175,99¢ $ 157,39!
Less: Earnings allocated to participating seciwitie (1,329 (2,136 (2,147
Net Income allocated to common stockholders $ 188,39: $ 173,86: $ 155,25
Diluted EPS Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 85,40¢ 87,33: 87,46(

Dilutive common shares issued under restricteckgtoogram — — —

Diluted net income per common share $ 221 % 1.9¢ $ 1.7¢

For the periods presented, the Company did not Blagees of restricted stock or restricted stocksuhat would have an anti-dilutive
effect on the computation of diluted net income ganmon share.

14. QUARTERLY DATA (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Year ended December 31, 2014 (in thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Operating revenues $ 157,88" $ 143,94. $ 148,91( $ 166,48t $ 617,22!
Operating expenses 75,841 74,22¢ 73,82¢ 79,52¢ 303,42
Operating income 82,03¢ 69,71¢ 75,08¢ 86,96 313,80:
Net income $ 49,02« $ 4298. % 48,36t $ 49,34: % 189,71«
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 48,52¢ $ 42,59¢ $ 48,14¢ $ 49,11¢ $ 188,39:
Diluted—net income per share to common
stockholders $ 0.5¢ $ 05C $ 057 $ 0.5¢ $ 2.21
First Second Third Fourth
Year ended December 31, 2013 (in thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Operating revenues $ 142,70 $ 150,77. $ 136,74. $ 141,83( $ 572,05(
Operating expenses 73,27¢ 75,414 68,31¢ 69,23 286,23t
Operating income 69,43( 75,35¢ 68,42’ 72,59¢ 285,81«
Net income $ 42,377 $ 46,16. $ 41,35t $ 46,11C $ 175,99¢
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 41,78¢ $ 45477 % 40,95¢ $ 45,64: $ 173,86:
Diluted—net income per share to common
stockholders $ 0.4¢ $ 05z % 047 $ 05z $ 1.9¢
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» Inthe first quarter of 2014, the Company reedrdccelerated stock-based compensation expeg&5oillion for certain
executives due to provisions contained in their legrpent arrangements.

* In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company rdedr$1.9 million in severance resulting from thésourcing of certain regulatory
services to FINRA.

» In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company rdedra $3.0 millionmpairment of the investment in IXI

* Inthe first quarter of 2013 , the Company relear accelerated stock-based compensation expef82ofillion for certain
executives due to provisions contained in their legrpent arrangements.

* Inthe second quarter of 2013 , the Companyrcexzb$1.0 million of expense for an estimated ligbrelated to an SEC
investigation of CBOE's compliance with its obligat as a self-regulatory organization under tiderfel securities laws.

» Inthe second quarter of 2013 , the Companyrdszbgrants to the Chief Executive Officer and iélesst and Chief Operating
Officer totaling $2.5 million , of which 50% vesteghon grant. In addition, the Company recorded lacated stock-based
compensation of $0.8 million to recognize the rammay value of stock grants awarded to employeéts iregulatory division who
will no longer receive stock-based compensation.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 4, 2015, the Company's board of directeclared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.21share. The dividend is payable on
March 20, 2015 to stockholders of record at theelof business on February 27, 2015.

On February 19, 2015, the Company granted 205 @&3@icted stock units to certain officers and emeés at a fair value of $61.96 per
share, the closing price of the Company's stocthergrant date. The shares have a three year ggsiiod based on achievement of certain
service, performance and/or market conditions adiing accelerates upon the occurrence of a chiargmtrol of the Company or in the ev
of earlier death, disability or qualified retirenten
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcégnting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procechs

The Company's management, with the participatictsdhief Executive Officer and Chief Financialfioér, has evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company's disclosure contmtsprocedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) ahel Fad-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Actdy of the end of the period covered by this ref@gated upon that evaluation, the Company's ¢
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer has@ncluded that, as of the end of such period, tm@any's disclosure controls and
procedures are effective.

b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Controlver Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigaring. Our internal control system
has been designed to provide reasonable assumnw@mngement and the board of directors regartimgreparation and fair presentation of
published financial statements.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cetajpaternal control over financial reporting asi¥cember 31, 2014 . Management
based its assessment on criteria for effectivenatecontrol over financial reporting describednternal Control-Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission. Management's assessnoduded evaluating the design
of our internal control over financial reportingdatesting the operational effectiveness of ourrivdecontrol over financial reporting. The
results of its assessment were reviewed with tld@ aommittee of the board of directors.

Based on this assessment, management believeadtaftDecember 31, 2014 , our internal control dwancial reporting is effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioil reporting as of December 31, 2014 has bediteaby Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tased in their report on pag®.

There were no changes in the Company's interndataasver financial reporting that occurred durihg three months ended
December 31, 2014 that have materially affectedrereasonably likely to materially affect, outreimal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goverre

Information relating to our executive officersigliuded on pagekr of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Informationatihg to our
directors, including our audit committee and agdinmittee financial experts and the procedures tighvstockholders can recommend
director nominees, and our executive officers tdlin our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2015n8al Meeting of Shareholders to be held
on May 21, 2015, which will be filed within 120 dagf the end of our fiscal year ended DecembeR314 (" 2015 Proxy Statement ") and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsEttat applies to our Chief Executive Officer, €t#inancial Officer and Chief
Accounting Officer, as well as all other employeesl directors. Our Code of Business Conduct anit&ih available on our website at
http://ir.cboe.com/governance.cfm. We will alsopde a copy of the Code of Business Conduct anic&tb stockholders at no charge upon
written request.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

Information relating to our executive officer anidedtor compensation and the compensation comnufteer board of directors will be
in the 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedihday reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Information relating to security ownership of cartheneficial owners of our common stock and infation relating to the security
ownership of our management will be in the 2015«Pi®tatement and is incorporated herein by referenc

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adatector Independence

Information regarding certain relationships andted transactions and director independence with tiee 2015 Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information regarding principal accountant fees sawvices will be in the 2015 Proxy Statement anidéorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
€) Documents filed as part of this rep

(1) Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements and theadlegports of management and our independent eegispublic accounting firm which
are required to be filed as part of this reportiackuded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K begignat page53. These consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

+ Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December03¥, 2nd201:

» Consolidated Statements of Income for the yeaded December 31, 2014 , 2013 aad:

e Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Indomitne years ended December 31, 2014 , 20126amhél
» Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for tlzesyended December 31, 2014 , 2013 201t

» Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Eduityhe years ended December 31, 2014 , 20128thg

* Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The Company has not included any financial statérsemedules because they are not applicable aethered information is included
the consolidated financial statements or notestber

(3) List of Exhibits

See (b) Exhibits below
(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatio@®OE Holdings, Inc., incorporated by referencétmex C to Amendment
No. 7 to the Company's Registration Statement amF®4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 26, ZD1

3.z Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of CBOE Holdings incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1He Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 333-140574dion January 24, 2014.

10.1 Restated License Agreement, dated November 1, 1894nd between Standard & Poor's Financial Ses\it€ (as successor-
in-interest to Standard & Poor's, a division of Ma@-Hill, Inc.) and the Chicago Board Options Eanbe, Incorporated (the
"S&P License Agreement"), incorporated by refereiocExhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 6 to the CompaiRegistration
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filadMpril 12, 2010.+

10.z  Amendment No. 1 to the S&P License Agreement, daaadiary 15, 1995, incorporated by reference tokiixt0.2 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Company's Registration Stait on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on iAp2, 2010.+

10.2  Amendment No. 2 to the S&P License Agreement, dAfil 1, 1998, incorporated by reference to Exhilf).3 to Amendment
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement amF®4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, 201

10.£ Amendment No. 3 to the S&P License Agreement, daiyl 28, 2000, incorporated by reference to ExHiBi4 to Amendment
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement amF4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, ZD%

10.2  Amendment No. 4 to the S&P License Agreement, d@wetdber 27, 2000, incorporated by reference talkitxh0.5 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Company's Registration 8taie on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on ihp2, 2010.+
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

10.6  Amendment No. 5 to the S&P License Agreement, ditacth 1, 2003, incorporated by reference to ExHibi6 to Amendment
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement amF®4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, ZD%

10.7 Amended and Restated Amendment No. 6 to the S&enkie Agreement, dated February 24, 2009, incogmbiat reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to Amendment No. 6 to the Company'giReation Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-1405iled on April 12,
2010.+

10.¢  Amended and Restated Amendment No. 7 to the S&®enkie Agreement, dated February 24, 2009, incogubiat reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to Amendment No. 6 to the Company'giReation Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-1405iled on April 12,
2010.+

10.¢  Amendment No. 8 to the S&P License Agreement, daaediary 9, 2005, incorporated by reference toltxh0.9 to Amendmer
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement amF®4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, 201

10.1C Amendment No. 10 to the S&P License Agreement,ddatme 19, 2009, incorporated by reference to BExbibl0 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Company's Registration Stait on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on iAp2, 2010.+

10.17 Amendment No. 11 to the S&P License Agreement,ddaseof April 29, 2010, incorporated by refererm&xhibit 10 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 3a¥-/4) filed on May 11, 2010.+

10.1z Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated ExexiRetirement Plan, incorporated by referencexoitiit 10.13 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Registration 8tait on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on Asgl4, 2009.*

10.1: Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated Sapgi¢al Retirement Plan, incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.14 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Registration Statg on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on Asigl4, 2009.*

10.1¢ Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated Dedfe@ompensation Plan for Officers, incorporateddfgrence to
Exhibit 10.15 to Amendment No. 4 to the CompanygiBtration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 3335F4() filed on
August 14, 2009.*

10.1¢  Amendment No. 1 to the Chicago Board Options Exghaimcorporated Supplemental Retirement Planfparated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quartedport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septerd®, 2010 (File
No. 001-34774) filed on November 12, 2010.*

10.1¢ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, efle@icember 31, 2009, by and between the ChicagmlEyations
Exchange, Incorporated and William J. Brodsky, ipooated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Amendniémt5 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (#ade333-140574) filed on March 11, 2010.*

10.1% Amended and Restated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Long-Tgantive Plan, incorporated by reference to ExHibi20 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Registration 8tats on Form S-1 (File No. 333-165393) filed oneJad, 2010.*

10.1¢ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (for Exte@uOfficers), incorporated by reference to Exhitf).1 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endadch 31, 2010 (File No. 001-34774) filed on Jiie 2010.*

10.1¢ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (for Nonpdoyee Directors), incorporated by reference thikik 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for therigua&nded March 31, 2010 (File No. 001-34774yfibe June 11, 2010.*

10.2C Amended and Restated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Execi8®&eerance Plan, incorporated by reference to Bxhib3 to the

Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 3a¥-74) filed on December 12, 2012.*
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
10.21 Form of Director Indemnification Agreement, incorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa@yigent Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-34774) filed on December 2010.
10.22 Amended and Restated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Long-Tkgentive Plan, incorporated by reference to ExHibil to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. @1~-74), filed on May 18, 2011. *
10.2:  Amendment No. 1, dated August 22, 2011, to the Atedrand Restated License Agreement, dated Sept@®p2006, by and
between CME Group Index Services LLC (as successmterest to Dow Jones & Company, Inc.) and tiéc&go Board
Options Exchange, Incorporated, incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quartedpdt on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2011 (File No.33074) filed on November 9, 2011.+
10.2¢ Transition Agreement, by and among CBOE Holdings,,IChicago Board Options Exchange, IncorporatedViilliam J.
Brodsky, dated December 11, 2012, incorporatecefgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Curreegd®t on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-34774) filed on December 12, 2012.*
10.2t  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, by mrmh@ CBOE Holdings, Inc., Chicago Board Optionsiamge,
Incorporated and Edward T. Tilly, dated December2Di 2, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2he Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-34774) filed ondember 12, 2012.*
10.2¢ Amendment No. 12, to the S&P License Agreemengdidtarch 9, 2013, incorporated by reference to likh0.1 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File rid-84774) filed on May 7, 2013. +
10.27 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Eoecutive Officers) under the Amended and Rest&@®B@E Holdings, Inc.
Long-term Incentive Plan, incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.27 to the Company's Annual Reporfornm 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013 (File No. 001-34774) filedrebruary 21, 2014.*
10.2¢  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (tiglatotal shareholder return) under the AmendetiRestated CBOE
Holdings, Inc. Long-term Incentive Plan, incorpeidby reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Companyiaual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2013 (File N4-80774) filed on February 21, 2014.*
10.2¢ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (&aga per share) under the Amended and Restated CRilitings, Inc.
Long-term Incentive Plan, incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.29 to the Company's Annual Reporfonm 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013 (File No. 001-34774) filedrebruary 21, 2014.*
21.1 Subsidiaries of CBOE Holdings, Inc. (filed herewith
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing (filed herewith)
24.1 Powers of Attorney (incorporated by reference wdignature page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 (filed herewith).
31.Z2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 (filed herewith).
32.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRale 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 t¢ T8 of the United States
Code (filed herewith).
32.z Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRale 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 té¢ T8 of the United States
Code (filed herewith).
101.INs  XBRL Instance Document (filed herewith)
101.sct  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed théttg).
101.cAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutniled herewith).
101.0Ef XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase (filérewith).
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documeriefiherewith).
101.PRI  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenntfiled herewith).

*Indicates Management Compensatory Plan, Contra&trangement.

+Confidential treatment has been previously recuekst granted to portions of these exhibits bySEE.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this Annual
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalfH®/undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CBOE HOLDINGS, INC.
(Registrant)
By: /sl EDWARD T. TILLY

Edward T. Tilly
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 20, 2015

POWERS OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signhature appears below constitutes anargpgEdward T.
Tilly, as attorney-in-fact and agent, with full pemof substitution and redbstitution, to sign on his or her behalf, induatly and in any and ¢
capacities, including the capacities stated betow,and all amendments to this Annual Report omFt0-K for the year ended December 31,
2014and to file the same, with all exhibits theretod ather documents in connection therewith, withSleeurities and Exchange Commiss
granting to said attorney-in-fact and agent, foliver and authority to do and perform each and eaerynd thing requisite and necessary to b
done in and about the premises, as fully to adlritd and purposes as he or she might or could gergon, hereby ratifying and confirming all
that said attorney-in-fact and agent, or his stitsti may lawfully do or cause to be done by vitteeeof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities on thesdiaidicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

February 20, 2015

/sl EDWARD T. TILLY Chief Executive Officer and Director
Edward T. Tilly (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ ALAN J. DEAN Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officedalreasurer February 20, 2015
Alan J. Dean (Principal Financial Officer)
/sl DAVID S. REYNOLDS Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer February 20, 2015
David S. Reynolds (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ WILLIAM J. BRODSKY Chairman February 20, 2015

William J. Brodsky

/sl JAMES R. BORIS Director February 20, 2015
James R. Boris

/sl FRANK E. ENGLISH, JR. Director February 20, 2015
Frank E. English, Jr.

/sl EDWARD J. FITZPATRICK Director February 20, 2015
Edward J. Fitzpatrick
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SIGNATURE

/s/ JANET P. FROETSCHER

Janet P. Froetscher

/s/ JILL R. GOODMAN

Jill R. Goodman

I/s/ R. EDEN MARTIN

R. Eden Martin

/sl RODERICK A. PALMORE

Roderick A. Palmore

/s SUSAN M. PHILLIPS

Susan M. Phillips

/sl SAMUEL K. SKINNER

Samuel K. Skinner

/sl CAROLE E. STONE

Carole E. Stone

/sl EUGENE S. SUNSHINE

Eugene S. Sunshine

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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EXHIBIT 21.1

SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES OF CBOE HOLDINGS, INC.
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

Name of Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Organization
CBOE Futures Exchange, LLC Delaware

CBOE, LLC Delaware

Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated lawere

Chicago Options Exchange Building Corporation eldware

DerivaTech Corporation lllinois

Market Data Express, LLC Delaware

The Options Exchange, Incorporated Delaware

C2 Options Exchange, Incorporated Delaware



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement No. 333-174344 on Form S-8uwfreports dated February 20, 2015,
relating to the consolidated financial statemefSBOE Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries, and theafeness of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and

subsidiaries’ internal control over financial refiog, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 1@f«CBOE Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries
for the year ended December 31, 2014 .

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Chicago, lllinois
February 20, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification Pursuant To

Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 39

I, Edward T. Tilly, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 201 £BOE Holdings, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over finanogdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentusi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeatf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakres in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gniifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt
Date: February 20, 2015

/sl EDWARD T. TILLY
Name: Edward T. Tilly
Title: Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification Pursuant To

Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 39

[, Alan J. Dean, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 201 £BOE Holdings, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over finanogdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentusi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeatf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakres in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gniifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt
Date: February 20, 2015

/sl ALAN J. DEAN

Name: Alan J. Dean
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

Written Statement of the Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted puest to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Solely for the purposes of complying wih1.S.C. Section 1350, |, the undersigned Chiefchtiee Officer of CBOE Holdings, Inc. (the
"Company"), hereby certify, based on my knowledbat the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compfamythe fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014 (the "Report") fully complieshatite requirements of Section 13(a) of the Seesrixchange Act of 1934 and that
information contained in the Report fairly preseiviall material respects, the financial conditand results of operations of the Company.

/sl EDWARD T. TILLY
Edward T. Tilly
February 20, 2015




EXHIBIT 32.2

Written Statement of the Executive Vice Presidentiad Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted puesit to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Solely for the purposes of complying wihl.S.C. Section 1350, I, the undersigned Executice President and Chief Financial Officer
of CBOE Holdings, Inc. (the "Company"), hereby ifgrtbased on my knowledge, that the Annual ReparForm 10-K of the Company for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 (the "Rg§datly complies with the requirements of Sectib8(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and that information contained in the Repairtyf presents, in all material respects, the faiahcondition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ ALAN J. DEAN
Alan J. Dean
February 20, 2015




